
   

 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
LAND USE PLANNING DIVISION 

 

** INDICATES THAT THE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECEIVED DOCUMENTS (NOTICES OF DECISION, STAFF 
REPORTS, APPLICATION MATERIALS OR CORRESPONDENCE) AS PART OF THE PACKET THAT WAS DELIVERED PRIOR TO 
THIS MEETING. 

 
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

MEETING AGENDA 

 Date: Thursday, June 2, 2022 
Time: 7:00 PM  
Place:  On-Line (No Physical Location) 
 

 
The Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) packet is available for review online on the 

LPC page under Boards and Commissions:  
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions/landmarks-preservation-commission 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state-declared emergency, this meeting 
of the Commission will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom 
videoconference. The COVID-19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the 
members to meet safely in person and presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. 
Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.  
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please 
use this URL: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86708915133. If you do not wish for your name to 
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on “rename” and provide an 
anonymous title. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the 
screen. 
To join by phone: Dial +1 669 900 6833 and enter Meeting ID: 867 0891 5133. If you wish to 
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized by 
the Chair.  
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any official meeting is recorded, and 
all other rules of procedure and decorum will apply for official meetings conducted by 
teleconference or videoconference.  
 

The Commission consists of eight members appointed by City Council:  
Christopher Adams, District 5  
Kathleen Crandall, District 3 
Charles Enchill (Chairperson), District 1  
Steven Finacom, District 4  
Luke Leuschner, District 7 – Leave of Absence 
Christopher Linvill, Mayor 
Denise Montgomery (Vice Chairperson), District 8 
Paul Schwartz, District 6 
Alfred Twu, District 2  

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions/landmarks-preservation-commission
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86708915133


   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 2  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

 

    ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION / ADA DISCLAIMER 
This material is available in alternative formats upon request. Alternative formats include audio-format, 
braille, large print, electronic text, etc. To request alternative formats, please contact the Disability 
Services Specialist Ella Callow at: Email: ecallow@cityofberkeley.info; Phone: 1-510-981-6418; TTY: 
1-510-981-6347, and allow 7-10 days for production of the material in an alternative format.  

 
Correspondence and Notice of Decision Requests 
All persons are welcome to attend the virtual hearing and will be given an opportunity to address the 
Commission. Comments may be made verbally at the public hearing and/or in writing before the 
hearing. The Commission may limit the time granted to each speaker. Written comments or request 
for a Notice of Decision should be directed to the Landmarks Preservation Commission Secretary. 
 
Correspondence received by 5:00 PM eight days before this public hearing will be included 
with the agenda materials provided to the Commission. Note that if you submit a hard copy 
document of more than 10 pages, or in color, or with photos, you must provide 15 copies. 
Correspondence received after this deadline will be conveyed to the Board in the following manner:  

• Correspondence received by 5:00 PM two days before this public hearing will be conveyed 
to the Board in a Supplemental Communications and Reports, which is released around noon 
one day before the public hearing. 

• Correspondence received after 5:00 PM two days before this public hearing will be saved 
in the administrative record. It will not be possible to submit written comments at the meeting. 

 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become 
part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-
mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if 
included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of 
the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to 
be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the 
secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact 
information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your 
communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee 
for further information. 
 
Contact:  
Fatema Crane, Landmarks Preservation Commission Secretary 
(510) 981-7410 | LPC@CityofBerkeley.info | 1947 Center Street, Berkeley CA 94704 

 
Request for initiation of Landmark designation on a future agenda lies within the range of action to be 
considered on each structure or property appearing at any place on the agenda. 
 
Consent Calendar: The Consent Calendar allows the Commission to take action, without discussion, 
on Agenda items for which there are no persons present who wish to speak, and no members who 
wish to discuss.  The Consent Calendar may include the following: (1) Approval of previous meeting 
minutes; (2) Items being continued to another meeting (action will be postponed to another meeting) 
or withdrawn by the applicant; and (3) Items noticed for public hearing which the Commission 
decides to move to the Consent Calendar.  The Chairperson will announce any additional items 
proposed for the Consent Calendar at the beginning of the meeting. Anyone present who wishes to 
speak against one of these items should advise the Chairperson if they request the item be pulled 
from the Consent Calendar. 

mailto:ecallow@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:LPC@CityofBerkeley.info


   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 3  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

1. ROLL CALL: Please put all cellular phones and ringers on silent during the meeting. 
 

2. EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS: In the context of adjudicative matters that come before 
the LPC, ex-parte communications are those which occur outside of the formal hearing 
process. LPC members should avoid ex-parte contacts on matters pending before the LPC 
as much as possible, as they may represent, or be perceived to represent, the receipt of 
evidence that can unfairly influence a decision on a matter before the Commission. If such 
contacts do occur, they must be placed in the record and disclosed to all interested parties 
sufficiently in advance of the decision to allow rebuttal. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT on Non-Agenda and Information Items (Three minutes per person; 
five minutes per organization, or at the discretion of the Chairperson) 

 
4. AGENDA CHANGES 

A. Consent Calendar – the Commission may consider adding Items 9, 10, and 12. 
B. Other Changes 

 
ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
5. 2200-block of Piedmont Avenue– Olmsted landscape design – Structural Alteration 

Permit (#LMSAP2019-0009)** 
Resume the public hearing and consider a request to make alterations within a portion of 
the public right-of-way that is a City Landmark site, in accordance with Berkeley Municipal 
Code (BMC) Section 3.24.200. 
 

6. 1650 Shattuck Avenue – Demolition Referral (Use Permit #ZP2020-0022) 
Resume and conclude consideration of the proposal to demolish a commercial building that 
is more than 40 years old, in accordance with BMC 23.326.070(C). 

Refer to previous materials from April 7, 2022 
 
7. 2733 Buena Vista Way – Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2022-0004) 

Hold the public hearing and consider a request to make alterations to a property that 
contains a City Landmark building, in accordance with BMC Section 3.24.200. 

Materials are pending and will be delivered as Late Communications. 
 

8. 2065 Kittredge Street – Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2021-0004)** 
Hold a public hearing, consider a request to make alterations to a property that contains a 
City Landmark building, and conduct design review for a new mixed-use project, in 
accordance with BMC Sections 3.24.200 and 23.406.070. 
 

9. 742 Grayson Street – Demolition Referral (Use Permit #ZP2021-0161)** 
Consider the proposal to demolish a complex of commercial and industrial buildings that is 
more than 40 years old, in accordance with BMC 23.326.070(C). 
 

10. 1820-1828 San Pablo Avenue – Demolition Referral (Use Permit #ZP2021-0186)** 
Consider the proposal to demolish a commercial building that is more than 40 years old, in 
accordance with BMC 23.326.070(C). 

  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%205_Staff%20Report%20linked_Attachments_2299%20Piedmont.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%205_Staff%20Report%20linked_Attachments_2299%20Piedmont.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-04-07_LPC_Item%207_with%20attachment_1650%20Shattuck.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_Staff%20Report_linked_Attachments_2065%20Kittredge.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Staff%20Report%20and%20ATT1_demo%20referrral_742%20Grayson.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC%20Staff%20Report_with%20ATT1_demo%20referrral_1820%20San%20Pablo_0.pdf


   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 4  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

 
11. AD HOC Subcommittees and Liaison Comments 

Receive opportunity reports on status of projects for which the LPC has established a 
subcommittee or liaison. (Note: Sites will come off the list annually or upon approval of a 
Certificate of Occupancy) 
 
 Members Established Annual 

Expiration 
ZAB Design Review Committee SF - - 
Rose Garden Inn SAP KC, DM, SF Dec 2021 Nov 2022 
2234 Haste Avenue SAP SF, DM Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
Grants CE, SF Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
Berkeley Rose Garden CA, PS Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
Landmarks Policies & Procedures SF, CE Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
City Projects for Landmarks and Structure of 
Merit Sites  SF, vacant Mar 2022 Feb 2023 

University of California SF, PS Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
 
12. ACTION:  Approval of Action Minutes** 

Draft May 5, 2022 Action Minutes.  
 

13. INFORMATION REPORTS Commissioners may ask for discussion to be scheduled on a 
future agenda (per Brown Act, no deliberation or final action may be taken). 

 
14. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
15. COMMISSIONER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
16. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS  

A. July 2022 LPC Meeting is Cancelled – the Commission will not meet on July 7, 
2022. 

17. FUTURE COUNCIL CALENDAR ITEMS 
A. 2328 Channing Way – Information Agenda Item re: Approval of Structural Alteration 

Permit #LMSAP2021-0002, date pending 
B. Annual Report on Commission Activities, June 28, 2022 
C. 8 Greenwood Common – Information Agenda Item re: Approval of Structural 

Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0002, June 28, 2022 
D. 2113 Kittredge Street – Information Agenda Item re: certification of the California 

Theater designation as the City Landmark #LMIN2022-0001, June 28, 2022 
 

18. POTENTIAL INITIATIONS  
The Commission may establish and maintain an ongoing list of structures, sites and areas 
having a special historical, architectural or aesthetic interest or value. After public hearings, 
the Commission may initiate landmark and historic district designations from the list.  
A. 2362 Bancroft Way-Trinity United Methodist Church (3/1/99) 
B. Berkeley High School, Building C, 1920; W. C. Hayes (LE 9/13/99) 
C. John Galen Howard Power Station, UC Campus (CO 4/3/00) 
D. H.C. Macaulay Foundry, 811 Carleton Street (4/3/00) 
E. UC Storage Station, James Plachek, Architect (4/3/00) 
F. “Kittredge Street Historic District” - 2124 Kittredge Street (Elder House and 

storefront)   

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-05-05_LPC_Item%2012_Draft%20Minutes_May%202022.pdf


   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 5  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

G. 2138 Kittredge Street (Fitzpatrick House and storefront), and 2117 Kittredge Street 
(A.H. Broad House and storefront) (JK 11/5/2001) 

H. 1842-1878 Euclid Avenue (CO 9-14-07) 
I. Berkeley High School Campus Historic District (SW 1/3/08) 
J. 2746 Garber Street (SW 3/5/09) 
K. 1901 Bonita Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
L. 1920 Bonita Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
M. 1940 Channing Way (CO 11/16/10) 
N. 1920 Haste Street (CO 11/16/10) 
O. 2414 Shattuck Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
P. Terminal Place (alley) (CO 11/16/10) 
Q. 2041 University Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
R. 2482-2498 Telegraph Avenue And 2445-2449 Dwight Way (CO 12/7/11) 
S. 2301-2315 Telegraph Avenue / 2510-2516 Bancroft Way (CO 12/7/11) 
T. 2328-2346 Telegraph Avenue / 2441-2447 Durant Avenue (CO 12/7/11) 
U. 2400-2402 Telegraph Avenue / 2486-2498 Channing Way (CO 12/7/11) 
V. 2410-2422 Telegraph Avenue (CO 12/7/11) 
W. 3049 Adeline Street (CO 3/12/12) 
X. “Manoa Historic District”- 2530    Way, 2524 Dwight Way, 2503 Regent Street, 2509 

Regent Street, 2511 Regent Street, 2515 Regent Street, 2517 Regent Street, 2506 
Dwight Way, 2502 Dwight Way/2501 Telegraph Avenue, 2512–2516 Regent 
Street/2525 Telegraph Avenue (CO 3/12/12) 

Y. 1400 Sixth Street (CO 6/7/13) 
Z. 1409 Scenic Avenue (CO 9/3/15) 
AA. 1301 Shattuck Avenue, Live Oak Park (CO 2/2/17)  
BB. 2750-2770 Marin Avenue, Pacific Lutheran Theological Seminary (LPC 5/4/17) 
CC. 100 Berkeley Square (SF 6/1/17) 
DD. 741 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17)  
EE. 745 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17) 
FF. 749 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17) 
GG. 2212 Fifth Street (CO 7/6/17; initiation failed 6/6/21) 
HH. 837 Folger Avenue (CO 7/6/17) 
II. 1517 Fourth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
JJ. 808 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
KK. 830 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
LL. 832 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
MM. 836 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
NN. 1018 Pardee Street (CO 7/6/17) 
OO. 1336 Sixth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
PP. 1345 Sixth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
QQ. 601 Ashby Avenue (PA 2/1/18)  
RR. 1013 Pardee (BO 9/6/18) 
SS. 1940 Haste Street (LPC 10/04/18; upon relocation of historic building) 
TT. 2222 Fifth Street (LPC 12/6/18)  
UU. 1631-33 Walnut Street (LPC 7/2/19) 
VV. 1601 California Street (PA 11/7/19) 
WW. 2235 Channing Way, 2240 and 2300 Durant Avenue, 2372 Ellsworth Street (LPC 

11/5/20)  
XX. 2501, 2510, 2514, 2530 and 2551 San Pablo Avenue (LPC 4/1/21) 

 



   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 6  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

19. CURRENT LAND USE PROJECTS (BMC SECTION 23.404.030(C))  

The weblink below connects to a table of all current discretionary zoning applications 
pending in the City of Berkeley.  The list is regularly updated by City staff, and is linked here 
in accordance with BMC Section 23.404.030(C) (Zoning Ordinance).  Any property from the 
online list for which a permit is being sought may be taken up at a future meeting and added 
by the Commission to the "Potential Initiations" list.  Further below are the addresses of 
projects that seek to demolish buildings (residential or commercial) over 40 years old. 
Permit applications for properties where full removal is not sought are not individually listed, 
but may be found in the on-line table. 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=62826 
 
Projects proposing demolition of buildings greater than forty years old 
A. Non-Residential Structures (BMC Section 23C.08.050) 

3031 Adeline Street ZP2018-0156 
125 – 128, 

130 and 131 Berkeley Square ZP2021-0110 
134 Berkeley Square ZP2021-0110 
701 Bancroft Way ZP2021-0096 
703 Bancroft Way ZP2021-0096 
705 Bancroft Way ZP2021-0096 

705A Bancroft Way ZP2021-0096 
747 Bancroft Way ZP2021-0096 
811 Carleton Street ZP2021-0003 

2555 College Avenue ZP2022-0019 
2942 College Avenue ZP2021-0072 
2439 Durant Avenue ZP2021-0192 
2216 Fifth Street ZP2021-0043 
2213 Fourth Street ZP2021-0043 
2220 Fourth Street ZP2021-0096 
2221 Fourth Street ZP2021-0043 
742 Grayson Street ZP2021-0161 

2128, 2130, 
2132, 2134, 

and 2136 Oxford Street ZP2021-0162 
2160, 2164, 

and 2168  Oxford Street ZP2021-0162 
1820 San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0186 
2136 San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0046 
2403 San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0220 

2603 & 2605 San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0066 
2607, 2609 and 

2611  San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0066 

2613 San Pablo Avenue ZP2021-0066 
2727 San Pablo Avenue ZP2022-0033 
1650 Shattuck Avenue ZP2020-0022 
1752 Shattuck Avenue ZP2022-0011 
2440 Shattuck Avenue ZP2020-0201 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=62826


   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 7  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

3000 Shattuck Avenue ZP2022-0046 
3031 Telegraph Avenue ZP2020-0069 
1207 Tenth Street ZP2020-0046 
2821 Tenth Street ZP2022-0038 

1708 and 
1710 University Avenue  ZP2021-0127 
2000 University Avenue ZP2020-0134 

 
B. Residential Structures 

1725 Berkeley Way ZP2021-0055 
2018 Blake Street ZP2021-0095 
1200 Dwight Way ZP2022-0028 
2212 Fifth Street ZP2021-0043 
2435 Haste Street ZP2021-0210 
1773 Oxford Street ZP2022-0062 

1915 and 
1917  Ninth Street ZP2021-0121 
776 Page Street ZP2021-0084 

 
20. ADJOURN 

 
NOTICE CONCERNING LEGAL RIGHTS 
If you object to a decision by the Landmarks Preservation Commission to approve or deny a 
designation or permit for a project, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 
1. You must appeal to the City Council within Fifteen (15) days after the Notice of Decision of the 

action of the Landmarks Preservation Commission is mailed.  It is your obligation to notify the 
Land Use Planning Division in writing to receive a Notice of Decision when it is completed. 

2. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1094.6(b), no lawsuit challenging a City Council 
decision to deny a permit or variance may be filed more than ninety (90) days after the date the 
decision becomes final, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1094.6(b), which has 
been adopted by the City. Any lawsuit not filed within that ninety (90) day period will be barred. 

3. Pursuant to Government Code, Section 65009(c)(5), no lawsuit challenging a City Council 
decision to approve (with or without conditions) a permit or variance may be filed more than 
ninety (90) days after the date the decision becomes final, as defined in Code of Civil 
Procedure, Section 1094.6(b), which has been adopted by the City.  Any lawsuit not filed within 
that ninety (90) day period will be barred. 

4. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), notice is hereby given to the applicant that 
the 90-day protest period for any fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions included in 
any permit approval begins upon final action by the City, and that any challenge must be filed 
within this 90-day period. 

5. If you believe that this decision or any condition attached to it denies you any reasonable 
economic use of the subject property, was not sufficiently related to a legitimate public purpose, 
was not sufficiently proportional to any impact of the project, or for any other reason constitutes 
a “taking” of property for public use without just compensation under the California or United 
States Constitutions, the following requirements apply: 
A.  That this belief is a basis of your appeal. 
B.  Why you believe that the decision or condition constitutes a "taking" of property as set forth 

above. 
C. All evidence and argument in support of your belief that the decision or condition constitutes 



   
Landmarks Preservation Commission AGENDA 
JUNE 2, 2022 PAGE 8  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

a “taking” as set forth above.  
If you do not do so, you will waive any legal right to claim that your property has been taken, 
both before the City Council and in court. 



L A N D M A R K S

P R E S E R V A T I O N

C O M M I S S I O N

S t a f f R e p o r t 

1947 Center Street, 2nd Fl., Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

FOR COMMISSION ACTION 
JUNE 2, 2022 

2200-block Piedmont Avenue – Olmsted landscape 
design 
Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2019-0009) to complete ADA access 
improvements within the public-right-of-way at the intersection of 
Piedmont Avenue and Bancroft Way. 

I. Application Basics

A. Land Use Designations:  Not applicable for locations within the public right-of-way

B. CEQA Determination:  categorically exempt from further environmental review pursuant to
CEQA Guidelines Section 15331 for Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation.

C. Parties Involved:
• Regulatory Entity: City of Berkeley 

Dept. of Public Works 
Berkeley, CA 94704 

• Project Architect: Matthew S. Gaber, Principal Landscape Architect 
NCE Engineering & Environmental Services 
501 Canal Blvd., Suite I 
Richmond, CA 94804 

• Project Proponent: Shraddha Navali Patil, Ph. D., Senior Planner 
Physical & Environmental Planning 
UC Berkeley Capital Strategies 
300 A&E Building 
Berkeley, CA 94720 

D. Staff Recommendation: Resume and conclude the hearing on this matter, then
consider favorable action on this request. 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 2 of 9 June 2, 2022 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map showing nearby City Landmarks & Districts 

Figure 2:  Photograph of existing conditions in project area of right-of-way (Google) 

Project Site 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE 
March 5, 2020 Page 3 of 9 
 
 

 
 

  

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 4 of 9 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

II. Background & Application Chronology 
 

The curvilinear design of Piedmont Avenue, between the transition to Gayley Road on 
the north and the intersection with Dwight Way on the south, is attributed to landscape 
architect Fredrick Law Olmsted and, as such, received City of Berkeley Landmark 
designation status in 1990. The designation Notice of Decision is provided as 
Attachment 4. 
 
On December 12, 2019, Matthew Gaber of NCE Engineering and Environmental 
Services, submitted a Structural Alteration Permit (SAP) application requesting 
permission to complete ADA access improvements for a portion of the west side of the 
2200-block of Piedmont Avenue, a City Landmark property.  On January 10, 2020, staff 
determined that the application was incomplete and required refinements, clarification of 
scope of work and additional information. On February 6, 20201, the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission (LPC/Commission) opened the hearing on this matter in 
accordance with the timely review provisions of Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 
3.24.220 for Permit Application – data and public hearing required. On February 20, 
2020, the applicant re-submitted application materials; staff determined that certain 
items remained outstanding.  
 
On March 5, 2020, the Commission resumed the hearing, received a presentation from 
the applicant, provided comments and recommendations for improvements to the 
application, and then continued the hearing off-calendar while awaiting the applicant’s 
response.  
 
In April 2022, the project proponent contacted staff to resume consideration of the 
proposal, met with two Commissioners on-site May 17, 2022 (per the Commission’s 
request in 2020), and then provided updated application materials on May 19, 2022. See 
Attachments 2 and 3 of this report.  
 
On (or just prior to) May 23, 2022, staff mailed and posted advance notice of tonight’s 
hearing, in accordance with BMC Section 3.24.230. 
 

III. Project Description 
 
The applicant proposes to upgrade the right-of-way features on the east-side of the 
2200-block of Piedmont Avenue in order to improve conditions for ADA access to the 
International House, located immediately adjacent to the project site at 2299 Piedmont 
Avenue.  In general terms, the proposed scope of work includes: 
 

o Remove the existing ADA ramp, railings and walls between the back of curb 
and the back of sidewalk  

                                                 
1 Public Hearing Notices for this hearing were posted on January 17, 2020, in accordance with the requirements 
of BMC Section 3.24.230 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE 
March 5, 2020 Page 5 of 9 
 
 

 
 

o Remove the existing sidewalk pavement, including staircases, and landscape 
features within the pedestrian right-of-way  

o Grade and reduce the existing cross-slope within the pedestrian right-of-way to 
not greater than 2% in order to achieve ADA compliance 

o Install pavement and/or decorative pavers (likely brick) throughout project area, 
thereby restoring the pedestrian pathway 

o Re-establish one ADA compliant parking space adjacent to curb 
o Re-establish an existing shuttle stop 
o Install three new lamp posts – fixtures to match existing lamp post further north 

of the project site along Piedmont Avenue 
 
The proposed improvement plan does not include plantings. 
 
The Applicant’s Statement and proposed project plans describing the project in detail 
are provided as Attachments.   

 
IV. Analysis and Rational for Recommendation 

 
Staff has identified the following relevant criteria pertinent to this project from the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (1977) and 
the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (BMC Section 3.24).  
 

A.  The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties 
defines Rehabilitation as “the act or process of making possible a compatible use for a 
property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 
features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values.”  In this case, the 
project proponent proposes to complete improvements to the subject landscape 
conditions in order to bring them closer to ADA standards for access and greater 
pedestrian mobility. 
 
The analysis below summarizes staff’s findings for this project with respect to all ten of 
the Secretary’s Standards. 
 
SOI Standard 1 
A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires 
minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships. 

 
Analysis:  The property will continue its historic use as a public right-of-way 

 
SOI Standard 2 
The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of 
distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 
characterize a property will be avoided. 

 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 6 of 9 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

Analysis:  The historic character of the Olmstead-design landscape, as 
characterized by the broad width of its curvilinear form, placement and delineation 
of auto and pedestrian pathways, and central planted medians. The proposal 
retains, preservers and does not eliminate these features.  

 
SOI Standard 3 
Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 
Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, will not be undertaken. 

 
Analysis:  The proposal does not include proposed alterations that would create 
a false sense of historical development. The proposed lamp posts are 
emblematic of period-style lighting but are contemporary and not conjectural. 

 
SOI Standard 4 
Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be 
retained and preserved. 

 
Analysis:  The overall plan of 1864 landscape design appears to be largely intact 
with few significant changes. No changes that have acquired significance in their 
own right are present or would be affect by the subject proposal. 

 
SOI Standard 5 
Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 

 
Analysis:  With respect to techniques and materials, no distinctive features, 
finishes or construction methods would be affected by the subject proposal. 

 
SOI Standard 6 
Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity 
of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will 
match the old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 
missing features will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence. 
 

Analysis:  Per the City’s standard practice for consideration of alterations to 
cultural resources, the applicant would be required to consider repair rather than 
the replacement of deteriorated historic features of this site; when the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement, then the applicant would match the old in 
design, color, texture, materials and, where possible, quality. 
 
In the case of this historic landscape, the proposal includes removing and not 
replacing existing areas of vegetation between the curb and the edge of the 
sidewalk pavement. While the layout and design of these areas likely did not date 
to the original historical period, the plantings are well-integrated in the existing 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE 
March 5, 2020 Page 7 of 9 
 
 

 
 

street conditions, reflect the City-wide right-of-way design and planting pattern, 
and have not yet been determined to contribute the accessibility challenges that 
the applicant proposed to address. 
 
Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission consider a Condition of 
Approval for this project that would require the applicant to undertake further 
study of the possible planting opportunities in coordination with Public Works staff 
and the Traffic Engineer. If the Engineers determines that landscape and/or street 
trees would be appropriate within the project area, then the applicant would be 
required to revise the landscape prior to Landmarks staff plan check approval of 
the Public Works permit of this project. See draft Condition of Approval 18. 

 
SOI Standard 7 
Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 
means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used. 
 

Analysis:  If approved, this project would be subject to a Condition of Approval that 
ensures only the gentlest measures are employed when chemical treatments are 
required. 

 
SOI Standard 8 
Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources 
must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken. 
 

Analysis:  This proposal includes grading within the project area and, if granted, 
would be subject to the City’s standard conditions of approval that require prompt 
and appropriate action to address the discovery of subsurface cultural resources. 

 
SOI Standard 9 
New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new 
work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic 
materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of 
the property and its environment. 
 

Analysis:  The proposed work includes new features in the public right-of-way such 
as ADA ramp, surface pavement, will be compatible with the historic design by 
virtue of its seamless installation, low profile and limited overall impact. These 
features would not destroy spatial relationships of the historic landscape design. 

 
SOI Standards 10 
New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 
manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 
property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 8 of 9 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

Analysis:  The proposal satisfies with standard because, if the proposed 
improvements were removed, they would not permanently impair the integrity or 
essential form of the Olmsted design. 

 
B.  Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (LPO) Review Standards and Criteria 

In order to approve a request for a SAP, the Commission must find that the proposal 
would not adversely affect the features or special character of the subject structure or 
property.  An analysis of the project with respect to the required findings of LPO is 
outlined below. 

 
BMC Section 3.24.260, Paragraph C.1 
“For applications relating to landmark sites, the proposed work shall not adversely affect 
the exterior architectural features of the landmark and, where specified in the 
designation for a publicly owned landmark, its major interior architectural features…” 
 

Analysis:  The character-defining features of the subject Olmsted landscape 
design are its curvilinear form, broad width of 100 ft., the placement and 
delineation of auto and pedestrian pathways throughout, and the central planted 
medians. While the proposal would not adversely affect any of these aspects of 
the landscape, it would eliminate all existing vegetation in the project area.   
As discussed previously in the analysis of SOI Standard 6, the removal of these 
organic features would diminish the City’s public right-of-way amenities and 
should be avoided where possible. Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission take favorable action on this proposal while requiring further study 
and review of the plan by the Public Works staff and Traffic Engineer for 
consistency with standards and practices for pedestrian access and landscape 
amenities. 

“…nor shall the proposed work adversely affect the special character or special 
historical, architectural or aesthetic interest or value of the landmark and its site, as 
viewed both in themselves and in their setting.” 
 

Analysis:  The aesthetic value of this City Landmark feature would be 
preserved, generally speaking, and could be further enhanced with the retention 
of existing or comparable landscape features. See previous analysis, above. 
 

V. Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this request for a Structural Alteration Permit pursuant to 
Section 3.24.260, and subject to the attached findings and conditions that require further 
study of planting options for the project site.  
 

  

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE 
March 5, 2020 Page 9 of 9 
 
 

 
 

 
Attachments: 

1. Recommended Findings for Approval 
2. Proposed Project Plans, received May 17, 2022 
3. Applicant Statement, received May 23, 2022 
4. LPC Notice of Decision for Piedmont Avenue, dated February 22, 1990 

 
Prepared by: Fatema Crane, Senior Planner, fcrane@cityofberkeley.info; 510-981-7410 

ITEM 5 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_ATT1_Findings%20%26%20Conditions_2299%20Piedmont%20ROW.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_ATT2_Project%20Plans_2299%20Piedmont%20ROW.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_ATT3_Applicant%20Statement_2299%20Piedmont%20ROW.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_ATT4_NOD%20for%20Public%20Right%20of%20Way_2299%20Piedmont.pdf
mailto:fcrane@cityofberkeley.info


A t t a c h m e n t 1 

D R A F T  F i n d i n g s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s 

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: lpc@cityofberkeley.info 

2200-block Piedmont Avenue 

Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2019-0009

Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2019-0009 to complete ADA access 
improvements in the public right-of-way at the intersection of Piedmont 
Avenue and Bancroft Way. 

FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER CEQA 
1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of
Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines (“Historic
Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation”).  Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA
Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an
environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are no
significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a scenic highway, and (e) the project
site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code Section
65962.5.

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS 
Regarding the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission of the City of Berkeley makes the following findings:

1. The property will continue its historic use as a public right-of-way.

2. The historic character of the Olmstead-design landscape, as characterized by the broad
width of its curvilinear form, central planting median and auto and pedestrian pathways.
The proposal retains, preservers and does not eliminate these features.

3. The proposal does not include proposed alterations that would create a false sense of
historical development. The proposed lamp posts are emblematic of period-style lighting
but are contemporary and not conjectural.

4. The overall plan of 1864 landscape design appears to be largely intact with few significant
changes. No changes that have acquired significance in their own right are present or
would be affect by the subject proposal.

5. With respect to techniques and materials, no distinctive features, finishes or construction
methods would be affected by the subject proposal.

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 2 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

6. As conditioned herein, the applicant shall be required to consider repair rather than the 
replacement of deteriorated historic features of this site; when the severity of deterioration 
requires replacement, then the applicant shall match the old in design, color, texture, 
materials and, where possible, quality. With respect to features of this historic landscape 
design, the applicant will be asked to consider retaining or providing comparable areas of 
planted landscaping between the curb and edge of sidewalk. 
 

7. The applicant does not propose chemical or physical treatments. However, standard 
conditions of Structural Alteration Permit approval would require that any chemical or 
physical treatments be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 
 

8. This proposal includes grading within the project area and is subject to the City’s standard 
conditions of approval that require prompt and appropriate action to address the discovery 
of subsurface cultural resources. 
 

9. The proposed work includes new features in the public right-of-way such as an ADA ramp 
and surface pavement, will be compatible with the historic design by virtue of its seamless 
installation, low profile and limited overall impact. These features will not destroy spatial 
relationships of the historic landscape design. 
 

10. If the proposed improvements were removed, they would not permanently impair the 
integrity or essential form of the Olmsted design. 

 
FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER LANDMARK PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 
1. As required by Section 3.24.260 of the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance, the 

Commission finds that proposed work is appropriate for and consistent with the purposes 
of the Ordinance, and will preserve and enhance the characteristics and features specified 
in the designation for this property.  Specifically: 

A. The character-defining features of the subject Olmsted landscape design are its 
curvilinear form, broad width of 100 ft., the placement and delineation of auto and 
pedestrian pathways throughout, and the central planted medians. As conditioned 
herein, these features would not be adversely affected by the request for ADA access 
improvements. 
 

STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Landmarks 
Preservation Ordinance, apply to this Permit: 
 

1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans 

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set 
submitted for a building permit pursuant to this Permit, under the title ‘Structural 
Alteration Permit Conditions’. Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is 
not of sufficient size to list all of the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 3 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-1/2” 
by 11” sheets are not acceptable. 

 
2. Plans and Representations Become Conditions  

Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any 
additional information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the 
proposed structure or manner of operation submitted with an application or during the 
approval process are deemed conditions of approval. 

 
3. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations 

The approved use and/or construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable 
City Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to 
construction, the applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the 
Zoning Adjustments Board or Zoning Officer, Building and Safety Division, Public Works 
Department and other affected City divisions and departments. 

 
4. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (Section 23.404.060.C) 

A.  A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised when a 
valid City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has lawfully 
commenced. 

B.  A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is not exercised 
within one year of its issuance, except that permits for construction or alteration of 
structures or buildings may not be declared lapsed if the permittee has:  (1) applied 
for a building permit; or, (2) made substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building 
permit and begin construction, even if a building permit has not been issued and/or 
construction has not begun. 

 
5. Indemnification Agreement 

The applicant shall hold the City of Berkeley and its officers harmless in the event of any 
legal action related to the granting of this Permit, shall cooperate with the City in defense 
of such action, and shall indemnify the City for any award of damages or attorneys fees 
that may result. 
 

6. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources 
 
In the event that cultural resources of Native American origin are identified during 
construction, all work within 50 feet of the discovery shall be redirected. The project 
applicant and project construction contractor shall notify the City Planning Department 
within 24 hours.  The City will contact any tribes who have requested consultation under 
AB 52, as well as contact a qualified archaeologist, to evaluate the resources and situation 
and provide recommendations.  If it is determined that the resource is a tribal cultural 
resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and 
implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native American 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 4 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

groups. If the resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts 
to the resource and to address tribal concerns may be required. 

 
7. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or 

construction) 
 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique 
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted. 
Therefore: 
A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources 
shall be halted and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a 
qualified archaeologist, historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the 
find. 

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent 
and/or lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the 
appropriate avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate 
determination to be made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials 
recovered shall be subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or 
a report prepared by the qualified professional according to current professional 
standards. 

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the 
project applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of 
factors such as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other 
considerations. 

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data 
recovery) shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while 
mitigation measures for cultural resources are carried out. 

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report 
on the findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center. 

 
8. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction) 

 
In the event that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-
disturbing activities, all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall 
be contacted to evaluate the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 (e)(1). If the County Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the City shall contact the California Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c), and 
all excavation and site preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find 
until appropriate arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not 
feasible, then an alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe 
required to resume construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of 
significance and avoidance measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously. 

 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 5 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

9. Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or 
construction) 
 
In the event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during 
construction, excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted 
until the discovery is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate 
Paleontology standards [SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the 
discovery as needed, evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the 
find. The paleontologist shall notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that 
would be followed before construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the 
City determines that avoidance is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an 
excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the project on the qualities that make the 
resource important, and such plan shall be implemented. The plan shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval. 

 
 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS  
The following additional conditions are attached to this Permit: 

 
10. The proposed project is approved as shown on the drawings dated “received May 17, 

2022” subject to the conditions herein. 

11. No changes can be made to these approved plans without prior approval. 

12. PUBLIC WORKS PERMIT – This Structural Alteration Permit approval is contingent upon 
Public Works permit approval. 

13. Repair and replacement of character-defining features.  Deteriorated historic features 
shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires 
replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old or historic feature 
in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features 
will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence. 

 
14. Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, shall be called out in the scope or work for 

any building permit for this project and shall be undertaken using the gentlest means 
possible. Treatments causing damage to historic materials shall not be used. 

15. Prior to Landmarks plan checker sign-off of the Building Permit set of drawings, the 
applicant shall submit color and materials information for review and approval by 
Landmarks staff, in coordination with the LPC Chair as needed. 

16. Applicant shall submit a separate application for the signage.  It is not included in this 
permit. 

17. Prior to Landmarks plan checker sign-off of the building permit set of drawings, the 
applicant shall submit lighting details showing all existing and proposed site and building 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 6 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

lighting. Exterior lighting, including for signage, shall be downcast and not cause glare on 
the public right-of-way and adjacent parcels. 

18. LANDSCAPE PLANS – Prior to Landmarks plan checker sign-off of the Building Permit 
set of drawings, the applicant shall revise the landscape plan to include areas of new 
plantings and, where possible, street trees within the traditional landscape strip between 
the curb and edge of sidewalk. The revised landscape plan must call out the number, 
location, and species of all proposed plantings, and which existing plantings shall be 
removed. The applicant shall provide irrigation for all landscaped areas or provide drought 
tolerant plant palette. This shall be called out on Landscape building permit drawings. 

19. The applicant shall provide irrigation for all landscaped areas. This shall be called out on 
Landscape building permit drawings. 

20. All curbs and curb cuts shall be constructed per the standards and specifications of the 
Public Works Department. Curb cuts no longer utilized shall be restored per the Public 
Works Department specifications. 

21. The applicant shall be responsible for identifying and securing all applicable permits from 
the Building and Safety Division and all other affected City divisions/departments prior to 
the start of work. 

22. The applicant is responsible for complying with all the above conditions. Failure to comply 
with any condition could result in construction work being stopped, issuance of citations, as 
well as further review by the Landmarks staff, which may modify or impose additional 
conditions, or revoke approval. 

23. All building permit drawings and subsequent construction shall substantially conform to the 
approved plans as outlined in Condition #1. Any modifications must be reviewed by the 
Landmarks plan checker to determine whether the modification requires approval. 

24. The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its 
officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, 
judgments or other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness and 
consultant fees and other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting 
from or caused by, or alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval 
associated with the project.  The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or 
administrative challenge, referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, 
stay or otherwise rescind any or all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any 
environmental determination made for the project and granting any permit issued in 
accordance with the project.  This indemnity includes, without limitation, payment of all 
direct and indirect costs associated with any action specified herein.  Direct and indirect 
costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, expert witness and consultant 
fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have the right to select counsel to 
represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action specified in this 
condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the Applicant of 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

2200-BLOCK PIEDMONT AVENUE STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT-DRAFT Findings and Conditions 
Page 7 of 7 LMSAP#2019-0009 

 

 

any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification under these 
conditions of approval.    

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



International  House  
Structural  Alteration  Permit  

#LMSAP  2019‐0009  

PROPOSED PIEDMONT AVENUE ADA IMPROVEMENTS  

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
0Existing Non ADA Compliant Areas

Slope at Shuttle Stops does not 
comply with ADA standards

Non compliant ADA parking space-
No level exit area from vehicle

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
1Existing Non ADA Compliant Areas

Landing for stairs and ramp do 
not comply with ADA and are 
within the street

Landing for stairs is within 
the street

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



Existing Conditions

NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
2

Existing Tree

Accessible Parking 
Space

 Master Plan

Accessible Path

Lobby

Cafe

Property Line

Street Light

New Sidewalk Brick Paving

Curb Ramp

Ex. Power Pole

Shuttle Stop

B
an

cr
o

ft
 W

ay

Se
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a

Piedmont 
Avenue

Existing Tree

THIS AREA SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Curb Ramp
Curb Ramp

Curb Ramp

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
3Improvement Plans

Street Light to 
match existing on 
Piedmont Avenue

Brick by McNear 
Brick and Block
Commercial Series
Style: McNear Red

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements

Patio

4

Section AA

Section BB

B
B

A
AProperty Line Street Light

Accessible Ramp

Property Line

Sidewalk

Piedmont 
Avenue

Property Line

Sidewalk

Piedmont 
Avenue

Accessible Parking 
Space

Sidewalk

Curb Ramp

Cafe

THIS AREA SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Sections

Accessible 
Parking 

7’-6”6’-2”

6’-6” 7’-6”

Brick

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
5

C
C

Section CC

Sections

Property Line

Cafe

Property Line

Sidewalk

Piedmont Avenue

Accessible Ramp

Street Lights

Curb Ramp

THIS AREA SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Sidewalk

14’

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



NTS

May 17th, 2022
L1. 

Piedmont Ave.  ADA Improvements
6

D
D

Section DD

Sections

Property Line

Shuttle Stop

Sidewalk

Property Line

Sidewalk

Piedmont 
Ave

THIS AREA SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Planting Area

Shuttle 
Stop

11’

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 



International House, UC Berkeley 
Structural  Alteration Permit 

#LMSAP 2019-0009 
10 May 2022 

STRUCTUAL ALTERATION PERMIT (#LMSAP 2019-0009)  
International House Proposed ADA Improvements within the Public-Right-of-Way 
at the intersection of Piedmont Avenue and Bancroft Way  

PROJECT STATEMENT 
1.0 Project Background 

The International House has undertaken a design approach to address a multitude of public safety, ADA 
compliance, operational constraints, maintenance issues and code issues that currently exist within the 
Public-Right-of-Way in front of the International House.  

The goals of the project are to 

• Integrate ADA access more gracefully into the streetscape
• Continue to provide an ADA accessible shuttle stop
• Create ADA compliant sidewalks
• Construct the existing ADA parking space as a compliant ADA parking space
• Underground utilities
• Increase pedestrian lighting
• Create wider sidewalks to accommodate the high volume of pedestrians
• Reduce maintenance costs
• Increase pedestrian safety

This Structural Alteration Permit (SAP) application proposes to complete ADA access improvements for a 
portion of the west side of the 2200-block of Piedmont Avenue, a City Landmark property. The Public-
Right-of-Way ADA Improvements are part of a larger project undertaken by the International House to 
renovate the International House’s front entry. Most the front entry renovations are outside of the 
Public-Right-of-Way and are not located within the Landmarked Piedmont Avenue streetscape or under 
the jurisdiction of the City of Berkeley.  

Working collaboratively with multiple departments within the City of Berkeley (Public Works, Fire, 
Planning and Transportation), the University of California, the Department of the State Architecture and 
the International House staff, the project team created multiple options for this constrained site. The 
submitted plan represents the preference of the City of Berkeley’s Fire Department.  

Upon completion of the project, the front entry of the International House and the Piedmont Avenue 
streetscape will provide a multitude of benefits to the public, support a vibrant, highly accessible arrival 
experience and feature a new streetscape that is contextual with the historic roadway and architecture 
of the International House.  

Update on Application Submittal and Previous LPC Hearing 

The Landmarks Preservation Commission reviewed the Structural Alteration Permit (SAP) application 
during the March 5, 2020 LPC hearing and provided feedback. Since then, the project is under review.  
The university has revised the design and project plans taking into consideration the comments from the 

Land Use Planning

Received

May 23, 2022

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 1 of 4



International House, UC Berkeley 
Structural  Alteration Permit 

#LMSAP 2019-0009 
10 May 2022 

LPC. The University’s Capital Strategies has taken the lead on the pending 2019 application submittal to 
the LPC and requests final action at the June 2 meeting.  In addition, on May 17, 2022 based on LPC’s 
feedback, UC organized a site visit with Commissioner Twu and Commissioner Finacom at the public-
right-of-way project site. The purpose of the site visit was to review the revised plans and learn more 
about UC's proposed access improvements and the site conditions. The University staff addressed the 
questions from the commissioners and provided background information regarding the project.  

Early History of Piedmont Avenue 

The conception of Piedmont Avenue began during the master planning of the College of California (the 
future UC Berkeley) in the 1860’s. Landscape architect Frederick Law Olmsted was commissioned to 
generate a comprehensive study of the campus. The Olmsted Plan for the College of California (1865) 
illustrated the origins of the east-west axis of the Central Glade, embraced by the north and south forks 
of Strawberry Creek. An integral design element was Piedmont Way, Olmsted's first landscaped 
boulevard, running north-south that became a model for several of his residential projects around the 
country. Olmsted’s master plan was conceptual and was not outlined in detail or supported by 
construction documents. The ‘overarching intention’ of the master plan was ‘to create a framework in 
which others could later make decisions’. The most detailed plan of his vision was a parcel map from 
1868 that includes lot lines and right of ways but no indications of medians, divided roadways, 
sidewalks, curbs or plantings.  

The curvilinear design of Piedmont Avenue, between the transition to Gayley Road on the north and the 
intersection with Dwight Way on the south, is attributed to Fredrick Law Olmsted and, as such, received 
City of Berkeley Landmark designation status in 1990. 

Existing Conditions 

Over the course of the last 150 years, Piedmont Avenue has seen many physical and demographic 
changes. Piedmont Avenue now possesses a broad range of residential uses, functions as a major 
transportation route and must comply with regulatory requirements. Currently the Avenue supports a 
diverse and growing student body traveling along it with a wide array of devices from electric scooters 
to mopeds, strives to accommodate ride sharing services, provides access for a wide range of 
emergency, service and shuttle vehicles, transforms from a vehicle dominated roadway to a pedestrian 
friendly environment during special events and must seamlessly incorporate ADA accessibility. 

2.0 Project Description 

The project proposes to upgrade the Public-right-of-way of the area in order to improve the conditions 
for ADA access to the International House located immediately adjacent to the project site at 2299 
Piedmont Avenue. The scope of work includes the following: 

1. Remove the existing ADA ramp, railings and walls between the back of curb and back of
sidewalk

2. Remove the existing non-compliant staircases within the Right of Way
3. Remove and reconstruct the existing sidewalk to increase its width from 6’ to 8’

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 2 of 4



International House, UC Berkeley 
Structural  Alteration Permit 

#LMSAP 2019-0009 
10 May 2022 

4. Remove the existing soil in the parkway adjacent to the existing ADA parking space, add a curb
wall and new sidewalk to align with the top of curb to create an ADA Compliant landing for the
existing parking space

5. Lower the elevation of the existing sidewalk to make it level with the top of curb
6. Reconstruct the existing shuttle stop to make it ADA compliant by removing the existing

sidewalk, constructing a new sidewalk at a lower elevation aligned with the top of curb and
provide a 4’ wide landing for passengers

7. Install three pedestrian pole lights per the City of Berkeley’s standards
8. Install brick paving at the northwest and southwestern edge of the public-right-way
9. Reconstruct the existing curb along its current alignment to increase storm water flow capacity

along the Avenue
Attachment 1 provides the set of plans to illustrate the existing conditions and proposed project. 

Project Rationale 

The rationale for the project is public safety, compliance to ADA, aesthetic enhancement, integrating 
different modes of transportation and to recognize trends of more active uses of the public realm.  
Specific rationales include:  

• Pedestrian Safety: Pedestrians currently crossing Piedmont Avenue enter or exit the existing
accessible ramp or stairs directly into the roadway. By code there must be protected landings at
the bottom of both ramps and stairs.

• Accessible landings on the sidewalk for both the existing ADA parking space and the shuttle
space. Currently there are no accessible landings.

• Installing brick paving, instead of landscape strips or a line of trees accommodates increased
pedestrian traffic. Brick paving is consistent with other sidewalks along Piedmont Avenue.
During special events such as football games, Piedmont Avenue is closed to vehicular traffic
before Bancroft Way. The sidewalks, ramps and stairs in front of the I-House must
accommodate large crowds and emergency access. Currently there is not enough room for
pedestrians to walk along the sidewalk, pedestrians can trip or fall on the irregular
pavements/curbs. Emergency providers have a very constrained space to provide direct access
to Gayley Road and their command center is typically located within the International House’s
driveway.

• Currently the I-House streetscape is composed of a range of walls, railings, signs, over-head
utilities and plantings. The proposed improvements will create a harmonious composition that
reflects the unique architectural character and pedestrian scale of I-House and Piedmont
Avenue.

Project Benefits 

The proposed renovations will provide a multitude of safety and aesthetic benefits to the public and 
community.  

1. Increase pedestrian safety by eliminating conflicting pedestrian access points into roadway
2. Provide an ADA compliant shuttle stop, parking space and curb ramps, guaranteeing universal

access for all
3. Remove a confusing and unpleasant system of ramps and walls within the right-of-way
4. Underground overhead utilities for public safety, removing visually intrusive elements

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 3 of 4



International House, UC Berkeley 
Structural  Alteration Permit  

#LMSAP 2019-0009 
10 May 2022  

5. Provide pedestrian scaled lighting that will increase safety
6. Accommodate a range of service, emergency and transportation uses while removing conflicts
7. Increase the width of the sidewalks to accommodate increased pedestrian traffic and activities

FINDINGS 

Compliance with the CITY OF BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODES CHAPTER 3.24 

The proposed renovations of the existing Piedmont Avenue streetscape in front of the I-House are 
warranted per section 3.24.280 of the Berkeley Municipal Code which states that 
‘None of the provisions of this chapter shall be construed to prevent any measures of construction, 
alteration or demolition necessary to correct or abate the unsafe or dangerous condition of any 
structure, other feature, or part thereof, which such condition has been declared unsafe or dangerous by 
the Planning and Community Development Department or the Fire Department, and where the proposed 
measures have been declared necessary, by such department or departments, to correct the said 
condition; provided, however, that only such work as is reasonably necessary to correct the unsafe or 
dangerous condition may be performed pursuant to this section. ‘  

As noted previously in this Applicant Statement, the existing stairs, accessible ramp, shuttle stop, and 
accessible parking space are non-compliant with ADA and are an unsafe and dangerous condition. The 
applicant seeks to rectify this condition by constructing ADA compliant facilities within the public right of 
way.  

Attachment 1: Proposed Project Plans and Images, Piedmont Ave. ADA Improvements 

ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 4 of 4



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 1 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 2 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 3 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 4 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 5 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 6 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 7 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 8 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 9 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 10 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 11 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 12 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 13 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 14 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 15 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 16 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 17 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 18 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 19 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 20 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 21 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 22 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 23 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 24 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 25 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 26 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 27 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 28 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 29 of 30



ITEM 5. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 30 of 30



PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE FRONT OF INTERNATIONAL HOUSE IN PAST ERAS

Presented here are several postcard views of the front of International House showing the 
original or early conditions and configuration of the entrance stairways and plazas, the 
landscaping, and the relationship to public street / Piedmont Avenue. Most of these postcards 
are undated but the first one was mailed in 1936, within six years of I-House opening, so it most 
likely shows original conditions. The others all most likely date no later than the 1950s.

ITEM 5. INSERT 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 1 of 3



ITEM 5. INSERT 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 2 of 3



ITEM 5. INSERT 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 3 of 3



L A N D M A R K S

P R E S E R V A T I O N

C O M M I S S I O N

S t a f f R e p o r t 

1947 Center Street, 2nd Fl., Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: lpc_@cityofberkeley.info

FOR REVIEW PENDING FINAL ACTION 
JUNE 2, 2002 

2065 Kittredge Street – Shattuck Hotel
Preliminary review of Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2021-0004) to 
partially demolish the rear portion of the Shattuck Hotel and to completely 
demolition the 1926 and 1959 Hink’s department store expansions; and to 
construct a new multi-story, mixed-use building on the site, located in the 
Downtown.

I. Application Basics

A. CEQA Determination:  pending.

B. Parties Involved
• Applicant & Property Owner Representative:

William Shrader, Contact 
CA Student Living Berkeley, LLC 
Chicago, IL 

• Project Architect: Niles Bolton Associates
Atlanta, GA 

• Historical Resource Consultant:
Caitlin Hibma, Architectural Historian 
Left Coast Architectural History 
Richmond, CA 

C. Recommendation: Hold a hearing and receive a presentation from the 
applicant; provide comments and direction to applicant as 
needed; and continue hearing while awaiting responses. 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 2 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map highlighting nearby City Landmarks 
   

 
 

 
 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 3 of 13 
 
 

 
 

Figure 2. Site Diagram by Rincon Consultants & Architectural Resources Group 
 
 

 
  

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 4 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

Figure 3. Proposed North Elevation at Allston Way (Niles Bolton Associates)  
 

 
 
 
Figure 4.  Proposed South Elevation at Kittredge Street (Niles Bolton Associates) 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 5 of 13 
 
 

 
 

 
Figure 5.  Proposed West Elevation at Harold Way (Niles Bolton Associates) 
 

 
 
 
Figure 6. Project Rendering at corner of Allston & Harold Way (Niles Bolton Associates) 
 

 
 

 
  

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 6 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

 
II. Background 
  

The subject property is a single parcel that encompasses an entire City block in 
Downtown Berkeley with street frontage on Allston Way (north), Shattuck Avenue (east), 
Kittredge Street (south) and Harold Way (west).  It features the City Landmark Shattuck 
Hotel building with the main address of 2060 Allston Way. See Figure 2, above. 
 
The Shattuck Hotel site was designated a Landmark in 1983, and it features four 
primary components: the original hotel building constructed in 1910; 1913 hotel 
expansion and Hink’s Department store addition facing Shattuck Avenue and Kittredge 
Street; 1926 Hink’s expansion facing Kittredge and Harold Way; and the 1959 Hink’s 
addition facing Harold Way and Allston Way. Only the original hotel and its 1926 
expansion are included in the City’s 1983 designation, however a subsequent evaluation 
found that the 1959 addition possesses historical value and, therefore, it has cultural 
resource status pursuant to CEQA along with the early building. See Table 1, below. 
 
In 2015, the City adopted an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and approved a project 
to demolish the rear addition of the 1913 Shattuck Hotel building as well as the entire 
1926 and 1959 additions, and to construct a new, 18-story mixed-use building.  The 
entitlement was filed under the 2211 Harold Way address and included both a Use 
Permit (13-10000010) and a Structural Alteration Permit (13-40000002).  The approved 
project did not commence or receive a building permit, and the Use Permit and SAP 
entitlements expired in 2020. 

 
Table 1. Historic Resource Status & 2015 EIR Findings for the Shattuck Hotel site 

 

Year 
Built Description Designer 

City 
Landmark 

(designed 
1983) 

Cultural 
Resource 

CEQA 
Scope of 

Work 
2015 EIR 
Findings 

1910 
& 

1912 

Shattuck Hotel & 
Restaurant Wing 

Kidder & 
McCullough
(builders) 

Yes Yes No change - 

1913 

Major hotel 
expansion, including a 

new Hink’s 
department store 

Benjamin 
G. 

McDougall 
Yes Yes 

Partial 
demolition 

of rear 
portion of 

hotel 
building 

- 

1926 

Hink’s department 
store expansion 

(south side, facing 
Kittredge) 

Walter 
Ratcliff, Jr. No Yes Demolition Significant & 

Unavoidable 

1959 

Hink’s department 
store expansion 

(west side, facing 
Harold/Allston) 

Schubart & 
Freidman No No Demolition - 

 
 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 7 of 13 
 
 

 
 

On January 5, 2022 a new applicant submitted the subject Structural Alteration Permit 
and a Use Permit (ZP2021-0193) for the same scope of demolition but with a new 
proposal for an eight-story, mixed-use building in the same footprint as the previous 
project; the new proposal features 188 student housing units and a commercial tenant 
space on the corner of Allston and Harold Way.  
 

III. Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with BMC Section 3.24.200 of the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance 
and BMC Section 23.406.070 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Landmarks Preservation 
Commission (LPC) must grant approval of the proposed demolition and complete 
Design Review for the new development. A favorable outcome must precede the Zoning 
Adjustments Board’s (ZAB) consideration of the proposal. If ZAB approves the project, 
then LPC would conduct Final Design Review, in accordance with the City’s established 
practice. More information about the pending application may be found on the City’s 
website, linked here: 
 

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx 
 

For both of the pending discretionary applications, the City would rely on the 2015 EIR 
for a larger development proposal at the subject site and anticipates preparing an 
Addendum outlining the relevance of the previous assessments of potential 
environmental of impacts. 
 
This proposal is subject to the Housing Crisis Act, Senate Bill 330, which seeks to boost 
housing production throughout the State. It focuses on urbanized areas and expedies 
the approval process, suspends or eliminates development restrictions, and limits the 
number of public meetings. Under these circumstances, the City may hold a total of two 
public meetings to complete LPC SAP review.  

 
 
IV. Project Description 
 

The applicant proposes to demolish the rear portion of the Shattuck Hotel building and 
the entire 1926 and 1959 Hink’s department store building expansions, and the 
construct an 8-story mixed-use building containing a total of 118 dwelling units for 
students; see Table 2, below. 

  

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx


   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 8 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

 
                   Table 2. Proposed Scope of SAP Work for 2065 Kittredge Street 

 

Site Location Designer 
City 

Landmark 
(designed 

1983) 

Cultural 
Resource 

CEQA 
Proposed 

Scope of Work 

Shattuck Hotel & 
Restaurant Wing 

Kidder & 
McCullough 
(builders) 

Yes Yes No change 

Major hotel expansion, 
including a new Hink’s 

department store 

Benjamin G. 
McDougall Yes Yes 

 Partial demolition of 
rear portion of hotel 
building 

Hink’s department store 
expansion 

(south side, facing 
Kittredge) 

Walter 
Ratcliff, Jr. No Yes • Complete 

demolition 
 

• Construct new, 8-
story, 118-unit 
mixed use building 

Hink’s department store 
expansion 

(west side, facing 
Harold/Allston) 

Schubart & 
Freidman No No 

 
The Project Plans, Applicant Statement and analysis of the compliance with the 
Rehabilitations Standards of the Secretary of the Interior are provided as Attachments to 
this report and contain the necessary details about the proposal, scope of work and 
preservation considerations; please see Attachments. 

 
 
V. Issues and Analysis 
 

Staff has identified several discussion topics and relevant criteria pertinent to this project 
from the City’s established design review practices, Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
for the Treatment of Historic Properties (1977) and the Landmarks Preservation 
Ordinance (BMC Section 3.24).  Each is outlined below with special attention to those 
that are necessary for preliminary review and require input from the Commission at this 
time. 

 
A. Design Review Committee Referral – April 21, 2022 

Staff referred the proposed project to the Design Review Committee for comments on 
the design of the new building and its adherence to the Downtown Design Guidelines as 
well as consistency with the City’s established practices for design review. The 
Committee provided comments and recommendations for improvements to the project 
design, and the applicant made revisions accordingly.  The DRC’s recommendations 
and the applicant’s responses are summarized in Table 3, below. 

 
 
 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 9 of 13 
 
 

 
 

 
Table 3. Design Review Committee Referral – Recommendations for Improvements 
 

Design Review Committee Comment – April 2022 Response? Refer to 
Project Plans 

Neighborhood Context 
1. Rethink the Kittredge façade. This should be a great 

building across from the Main Berkeley Library. ✓ A3.002 a & b; 
A3.201 

2. At LPC, show how this design relates to the library Pending 
3. Although there were positive comments for the 

Massing and the Allston elevation, the Kittredge 
elevation needs more development, more detail, and 
more reference to the Library. 

✓ A3.002 a & b; 
A3.201 

4. When presenting at LPC, show where Strawberry 
Creek is in relation to this parcel. Pending 5. Recommend presenting a photomontage from the 
Campanile when this comes to LPC. 

Building Design 
6. Allston façade needs more development so it feels 

more ‘Berkeley’ and less corporate. ✓ A3-201 & 202 

7. Bring more regularity to the façade, as well as more 
detail overall, especially on the south elevation.   ✓ 

A3.002 a & b; 
A3.201 

8. There may be too much variety of windows  ✓ 
9. There appears to be too few windows, especially on 

the south elevation. ✓ 

10. White panel bay on Kittredge by the hotel appears to 
come down too low. ✓ 

11. Look at Shattuck Hotel corners at the roof line where 
they are emphasized – this reference may help. ✓ 

12. Consider any movie theater graphics that could be 
incorporated into the design Pending 

Colors & Materials 
13. Look at alternate materials instead of fiber cement 

panels, like stone cladding. ✓ A3-305 

14. Brick may not be the right material.  A warm, detailed 
material does help to tie the block back to the historic 
hotel on the other corner, but the arches may not be 
working. 

✓ A3.002 a & b 

15. Dark colors are not as successful as a lighter color 
palette. ✓ 

See all 
elevations, A3-

305 
16. Recommend more glass or green wall at the alley 

elevation Pending 

Landscape 
17. Courtyard is a missed opportunity across from the 

library.  The Courtyard should feel more ‘Berkeley’. ✓ 

L1 18. Planters are too solid and central in the Main entry 
plaza, making it difficult to enter.  It’s important to have 
places to sit. 

✓ 

19. Plaza needs more details, texture, and materiality. ✓ L1 
20. Something special should happen at the main 

courtyard on Kittredge. ✓ L1 

 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 10 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

Additionally, Design Review staff found that the applicant successfully responded to 
these directives with detailed landscape information, lightened color palette, and two 
options to address concerns about the Kittredge Street façade’s base cornice as well as 
a more organized façade. 
 
The Commission may consider this information and assess whether the responses are 
adequate or require further refinement. 
 

B.    Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties 
The revised project design appears to align with all of the Secretary of the Interior’s 
(SOI) Standards for Rehabilitation, as summarized in the analysis of the project’s 
Architectural Historian; see Attachment 3. Additionally, staff believes that the project 
would adhere to the Secretary’s guidance that is specific to new construction that occurs 
on historical resource sites. The parameters that are directly applicable to the proposal 
for 2065 Kittredge appear below and are accompanied by a brief discussion. 
 
SOI Guidelines for Successful New Construction on Historic Sites 
SOI Guidelines - Historic Character:  Related new construction – including buildings, 
driveways, parking lots, landscape improvements and other new features – must not 
alter the historic character of a property. A property’s historic function must be evident 
even if there is a change of use. 
 

Analysis: Demolition is proposed for the two buildings that are excluded from the 
City’s Landmark designation and not found to have significance to Berkeley. The 
partial demolition of the rear portion of the Shattuck Hotel building is limited and 
would not affect the architectural design and distinguishing features of the building’s 
Mission Revival design. Therefore, the proposal would not affect the property’s 
historic character and its historic function as a hotel and commercial building would 
remain evident and unchanged. 

 
SOI Guidelines - Placement of New Construction:  The location of new construction 
should be considered carefully in order to follow the setbacks of historic buildings and to 
avoid blocking their primary elevations. New construction should be placed away from or 
at the side or rear of historic buildings and must avoid obscuring, damaging, or 
destroying character-defining features of these buildings or the site. 
 

Analysis: The proposed location of the new, multi-story building at the rear of the 
Shattuck Hotel aligns with this guidance and does not obscure primary facades or 
elements of the Hotel building. 

 
SOI Guidelines - Context & Setting:  Protecting the historic setting and context of a 
property, including the degree of open space and building density, must always be 
considered when planning new construction on an historic site. This entails identifying 
the formal or informal arrangements of buildings on the site, and whether they have a 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 11 of 13 
 
 

 
 

distinctive urban, suburban, or rural character. For example, a historic building 
traditionally surrounded by open space must not be crowded with dense development. 
 

Analysis: The proposal to remove the 1926 and 1959 building additions at the rear 
of the Hotel and to replace them with a new, multi-story building in the same 
footprint would maintain the existing built context for the Hotel and preserve the 
formal relationship between the Hotel and other structures on the site. 

 
SOI Guidelines - Compatibility & Form:  As with new additions, the massing, size, scale, 
and architectural features of new construction on the site of a historic building must be 
compatible with those of the historic building.  
 

Analysis: The proposed new building would feature greater mass and slightly 
greater height compared to the historic Hotel building. However, the new building 
would not be visible from Shattuck Avenue on the east elevation of the Hotel, and 
would be separated from the Hotel by an open alley on Allston Street side (north 
elevation) as well as by a building “hyphen” on the Kittredge Street side (south 
elevation). These spatial breaks would serve to definitively distinguish the Hotel 
from its proposed, new abutting neighbor.  
 
With respect to potential compatibility, the new building features a base, middle, 
and top, which reflect a traditional building façade composition and aligns 
successfully with the Hotel façade.  This composition is further emphasized by the 
new building’s selection of colors and materials, which harmonize with the Mission 
Revival tones of the hotel.   The new building design, including the revised window 
styles, exterior wall recesses, and open space features, would work well with the 
adjacent Hotel structure as well as with the larger Downtown neighborhood. 

 
SOI Guidelines - Compatibility & Visibility:  When visible and in close proximity to historic 
buildings, the new construction must be subordinate to these buildings. 
 

Analysis: The proposed new building would not be subordinate to the Hotel, owing 
to its height and overall size. Staff findings that is condition would be appropriate in 
this case where the resource is located in a central Downtown neighborhood, 
which has been explicitly zoned for increased dwelling unit density and 
development.  

 
SOI Guidelines - Compatibility & Differentiation:  New construction should also be 
distinct from the old and must not attempt to replicate historic buildings elsewhere on 
site and to avoid creating a false sense of historic development. 

 
Analysis: The new building has been designed in a contemporary style with a 
contrasting roof line, parapet walls and current materials that are both reflective of 
and discernably unlike the Mission Revival building details. The architectural style 
of the new building would not create a false sense of historical development at the 
site or in the Downtown. 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
2065 KITTREDGE STREET LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Page 12 of 13 June 2, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

 
C. Suggested Discussion Topics 

At tonight’s hearing, the Commission will conduct the first of a two-part LPC review of the 
pending development proposal, which is subject to a limited number of hearings in 
accordance with state provisions for streamlined-review of housing projects (SB 330).  
 
Staff suggests that the Commission consider the proposed project design, its potential to 
adversely affect the architectural merit of the City Landmark Shattuck Hotel, and whether 
improvements or revisions must occur prior to final SAP approval at a subsequent 
meeting. 
 
In addition to the topics listed in Table 3 and outlined the SOI Standards analyses 
(above), there are other issues related to the project’s design that staff recommends the 
Commission consider; please see the full list of topics, below: 
 
• Review the Design Review Committee’s Comments (Table 3, above) and the applicant’s 

responses. 

• Advise on the conclusions of the SOI Standards Compliance (Attachment 3) and Guidelines 
for New Construction (above). 

• Suggest improvements to better represent and/or activate Kittredge Street arcade. 

• Consider the applicant’s design options for the proposed cornice treatment on the building 
base at Kittredge Street; Attachment 1, Sheet A3-201. 

• Provide direction for lighting and signage. 

• Identify potential issues related to the open, street-level recesses and their interface with the 
public realm. 

• Other Commissioner concerns. 
 

VI. Recommendation 
 
In accordance with BMC Section 3.24.200 and Section 23.406.070, staff recommends 
that the Commission:  
• Open and hold a hearing on this SAP application. 

• Consider the proposed scope of demolition and the design of the new building. 

• Provide comments, feedback and direction to the project applicant for improvements and 
revisions as needed. 

• Continue the hearing on this matter while awaiting the applicant’s response. 
 
Attachments 

1. Project Plans, received May 18, 2022. 
2. Applicant Statement, received May 24. 
3. Secretary of the Interior Standards Analysis prepared by Caitlin Hibma, Architectural Historian; dated 

March 23, 2022. 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_ATT1_2065%20Kittredge.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_ATT2_2065%20Kittredge%20.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_ATT3_2065%20Kittredge.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_ATT3_2065%20Kittredge.pdf


   
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 2065 KITTREDGE STREET  
June 2, 2022 Page 13 of 13 
 
 

 
 

4. Notice of Decision for City Landmark designation of the Shattuck Hotel, dated 1983. 
 
Prepared by:  Fatema Crane, Senior Planner; fcrane@cityofberkeley.info ; 510-981-7410 
 

ITEM 8 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-06-02_LPC_Item%208_ATT4_2065%20Kittredge.pdf
mailto:fcrane@cityofberkeley.info


PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-000

COVER SHEET

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

BERKELEY PLAZA
2065 KITTREDGE ST, BERKELEY, CA 94704

CA VENTURES

SHEET LIST

A0-000 COVER SHEET
A0-001 EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
A0-002 EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
A0-003 EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
A0-004 DEMO SITE PLAN EXHIBIT
A0-005 PROJECT STATS
A0-006 ZONING AND CODE INFO

A1-001 SITE PLAN EXISTING- LEVEL U1
A1-002 SITE PLAN EXISTING- LEVEL 1
A1-003 SITE PLAN PROPOSED- LEVEL U1
A1-004 SITE PLAN PROPOSED- LEVEL 1
A1.001 ELECTRICAL ROOM DEMO, PLAN, SECTION
A1-101 PLAN- LEVEL U1
A1-111 PLAN- LEVEL 1
A1-112 PLAN- LEVEL 1 ENLARGED
A1-121 PLAN- LEVEL 2
A1-131 PLAN- LEVEL 3
A1-141 PLAN- LEVEL 4-7
A1-181 PLAN- LEVEL 8
A1-191 PLAN- ROOF
A1-201 NEW SERVICE HALL/ELECTRICAL ROOM PLAN

A3-001 ELEVATIONS- WEST (HAROLD WAY)
A3-002 ELEVATIONS- SOUTH (KITTREDGE ST.)
A3-003 ELEVATIONS- NORTH (ALLSTON WAY)
A3-004 ELEVATIONS- NORTH (HIDDEN)
A3-005 ELEVATIONS- EAST (HIDDEN)
A3-006 ELEVATIONS- SOUTH ENLARGED (KITTREDGE ST.)
A3-101 BUILDING SECTION
A3-102 BUILDING SECTION
A3-201 PERSPECTIVES
A3-202 PERSPECTIVES
A3-301 SHADOW STUDIES - JUNE 21
A3-302 SHADOW STUDIES - DEC 21
A3-303 SHADOW STUDIES - DEC 10
A3-304 STREET STRIP ELEVATIONS
A3-305 MATERIAL BOARDS

A5-001 SAMPLE UNITS

PHONE:

CONTACT:

CA STUDENT LIVING BERKELEY, LLC

130 E RANDOLPH STREET
SUITE 2100
CHICAGO, IL 60601

(304) 238-4745

JESSICA LEO

DEVELOPER

PHONE:

CONTACT:

NILES BOLTON ASSOCIATES

3060 PEACHTREE RD. N.W.
SUITE 600
ATLANTA, GA 30305

(404) 365-7600

MOHAMED MOHSEN

ARCHITECTURE

PHONE:

CONTACT:

THOMAS BAAK AND ASSOCIATES, LLP

1620 NORTH MAIN STREET
SUITE 4
WALNUT CREEK, CA 94596

(925) 933-2583

RICK STOVER

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

PHONE:

CONTACT:

LANGAN ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

135 MAIN STREET
SUITE 1500
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

(415) 955-5200

JASON JOH

CIVIL ENGINEERING DOCUMENT ISSUANCES:

09-16-21 | SCHEMATIC DESIGN
10-25-21 | USE PERMIT
12-10-21 | USE PERMIT RESUBMISSION
12-22-21 | STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT
01-11-22 | USE PERMIT RESUBMISSION
02-25-22 | USE PERMIT RESUBMISSION DRAFT
03-17-22 | USE PERMIT RESUBMISSION
03-23-22 | SAP RESUBMISSION
04-11-22 | DRC MEETING - APRIL 21ST, 2022
05-10-22 | LANDMARKS MEETING - JUNE 2ND, 2022

PHONE:

CONTACT:

DCI ENGINEERS

135 MAIN STREET
SUITE 1800
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

(415) 638-8913

MICHAEL BAUER

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING

PHONE:

CONTACT:

KUCHAR

1821 WEST HUBBARD
SUITE 105
CHICAGO, IL  60622

(312) 624-9206

SARAH KUCHAR-PARKINSON

INTERIOR DESIGN

PHONE:

CONTACT:

WEST BUILDERS, INC.

120 RAILROAD AVENUE
POINT RICHMOND, CA 94801

(510) 307-5678

SEAN KIRBY

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

No. Description Date
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
7 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 1/11/22
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

05-18-22 | LANDMARKS REVISED PACKAGE
MEETING - JUNE 2ND, 2022

a/b

a/b

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 1 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-001

EXISTING SITE
PHOTOS

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

12" = 1'-0"A0-001

1 SITE PHOTO - KITTREDGE ST AND HAROLD WAY - LOOKING EAST
12" = 1'-0"A0-001

2 SITE PHOTO - ALLSTON WAY AND HAROLD WAY - LOOKING EAST

12" = 1'-0"A0-001

3 SITE PHOTO - HAROLD WAY - LOOKING SOUTH
12" = 1'-0"A0-001

4 SITE PHOTO - KITTREDGE ST - LOOKING WEST

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 2 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-002

EXISTING SITE
PHOTOS

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

12" = 1'-0"A0-002

1 SITE PHOTO - ALLSTON WAY FACADE

12" = 1'-0"A0-002

2 SITE PHOTO - HAROLD WAY NORTH FACADE
12" = 1'-0"A0-002

3 SITE PHOTO - HAROLD WAY SOUTH FACADE

12" = 1'-0"A0-002

4 SITE PHOTO - KITTREDGE ST FACADE

No. Description Date
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 3 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-003

EXISTING SITE
PHOTOS

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

12" = 1'-0"A0-003

1 SITE PHOTO - ALLSTON WAY - EXISTING HOTEL
12" = 1'-0"A0-003

2 SITE PHOTO - SHATTUCK AVE - EXISTING HOTEL

12" = 1'-0"A0-003

3 SITE PHOTO - SHATTUCK AVE AND ALLSTON WAY - EXISTING HOTEL
12" = 1'-0"A0-003

4 SITE PHOTO - SHATTUCK AVE AND KITTREDGE ST - EXISTING HOTEL

No. Description Date
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 4 of 42



PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION DIAGRAM 

DEMO DIAGRAM 

EXISTING DIAGRAM 

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-004

DEMO SITE PLAN
EXHIBIT

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

NOT TO SCALEA0-004

1 DEMO SITE PLAN EXHIBIT

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 5 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-005

PROJECT STATS

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

AREA TABLE

UNIT MIX

EXISTING SITE 
DESCRIPTION

PROPOSED PROJECT DESCRIPTION

THE USE OF THE 
APPROXIMATELY 95,000 SF 
EXISTING BUILDING 
INCLUDES SERVICE AND 
OFFICE SPACE 
(APPROXIMATELY 3,000 
RSF) ON 4 LEVELS 
(BASEMENT THROUGH 
PARTIAL THIRD FLOOR). 
THERE WERE NO PREVIOUS 
RESIDENTIAL USES ON THE 
PROJECT SITE. THE ENTIRE 
EXISTING BUILDING AND 
BASEMENT WILL BE 
DEMOLISHED WITHIN THE 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY. 

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS A MIX-USED OFF-CAMPUS 
STUDENT HOUSING COMMUNITY THAT CONTAINS 188 
UNITS (585 BEDS).THE PROJECT UNIT TYPES INCLUDE 
STUDIOS, 1 BEDROOM, 2 BEDROOM, 3 BEDROOM, AND 
LIVE/WORK UNITS. 

THE BUILDING TOTALS 225,563 GSF, WHICH 
INCLUDES 149,301 SF OF RESIDENTIAL AREA AND 
9,019 SF OF INDOOR RESIDENTIAL AMENITY AREA IN 
ADDITION TO 2,946 SF OF ELEVATED ROOF TERRACE 
AMENITY. THERE IS ALSO 3,625 SF OF GROUND LEVEL 
COMMERCIAL. 

THE PROJECT IS DESIGNED AS TYPE-IIIA 
CONSTRUCTION (WOOD) OVER TYPE-IA (PODIUM) 
WITH A TOTAL OF 8 RESIDENTIAL LEVELS. A PARTIAL 
BASEMENT IS ALSO PROVIDED TO HOUSE 43 PARKING 
SPACES. ADDITIONALLY, THE PROJECT WILL PROVIDE 
144 BIKE PARKING SPACES ON THE BASEMENT LEVEL.

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 6 of 42



KITTREDGE ST

ALLSTON WAY

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

TRUE
NORTH

PROJECT SITE

HOTEL SHATTUCK

PLAZA

3 HR FIRE SEPARATION

3 HR FIRE SEPARATION

BUILDING A

BUILDING B

BUILDING C

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A0-006

ZONING AND CODE
INFO

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

12" = 1'-0"A0-006

1 SITE MAP

The proposed project will comply with the Berkeley Energy 
Code (BMC Chapter 19.36) and Berkeley Green Code (BMC 
Chapter 19.37), adopted by City Council on December 3rd., 
2019, where building design must incorporate all-electric 
systems.

CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION CODE INFORMATION

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
7 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 1/11/22
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

• Waiver to exceed the height limit –
Proposed at 87’-0”, where 60 ft/75 ft with 
use permit is the limit. The 87’-0” proposed 
is measured to top of roof and does not 
include the additional 5 feet parapet 
allowed by right.

• Waiver to construct rooftop projections, 
such as mechanical appurtenances or 
architectural elements which exceed the 
maximum heigh limit for the district.

• Waiver to reduce the 15' minimum front 
setbacks above 75'

• Waiver to increase the 5' maximum front 
setbacks between 0' to 20'

• Waiver to reduce the minimum landscape 
coverage of usable open space from 40% of 
the provided usable open space to 30% of 
the provided usable open space

• Waiver to reduce the required parking 
spaces for the commercial spaces from 5 
required spaces to 0 provided spaces.

• Concession for reduction in useable open 
space and the percentage of associated 
landscaped area. 

WAIVER/CONCESSION LIST

COMMERCIAL SPACE REQUIREMENTS

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES

NUMBER OF BIKE PARKING SPACES

USEABE OPEN SPACE

Proposed
Permitted/

Required

1.5 SPACES PER 1,000 SF OF RETAIL SUITE = 3 SPACES
1 SPACE PER FIRST 1,000 SF OF WORK AREA AND 1 SPACE PER 
ADDITIONAL 750 SF OF WORK AREA = 2 SPACES

1 SF OF USABLE OPEN SPACE 
PER 50 SF OF COMMERCIAL FLOOR AREA

3,593 SF TOTAL

1,990 SF RETAIL SUITE
1,603 SF WORK SPACE IN LIVE/WORK UNITS

0 5

Existing

0

1 BIKE SPACE PER 2,000 SF OF COMMERCIAL FLOOR AREA 2 20

72 720

UNIT, PARKING SPACES, AND BEDROOMS

NUMBER OF DWELING UNITS

Proposed
Permitted/

RequiredExisting

188 NA0
NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES 43

0 MIN
94 MAX0

SPACES LOCATED AT EXTERIOR BIKE RACKS

MAX 0.5 SPACES PER UNIT

YARDS AND HEIGHTS

FRONT YARD SETBACK (FT)
0'0'

BUILDING HEIGHT (STORIES) 8 -3

WAIVER

WAIVER

MAXIMUM (FT)

AREAS

LOT AREA

NUMBER OF BIKE PARKING SPACES 1440311 BEDROOMS
1 LONG TERM SPACE PER 3 BEDROOMS = 104 SPACES
1 SHORT TERM SPACE PER 40 BEDROOMS = 8 SPACES

112
LOCATED ON 

LEVEL U1

0' MIN (0'-75' HEIGHT)
15' MIN (75'+ HEIGHT)
5' MAX (0'-20' HEIGHT)

87' -25' WAIVER

TOTAL GROSS FLOOR AREA
TOTAL AREA COVERED BY ALL FLOORS

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

LOT COVERAGE

USEABLE OPEN SPACE

FLOOR AREA RATIO 5.5:1 -2.8:1

13,476 SF 15,040 SF0

82% -100%
27,619 SF -33,582 SF

184,845 SF -92,531 SF

33,582 SF -33,582 SF

TABULATION FORM

PROJECT ADDRESS: 2065 KITTREDGE ST
APPLICANT'S NAME: BILL SCHRADER ZONING DISTRICT: C-DMU CORE

DATE: 05-11-22

CONCESSION
80 SF OF USABLE OPEN SPACE PER UNIT

WAIVER

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 7 of 42



AS
SU

M
ED

 W
AL

L 
C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

AS
SU

M
ED

EL
EV

AT
O

R

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

ELEC ELEC ELEC ELEC

ELEC

ELEC ELEC ELEC ELEC ELEC

ELEC

EL
EC

EL
EC

EL
EC

EL
EC

ELECELECELECELECELEC

ELEC ELEC ELEC ELEC ELEC

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-001

SITE PLAN
EXISTING- LEVEL U1

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

4'0' 16'8'

1/16" = 1'-0"A1-001

1 LEVEL U1- EXISTING

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22

ELECTRICAL

OFFICE SPACE

OFFICE SPACE

OFFICE SPACE

OFFICE SPACE

CORRIDOR
HALLWAY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

STAIRS

STAIRS

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

STORAGE

TRUE
NORTH

EXISTING 
BASEMENT PLAN

OFFICE SPACE

OUTSIDE OF PROJECT
SCOPE/EXTENTS

13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 8 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-002

SITE PLAN
EXISTING- LEVEL 1

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

4'0' 16'8'
1/16" = 1'-0"A1-002

1 LEVEL 1- EXISTING

No. Description Date
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

BA
C

K 
O

F 
H

O
U

SE
D

IN
IN

G
W

O
M

EN
'S

M
EN

'S
ST

O
R

AG
E

D
IN

IN
G

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

T-
C

ER
T-

LI
N

T-
C

ER
T-

C
ER

C
N

C
T

W
O

O
D

9'
-5

"
14

'-1
1"

7'
-1

1"
7'

-1
1"

16
'-5

"
12

'-1
0"

17
'-2

"

ELEC
ELEC

E
LE

C
E

LE
C

E
LE

C

W
H

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

T:
C

EI
LI

N
G

 H
T:

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

T:
C

EI
LI

N
G

 H
T:

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

T:
C

EI
LI

N
G

 H
T:

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
S

P
A

C
E

B.O.H.

K
IT

C
H

E
N

THEATER 7

THEATER 6

THEATER 5

THEATER 3

THEATER 2

THEATER 1

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

THEATER 4

AUDITORIUM 9AUDITORIUM 10

DINING

OFFICEC
O

N
C

E
S

S
IO

N

THEATER 8

EXTERIOR
VEST.

HALLWAY

TRUE
NORTH

EXISTING GROUND
LEVEL PLAN

13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 9 of 42



U
P

SLAB CUTOUT ABOVE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

TOTAL PARKING
43 SPACES

23 CAR STACKER
SYSTEM

UP

UP

21

22 23

24 25

26 27

28 29

30 31

32 33

34 35

36 37

38 39

40 41

42 43

24
'-0

"

STAIR

STAIR

MAINTENANCE
OFFICE

BIKE ROOM

ELECTRICAL
STAIR

STORAGE

HOT
WATER
TANKS

ELEV.
LOBBY

HALL

UP

UP

1

2

3

11

12

19

20

78

10 9

4

5

6
13

14

15

16

17

18

163'-3"

5.
61

%

7.50% 15.15%

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-003

SITE PLAN
PROPOSED- LEVEL

U1

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

4'0' 16'8'
1/16" = 1'-0"A1-003

1 LEVEL U1- PROPOSED

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22

OFFICE
SPACE

STORAGE

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

TRUE
NORTH

PROPOSED
BASEMENT PLAN

OUTSIDE OF PROJECT
SCOPE/EXTENTS

13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 10 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-004

SITE PLAN
PROPOSED- LEVEL 1

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

4'0' 16'8'
1/16" = 1'-0"A1-004

1 LEVEL 1- PROPOSED

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

D
I N

IN
G

H
AL

LW
AY

D
N

D
N

T-
LI

N

C
PT

14
'-1

1"

17
'-2

"

UP

ELEC
ELEC

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

T:

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

T:

DN

1 BEDROOM
A1-A

638 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-A

638 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

VENDING

(OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC)

(OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC)

(OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC)

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.
LOBBY

COFFEE
SHOP

RETAIL

LOBBY/STUDY
LOUNGE

LEASING

MAIL

PACKAGE

STORAGE

HALL

HALL

ENTRY
COURTYARD

FITNESS

BREAK

RR

STOR.

STOR.

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

FAN ROOM
TRASH

HOLDING

BOH

RETAIL
TRASH

TRASH
ROOM

JAN.

MECHANICAL
UNITS

YOGA

FIRE PUMP WATER
BOOSTER

JAN.

RR

RR

HALL

PGE
ACCESS

RETAIL
SEATING

UP

UPUP

UPUP

UP

UP

15.15%

7.50%

UP

ACCESS TO ALLEY

UP

REFER TO 1/A1-201 FOR ENLARGED PLAN

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

COMMERCIAL
SPACE

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
S

P
A

C
E

NEW ELEC.
ROOM

B.O.H.

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
LL

E
Y

SERVICE
ALLEY

EGRESS
STAIR

EXTERIOR
VEST.

HALLWAY

TRUE
NORTH

PROPOSED GROUND
LEVEL PLAN

13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

REFER TO 1/A1-001 FOR ENLARGED PLAN

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 11 of 42



UP

ELECTRICAL
ROOM

24'-10" 2'-0"

10
'-4

"

6'
-0

"

ER-1

M
aa

6
1

M
aa

6
1

Maa61

Maa61

M
ae

6
1

SC
2

EXISTING WALL

EXISTING COLUMN

EXISTING COLUMN

EXISTING EXTERIOR 
WALL WITH FINISH

177'-3"

175'-6"

3
A1.001

______________________

_____________________________________________________________
3

A1.002
FROM INSIDE FACE OF 
EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL

NEW STUCCO FINISH 
INSIDE DEMOLISHED 
EXISTING WALL

5'
-0

"

M
ae

6
1

M
aa

6
1

Mae61

KK.5

PROPERTY LINE 
ALIGNS WITH FACE 
OF BUILDING

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

EXISTING BASEMENT BELOW

ELECTRICAL
ROOM 8'

-0
"

1'
-9

"

175'-6"

177'-3"

ER
-1

M
aa

6
1

M
ae

6
1

EXISTING WALL

EXISTING COLUMN

EXISTING SLAB

EXISTING EXTERIOR 
WALL WITH FINISH

SC
2

NEW SLAB

NEW BEAM, SEE STRUCTURAL

CONTINUE ALL WALLS TO 
UNDERSIDE OF EXISTING CEILING

GYP SOFFIT WITH 
INSULATION AT 
EXTERIOR SLAB

STUCCO SOFFIT WITH INSULATION, CONTINUE 
STUCCO INTO OPENING IN EXTERIOR WALL

NEW BEAM, SEE STRUCTURAL

UTILITY LIGHT

PNL-L02-HM

PANEL
WIDTH

PA
NE

L 
HE

IG
HT

11
"

10
"

11
"

1'
-0

"

1'-4"

1'-4"

PNL-F

PA
NE

L 
HE

IG
HT

PANEL
WIDTH

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

A1.001

ELECTRICAL ROOM
DEMO, PLAN,

SECTION

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

3/8" = 1'-0"A1.001

1 ELECTRICAL ROOM PLAN

TRUE
NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"A1.001

3 ELECTRICAL ROOM SECTION

DOOR SCHEDULE- ELECTRICAL ROOM

DOOR

SIZE WxH

PANELS FRAME

HW SET COMMENTSTAG LOCATION
FIRE RATING

(MIN) TYPE FINISH TYPE

LEVEL 1.1
ER-1 ELECTRICAL

ROOM
0 3'-0"x7'-0" PNL-L02-HM 08-OPENINGS-HM FRM-00HM1 08.0 DOOR WITH HIGH-LOW LOUVERS TO THE EXTERIOR,

COORDINATE WITH MECHANICAL. PANIC BAR HARDWARE TO BE
PROVIDED. LOCK TO BE PROVIDED, SEE HARDWARE SET BELOW.

ER-2 B.O.H. 0 3'-0"x7'-0" PNL-F-HM 08-OPENINGS-HM FRM-00HM1 13.0 EGRESS FROM B.O.H. PANIC BAR HARDWARE TO BE PROVIDED.
SEE HARDWARE SET BELOW.

No. Description Date
ELEC. ROOM PERMIT 4/11/22

13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
 R

O
O

M
 T

I P
ER

M
IT

22
40

 S
H

AT
TU

CK
 A

VE
 

BE
RK

EL
EY

, 
CA

 9
47

04

D
N

D
N

ELEC
ELEC

NEW
ELECTRICAL

ROOM

_____________________________________________________________
1

A1.001

COMMERCIAL 
SPACE

COMMERCIAL 
SPACE

THEATER 
LOBBY

VESTIBULE

SHATTUCK AVE.

B.O.H.

ELECTRICAL 
ROOM
296 SF

ELECTRICAL ROOM
ENTRY

NEW EGRESS DOOR FROM B.O.H.

ER-1

ER-2

PROPERTY LINE 
ALIGNS WITH FACE 
OF BUILDING

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

.

1/8" = 1'-0"A1.001

5 BUILDING PLAN

22

1

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 12 of 42



UP

UP

STAIR

STAIR

30
'-1

1"
14

1'
-3

"

113'-0"

24
'-0

"

163'-3"

TOTAL PARKING
43 SPACES

WATER
TANKS

BIKE ROOM

ELECTRICAL
STAIR

1

2

3

11

12

19

20

23 CAR STACKER
SYSTEM

STORAGE

78

10 9

STORAGE

4

5

6
13

14

15

16

17

18

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

ELECTRIC
SPACE

5.
61

%

7.50% 15.15%

UP

UP

21

22 23

24 25

26 27

28 29

30 31

32 33

34 35

36 37

38 39

40 41

42 43

ELEV.
LOBBY

BOH HALL

MAINTENANCE
OFFICE

10
8'

-2
"

147'-10"

59
'-0

"

58'-8" 175'-3 3/4" 26'-10 1/4"

MECH UNIT
AREA

MECH UNIT AREA

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-101

PLAN- LEVEL U1

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-101

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL U1

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 13 of 42



UP

UPUP

UPUP

UP

UP

UP

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.
LOBBY

COFFEE
SHOP

RETAIL

15.15% DN

1 BEDROOM
A1-A

638 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

956 SF

63
'-0

"
85

'-7
 3

/4
"

23
'-6

 1
/4

"

5'
-0

"

10
8'

-2
"

9'-6 3/8" 22'-4" 10'-5 1/8" 88'-8 1/2"

59
'-0

"

LOBBY/STUDY
LOUNGE

HAROLD WAY

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

LEASING

MAIL

PACKAGE

1 BEDROOM
A1-A

638 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

STORAGE

HALL

HALL

ENTRY
COURTYARD

6
'-
5
"

12'-0"

8
'-
9
"

19'-1"

1
4
'-
1
0
"

6
'-
1
"

11'-7"

7.50%

FITNESS

BREAK

RR

STOR.

STOR.

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

S
E
T
B
A
C
K

S
E
T
B
A
C
K

S
E
T
B
A
C
K S
E
T
B
A
C
K

S
E
T
B
A
C
K

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

LIVE WORK
LW1

867 SF

FAN ROOM
TRASH

HOLDING

BOH

RETAIL
TRASH

TRASH
ROOM

JAN.

MECHANICAL
UNITS

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

41'-10" 39'-2" 34'-0" 34'-0" 34'-0" 22'-0" 22'-2" 16'-10"

9
"

YOGA
FIRE PUMP

WATER
BOOSTER

VENDING

JAN.

RR

RR

HALL

PGE
ACCESS

RETAIL
SEATING

(OPEN TO THE 
PUBLIC)

(OPEN TO THE 
PUBLIC)

(OPEN TO THE 
PUBLIC)

MDF

22
'-4

 1
/4

"

19
'-5

 1
/2

"

7"

SETBACK

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-111

PLAN- LEVEL 1

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-111

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL 1

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

REFER TO LANDSCAPE
DWGS FOR PROPOSED

PLAZA LAYOUT

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 14 of 42



WORK AREA WORK AREA WORK AREA WORK AREALIVE AREA LIVE AREA LIVE AREA LIVE AREA

SHARED KITCHEN SHARED KITCHEN SHARED KITCHENSHARED KITCHEN

LIVE/WORK UNIT 4

TOTAL AREA: 867 SF

LIVE AREA: 336 SF (39%)
WORK AREA: 392 SF (45%)
SHARED KITCHEN AREA: 139 SF (16%)

LIVE/WORK UNIT 3

TOTAL AREA: 867 SF

LIVE AREA: 336 SF (39%)
WORK AREA: 392 SF (45%)
SHARED KITCHEN AREA: 139 SF (16%)

LIVE/WORK UNIT 2

TOTAL AREA: 867 SF

LIVE AREA: 336 SF (39%)
WORK AREA: 392 SF (45%)
SHARED KITCHEN AREA: 139 SF (16%)

LIVE/WORK UNIT 1

TOTAL AREA: 949 SF

LIVE AREA: 336 SF (35%)
WORK AREA: 474 SF (50%)
SHARED KITCHEN AREA: 139 SF (15%)

NOTE: THE KITCHEN IS CONSIDERED SPACE THAT SERVES BOTH THE LIVE AREA AND THE 
WORK AREA OF THE UNIT. THE SHARED AREA OF THE KITCHEN IS SPLIT BETWEEN THE 
TWO CATEGORIES TO BRING BOTH LIVE FUNCTIONS AND WORK FUNCTIONS TO EXACTLY 
50% OF THE TOTAL UNIT AREA, IN ACCORDANCE WITH IBC SECTION 419.

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-112

PLAN- LEVEL 1
ENLARGED

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

No. Description Date
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

3/16" = 1'-0"A1-112

1 LIVE/WORK UNITS ENLARGED PLAN

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 15 of 42



UP

UP

UP

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEC.

ELEV.
LOBBY

STUDY

STUDY
AMENITY

TRASH

ELEC.

2 BEDROOM
B4

953 SF

2 BEDROOM
B5

956 SF

2 BEDROOM
B6-A

962 SF

1 BEDROOM
A3

720 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

STUDIO
S3-A

381 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

NANO STUDIO
NS1

295 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

2 BEDROOM
B8

953 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-A

638 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF
2 BEDROOM

B3-B
973 SF

STUDIO
S4

362 SF

59
'-0

"

34'-0"31'-11"

UTILITY

31'-10 3/8" 10'-5 1/8" 32'-8 1/2" 34'-0" 34'-0"

OPEN TO BELOW

STUDY

16
'-2

"
46

'-1
0"

35
'-9

 3
/4

"

4"
34'-2" 22'-4"

33
'-9

"
11

'-6
"

11
'-6

"
33

'-1
1 

3/
4"

18
'-5

 1
/4

"

14'-1 1/4" 11'-9" 30'-7 3/4"

STUDIO
S2

436 SF

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

AMENITY

27'-10 1/8" 48'-4 5/8" 37'-3 1/4"

UTILITY

15'-1" 34'-0" 34'-0" 34'-0" 34'-0" 22'-0" 39'-6"

14
'-2

"
25

'-0
"

15
'-1

0"

35
'-9

 3
/4

"
27

'-2
 1

/4
"

46
'-2

"

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-121

PLAN- LEVEL 2

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-121

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL 2

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 16 of 42



STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.
LOBBY

STUDY

TRASH

3 BEDROOM
C2

1374 SF2 BEDROOM
B2-C

1003 SF

STUDIO
S2

436 SF

2 BEDROOM
B3-A

1030 SF

2 BEDROOM
B4

953 SF

2 BEDROOM
B5

956 SF

2 BEDROOM
B6-A

962 SF

2 BEDROOM
B7-A

977 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

STUDIO
S3-A

381 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

NANO STUDIO
NS1

295 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

2 BEDROOM
B8

953 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

2 BEDROOM
B2-B

991 SF

2 BEDROOM
B2-A

984 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-B
348 SF

2 BEDROOM
B9

971 SF

3 BEDROOM
C1

1373 SF

27'-6" 11'-6" 31'-8" 31'-8" 31'-8" 34'-0" 56'-0" 41'-0"

UTILITY

50'-10 3/8" 10'-5 1/8" 32'-10 3/8" 33'-10 1/8" 34'-0"

STUDY

UTILITY

18
'-2

"
47

'-0
 1

/2
"

45
'-9

"
36

'-0
 1

/4
"

27
'-4

 3
/4

"

4"
34'-2" 23'-10"

14
'-2

"
25

'-0
"

15
'-7

 1
/2

"

33
'-9

"
11

'-6
"

11
'-6

"
33

'-1
1 

3/
4"

18
'-5

 1
/4

"

25
'-1

0 
1/

8"
35

'-1
 7

/8
"

27'-10 1/8" 24'-2 5/8" 24'-2" 38'-9 1/4"

14'-1 1/4" 11'-9" 32'-1 3/4"

IDF

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-131

PLAN- LEVEL 3

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-131

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL 3

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 17 of 42



UP

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.
LOBBY

STUDY

TRASH

3 BEDROOM
C2

1374 SF2 BEDROOM
B2-D

993 SF
2 BEDROOM

B3-A
1030 SF

2 BEDROOM
B4

953 SF

2 BEDROOM
B5

956 SF

2 BEDROOM
B6-A

962 SF

2 BEDROOM
B7-A

977 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

STUDIO
S3-B

375 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

633 SF

NANO STUDIO
NS1

295 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

2 BEDROOM
B8

953 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

2 BEDROOM
B2-B

991 SF

2 BEDROOM
B2-A

984 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-B
348 SF

2 BEDROOM
B9

971 SF

3 BEDROOM
C1

1373 SF

27'-6" 11'-6" 31'-8" 31'-8" 31'-8" 34'-0" 56'-0" 41'-0"

25
'-1

0 
3/

4"
35

'-1
 1

/4
"

51'-0 1/4" 10'-9" 32'-2 3/4" 34'-0" 34'-0"

14
'-2

"
25

'-0
 1

/4
"

15
'-7

 1
/4

"

UTILITY

@L 4/6

@L 5/7

@L 4/6

@L 5/7

@L 4/6

@L 5/7

18
'-2

"
46

'-1
0"

46
'-2

"
35

'-9
 3

/4
"

27
'-4

 3
/4

"

1 3/4"
34'-0 1/4" 23'-10"

33
'-9

 1
/2

56
"

11
'-6

"
11

'-6
"

34
'-2

 3
/4

"
18

'-2
 1

/4
"

27'-10 3/4" 24'-2" 24'-2" 38'-9 1/4"

14'-1 1/4" 11'-9" 32'-1 3/4"

STUDY
ELEC.

UTIL.
ELEC.

STUDY
IDF

STUDIO
S2

436 SF

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-141

PLAN- LEVEL 4-7

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-141

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL 4-7

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 18 of 42



OUTDOOR
TERRACE

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.
LOBBY

CLUB
ROOM

AMENITY

TRASH

3 BEDROOM
C2

1374 SF1 BEDROOM
1A-A

638 SF

2 BEDROOM
B2-E

908 SF
2 BEDROOM

B3-B
973 SF

2 BEDROOM
B4

953 SF

2 BEDROOM
B5

956 SF

2 BEDROOM
B6-B

909 SF

2 BEDROOM
B7-B

932 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

STUDIO
S3-B

375 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

633 SF

NANO STUDIO
NS1

295 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

MICRO STUDIO
MS1-A
322 SF

2 BEDROOM
B8

953 SF

1 BEDROOM
A2

641 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-A

952 SF

2 BEDROOM
B1-B

986 SF

22'-0" 31'-8" 34'-0" 56'-0" 41'-0"36'-5 1/4"

10'-9" 32'-2 3/4" 34'-0" 34'-0"

UTILITY

RR

UTILITY

46
'-1

0"
46

'-2
"

35
'-9

 3
/4

"
27

'-4
 3

/4
"

1 3/4"
34'-0 1/4" 22'-4"

33
'-9

 1
/2

56
"

11
'-6

"
11

'-6
"

34
'-2

 3
/4

"
18

'-2
 1

/4
"

STUDY

STUDIO
S2

436 SF

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

RR

JAN.

1 BEDROOM
A1-B

638 SF

14'-1 1/4" 11'-9" 30'-7 3/4"

1'-6"

27'-10 3/4" 24'-2" 24'-2" 38'-9 1/4"

14
'-2

"
25

'-0
 1

/4
"

15
'-9

 3
/4

"

16
'-2

"

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-181

PLAN- LEVEL 8

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-181

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- LEVEL 8

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

TRUE
NORTH

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
1 PLAN UPDATE 6/28/21
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 19 of 42



UP

UP

UP

STAIR

ELEV.
EQUIP.

AREA OF ROOFTOP STRUCTURES: 597 SF

AVERAGE FLOOR AREA: 24,095 SF

% OF ROOFTOP STRUCTURES: 2.4%

ROOFTOP STRUCTURES

EXISTING HOTEL BUILDING

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-191

PLAN- ROOF

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A1-191

1 PRESENTATION FLOOR PLAN- ROOF PLAN

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

TRUE
NORTH

No. Description Date
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 20 of 42



UP
UP

UP

ELECTRICAL
ROOM

EGRESS
HALL

GAS 
METER

RETAIL
SUITES

24'-10"

10
'-4

"

SERVICE
HALL

4
A1-201

______________________

UP

ACCESS TO ALLEY

EXTENTS OF DEMO

RETAIL
SUITES

RETAIL
SUITES

RETAIL
SUITES

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

O
 R

EM
AI

N
DE

M
O

 A
N

D 
N

EW
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN BUILDINGS

KI
TT

RE
DG

E 
ST

U.5 Z.5 KK.5

ER-1

H1

H
3

H2

H
4

H
5

4
A1-201

______________________

EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN BUILDINGS

OPEN TO BELOW NEW ROOF

KK.5

4
A1-201

______________________

EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN BUILDINGS

EXISTING ROOF

STAIR
ACCESS

EXISTING EMERGENCY EXIT

FIRE ESCAPE LADDER FROM ABOVE

KK.5

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

NEW SLAB ON GRADE
EXISTING ELEVATED SLAB 
OVER BASEMENT

NEW ROOF

EXISTING ROOF

EXISTING EMERGENCY EXIT

FIRE ESCAPE LADDER FROM ABOVE

HOTEL BUILDING BEYOND

SIDEWALK

KITTREDGE ST

EXISTING BASEMENT TO REMAIN

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A1-201

NEW SERVICE
HALL/ELECTRICAL

ROOM PLAN

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

3/16" = 1'-0"A1-201

1 NEW DEMO/ELECTRICAL ROOM - LEVEL 1

3/16" = 1'-0"A1-201

2 NEW DEMO/ELECTRICAL ROOM - LEVEL 2

3/16" = 1'-0"A1-201

3 NEW DEMO/ELECTRICAL ROOM - LEVEL 3

3/16" = 1'-0"A1-201

4 NEW DEMO/ELECTRICAL ROOM SECTION

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 21 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

2'
-9

"
84

'-9
"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

3'
-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO -E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E13 GLASS RAILING

-E4 BRICK-E10 STOREFRONT-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E7 ALUMINUM CANOPY -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E15 MESH SCREENING -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E10 STOREFRONT -E4 BRICK

AREA PROJECTING
ACROSS PROPERTY LINE

PROJECTING AREA: 7,925 SF

TOTAL FACE AREA: 22,493 SF

PROJECTING AREA: 35.2%

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-001

ELEVATION- WEST
(HAROLD WAY)

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-001

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- WEST (HAROLD WAY)

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO
E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
E3 DARK TAN STUCCO
E4 BRICK
E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT
E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH THERMOFOIL

ALUMINUM FINISH
E7 ALUMINUM CANOPY
E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE
E10 STOREFRONT
E13 GLASS RAILING
E15 MESH SCREENING

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

1" = 30'-0"A3-001

2 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- WEST PROJECTION DIAGRAM

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

2'
-9

"
84

'-9
"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

3'
-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO -E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E13 GLASS RAILING

-E4 BRICK-E10 STOREFRONT-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E7 ALUMINUM CANOPY -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E15 MESH SCREENING -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E10 STOREFRONT -E4 BRICK

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 22 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

_____________________________________________________________
1

A3-006

REFER TO 1/A3-006 FOR 
ENLARGED ELEVATION

EXISTING EGRESS STAIRS BEYOND

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-

-E4 BRICK -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E10 STOREFRONT -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE -E17 PARKING GATE

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-002

ELEVATION- SOUTH
(KITTREDGE ST.)

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-002

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- SOUTH (KITTREDGE ST.)

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO
E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
E3 DARK TAN STUCCO
E4 BRICK
E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT
E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH THERMOFOIL

ALUMINUM FINISH
E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE
E10 STOREFRONT
E12 ALUMINUM DOOR
E17 PARKING GATE

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

REFER TO 1/A3-006 FOR 
ENLARGED ELEVATION

EXISTING EGRESS STAIRS BEYOND

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-

-E4 BRICK -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E10 STOREFRONT -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE -E17 PARKING GATE

BUILDING BASE - DESIGN OPTION 1

a

 GREY STUCCO GREY STUCCO

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 23 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

_____________________________________________________________
1

A3-006

REFER TO 1/A3-006 FOR 
ENLARGED ELEVATION

EXISTING EGRESS STAIRS BEYOND

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E4 BRICK
-E3 DARK TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E10 STOREFRONT -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE -E17 PARKING GATE

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-002

ELEVATION- SOUTH
(KITTREDGE ST.)

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-002

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- SOUTH (KITTREDGE ST.)

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO
E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
E3 DARK TAN STUCCO
E4 BRICK
E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT
E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH THERMOFOIL

ALUMINUM FINISH
E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE
E10 STOREFRONT
E12 ALUMINUM DOOR
E17 PARKING GATE

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

REFER TO 1/A3-006 FOR 
ENLARGED ELEVATION

EXISTING EGRESS STAIRS BEYOND

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E4 BRICK
-E3 DARK TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E10 STOREFRONT -E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE -E17 PARKING GATE

b

BUILDING BASE - DESIGN OPTION 2

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 24 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

84
'-9

"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E13 GLASS RAILING

-E10 STOREFRONT-E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSEDEXISTING

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E15 MESH SCREENING

-E16 STONE BREEZE BLOCK

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-003

ELEVATION- NORTH
(ALLSTON WAY)

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-003

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- NORTH (ALLSTON WAY)

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT
E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE
E10 STOREFRONT
E13 GLASS RAILING
E15 MESH SCREENING
E16 STONE BREEZE BLOCK

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

84
'-9

"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

2'
-9

"

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E13 GLASS RAILING

-E10 STOREFRONT-E8 EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSEDEXISTING

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E15 MESH SCREENING

-E16 STONE BREEZE BLOCK

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 25 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

84
'-9

"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

2'
-9

"

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

EXISTING BUILDING

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-004

ELEVATION- NORTH
(HIDDEN)

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO
E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH THERMOFOIL

ALUMINUM FINISH
E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-004

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- NORTH (HIDDEN)

No. Description Date
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

84
'-9

"

10
'-9

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

2'
-9

"

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO -E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

EXISTING BUILDING

-E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 26 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

14
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-9
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

1'
-9

"

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT-E13 GLASS RAILING

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

EXISTING BUILDING

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

-E4 BRICK -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO

-E14 GLASS BLOCK -E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-005

ELEVATION- EAST
(HIDDEN)

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-005

1 PRESENTATION-ELEVATION- EAST (HIDDEN)

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

Keynote Legend

Key Value Keynote Text

E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO
E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO
E3 DARK TAN STUCCO
E4 BRICK
E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT
E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH THERMOFOIL

ALUMINUM FINISH
E12 ALUMINUM DOOR
E13 GLASS RAILING
E14 GLASS BLOCK

2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

14
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-9
"

84
'-9

"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

1'
-9

"

-E6 VINYL WINDOW WITH
THERMOFOIL ALUMINUM
FINISH

-E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT-E13 GLASS RAILING

PARAPET VARIES, MAX 5'

EXISTING BUILDING

-E5 WHITE FIBER CEMENT -E2 CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO

-E4 BRICK -E3 DARK TAN STUCCO

-E1 LIGHT TAN STUCCO

-E14 GLASS BLOCK -E12 ALUMINUM DOOR

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 27 of 42



LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

NEW RECESSED ALCOVE TO 
PROVIDE ELECTRICAL ROOM ACCESS

CROWD MOULDING TO EXTEND AROUND CORNER

FACADE ALTERATIONS SCOPE ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXISTING BUILDING TO 

REMAIN IS LIMITED TO:

1) REMOVING THE EGRESS STAIRS SHOWIN IN PHOTO 4/A0-001 - A NEW EGRESS STAIR 
IS PROVIDED TO MAINTAIN THE EXITING FROM THE ELEVATED LEVELS AS ILLUSTARTED 
ON THE OVERALL SITE PLAN AND THE ENLARGED PLAN DIAGRAMS ON SHEET A1-201.

2) PROVIDING AN ALCOVE TO ACCESS THE NEW ELECTRICAL ROOM AS SHOWN ABOVE. 
THE EXISTING ELECTRICAL ROOM IS CURRENTLY LOCATED WITHIN THE AREA TO BE 
DEMOLISHED AND NEEDS TO BE RELOCATED.

CHARCOAL STUCCO

METAL DOOR, PAINT TO MATCH STUCCO

EXISTING EGRESS 
STAIRS BEYOND

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-006

ELEVATION -
SOUTH ENLARGED
(KITTREDGE ST.)

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

1/8" = 1'-0"A3-006

1 PROPOSED ELEVATION - SOUTH ENLARGED (KITTREDGE ST.)0' 8'4'2'

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

EXISTING EGRESS 
STAIRS BEYOND

TF

MM

a

BUILDING BASE - DESIGN OPTION 1

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 28 of 42



LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

NEW RECESSED ALCOVE TO 
PROVIDE ELECTRICAL ROOM ACCESS

CROWD MOULDING TO EXTEND AROUND CORNER

FACADE ALTERATIONS SCOPE ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXISTING BUILDING TO 

REMAIN IS LIMITED TO:

1) REMOVING THE EGRESS STAIRS SHOWIN IN PHOTO 4/A0-001 - A NEW EGRESS STAIR 
IS PROVIDED TO MAINTAIN THE EXITING FROM THE ELEVATED LEVELS AS ILLUSTARTED 
ON THE OVERALL SITE PLAN AND THE ENLARGED PLAN DIAGRAMS ON SHEET A1-201.

2) PROVIDING AN ALCOVE TO ACCESS THE NEW ELECTRICAL ROOM AS SHOWN ABOVE. 
THE EXISTING ELECTRICAL ROOM IS CURRENTLY LOCATED WITHIN THE AREA TO BE 
DEMOLISHED AND NEEDS TO BE RELOCATED.

CHARCOAL STUCCO

METAL DOOR, PAINT TO MATCH STUCCO

EXISTING EGRESS 
STAIRS BEYOND

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-006

ELEVATION -
SOUTH ENLARGED
(KITTREDGE ST.)

121246

Author

Checker

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

1/8" = 1'-0"A3-006

1 PROPOSED ELEVATION - SOUTH ENLARGED (KITTREDGE ST.)0' 8'4'2'

No. Description Date
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

BO
U

N
DA

RY
 L

IN
E

HOTEL SHATTUCK PLAZA 

PROPOSED EXISTING

NEW RECESSED ALCOVE TO 
PROVIDE ELECTRICAL ROOM ACCESS

CROWD MOULDING TO EXTEND AROUND CORNER

FACADE ALTERATIONS SCOPE ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXISTING BUILDING TO 

REMAIN IS LIMITED TO:

1) REMOVING THE EGRESS STAIRS SHOWIN IN PHOTO 4/A0-001 - A NEW EGRESS STAIR 
IS PROVIDED TO MAINTAIN THE EXITING FROM THE ELEVATED LEVELS AS ILLUSTARTED 
ON THE OVERALL SITE PLAN AND THE ENLARGED PLAN DIAGRAMS ON SHEET A1-201.

2) PROVIDING AN ALCOVE TO ACCESS THE NEW ELECTRICAL ROOM AS SHOWN ABOVE. 
THE EXISTING ELECTRICAL ROOM IS CURRENTLY LOCATED WITHIN THE AREA TO BE 
DEMOLISHED AND NEEDS TO BE RELOCATED.

CHARCOAL STUCCO

METAL DOOR, PAINT TO MATCH STUCCO

EXISTING EGRESS 
STAIRS BEYOND

1/8" = 1'-0"A3-006

1 PROPOSED ELEVATION - SOUTH ENLARGED (KITTREDGE ST.)0' 8'4'2'

b

BUILDING BASE - DESIGN OPTION 2

14 LANDMARKS REV. 5/18/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 29 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL U1
163'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

3'
-9

"
10

'-0
"

84
'-9

" -
 L

EV
EL

 1
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

PA
RA

PE
T 

- 5
'-0

" M
AX

AMENITY

COFFEE SHOP RETAIL

ELECTRICAL ROOM BIKE ROOM PARKING LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

87
'-0

" -
 L

O
W

ES
T 

G
RA

DE
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

PARKING PIT
156'-8"

STORAGE

A

B

C

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-101

BUILDING SECTION

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-101

1 BUILDING SECTION A - ZONING2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

NOT TO SCALE
SECTION KEYPLAN

No. Description Date
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 30 of 42



LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL U1
163'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

3'
-9

"

84
'-9

" -
 L

EV
EL

 1
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

87
'-0

" -
 L

O
W

ES
T 

G
RA

DE
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

PA
RA

PE
T 

- 5
'-0

" M
AX

WATER TANKSBIKE ROOM

FITNESS

PARKING PIT
156'-8"

LIVE/WORK UNIT

LEVEL 1.1
173'-3"

LEVEL 2
187'-3"

LEVEL 3
197'-3"

LEVEL 4
207'-3"

LEVEL 5
217'-3"

LEVEL 6
227'-3"

LEVEL 7
237'-3"

LEVEL 8
247'-3"

ROOF
257'-3"

LEVEL U1
163'-3"

LEVEL 1.2
177'-0"

MAX ROOF SLOPE
258'-0"

LOWEST GRADE
171'-0"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-3
"

3'
-9

"

84
'-9

" -
 L

EV
EL

 1
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

87
'-0

" -
 L

O
W

ES
T 

G
RA

DE
 T

O
 T

O
P 

O
F 

M
AX

 R
O

O
F 

SL
O

PE

PARKING

ENTRY
COURTYARD

PARKING
ENTRY

PARKING PIT
156'-8"

A

B

C

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-102

BUILDING SECTION

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

3/32" = 1'-0"A3-102

1 BUILDING SECTION B - ZONING
3/32" = 1'-0"A3-102

2 BUILDING SECTION C - ZONING2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4" 2'-8"0' 10'-8"5'-4"

NOT TO SCALE
SECTION KEYPLAN

No. Description Date
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 31 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-201

PERSPECTIVES

121246

TF, RK

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

NOT TO SCALEA3-201

3 PERSPECTIVE - HAROLD WAY AND KITTREDGE ST CORNER

NOT TO SCALEA3-201

2 PERSPECTIVE - SOUTH WEST CORNER AERIAL
NOT TO SCALEA3-201

1 PERSPECTIVE - ALLSTON WAY AND HAROLD WAY CORNER

No. Description Date
2 PRELIM APP SB330 7/21/21
3 SD SET 9/16/21
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

NOT TO SCALEA3-201

3 PERSPECTIVE - HAROLD WAY AND KITTREDGE ST CORNER4BUILDING BASE - OPTION 1 BUILDING BASE - OPTION 2

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 32 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-202

PERSPECTIVES

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

NOT TO SCALEA3-202

1 PERSPECTIVE - HAROLD WAY LIVE/WORK UNIT ENTRIES
NOT TO SCALEA3-202

2 PERSPECTIVE - NORTH WEST CORNER AERIAL

NOT TO SCALEA3-202

3 PERSPECTIVE - ALLSTON WAY AND HAROLD WAY RETAIL ENTRY

No. Description Date
8 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/17/22
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF, RK

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 33 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-301

SHADOW STUDIES -
JUNE 21

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

JUNE 21 MORNING

JUNE 21 EVENING

JUNE 21 NOON

2 HOURS AFTER SUNRISE - 7:47 AM

2 HOURS BEFORE SUNSET - 6:34 PM

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

HOTEL

NEW SHADOWS FROM PROPOSED PROJECT SHOWN IN RED

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HA
RO

LD
 W

AY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HA
RO

LD
 W

AY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 34 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-302

SHADOW STUDIES
-DEC 21

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

DECEMBER 21 MORNING

DECEMBER 21 EVENING

DECEMBER 21 NOON

2 HOURS AFTER SUNRISE - 9:21 AM

2 HOURS BEFORE SUNSET - 2:53 PM

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

NEW SHADOWS FROM PROPOSED PROJECT SHOWN IN RED

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLS
TON W

AY

KIT
TR

ED
GE S

T

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLS
TON W

AY

KIT
TR

ED
GE S

T

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

No. Description Date
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 35 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-303

SHADOW STUDIES
-DEC 10

121246

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

DECEMBER 10 MORNING

DECEMBER 10 EVENING

DECEMBER 10 NOON

2 HOURS AFTER SUNRISE - 9:14 AM

2 HOURS BEFORE SUNSET - 2:49 PM

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

TOP VIEW EXISTING TOP VIEW PROPOSED ANGLE VIEW EXISTING ANGLE VIEW PROPOSED

NEW SHADOWS FROM PROPOSED PROJECT SHOWN IN RED

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

RETAIL

LIBRARY
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

HOTEL

POST OFFICE

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

H
ARO

LD W
AY

SH
ATTU

CK AVE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAILLIBRARY

MULTI-
FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLSTON WAY

KITTREDGE ST

HAROLD
 W

AY

SH
AT

TU
CK

 A
VE

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLS
TON W

AY

KIT
TR

ED
GE S

T

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

HOTEL

RETAIL

PARKING

RETAIL

RETAIL

LIBRARY

COLLEGE

COLLEGE

ALLS
TON W

AY

KIT
TR

ED
GE S

T

HAROLD WAY

SHATTUCK AVE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

YMCA

POST OFFICE

RETAIL
MULTI-FAMILY

No. Description Date
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

TF

MM

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 36 of 42



HAROLD WAYSHATTUCK AVE

HAROLD WAY
SHATTUCK AVE

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-304

STREET STRIP
ELEVATIONS

121246

TF, RK

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

NOT TO SCALEA3-304

1 STREET STRIP ELEVATION - ALLSTON WAY

NOT TO SCALEA3-304

2 STREET STRIP ELEVATION - KITTREDGE ST

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY. PLEASE REFER TO ENLARGED ELEVATIONS FOR PROPOSED DESIGN

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

PROPOSED BUILDING PROVIDED FOR SCALE AND
GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY. THE FACADE DESIGN
HAS BEEN UPDATED IN RESPONSE TO DRC AND
STAFF FEEDBACK. PLEASE REFER TO A3-003 FOR
THE LATEST DESIGN UPDATE

PROPOSED BUILDING PROVIDED FOR SCALE AND
GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY. THE FACADE DESIGN
HAS BEEN UPDATED IN RESPONSE TO DRC AND
STAFF FEEDBACK. PLEASE REFER TO A3-002a &
A3-002b FOR THE LATEST DESIGN UPDATE

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 37 of 42



E1 - TAN STUCCO E2 - CHARCOAL GREY STUCCO E4 - BRICK E5 - WHITE FIBER CEMENT

E7 - ALUMINUM CANOPY E8 - EXTERIOR WALL SCONCE E9 - SIGNAGE

E3 - DARK TAN STUCCO

PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A3-305

MATERIAL BOARDS

121246

TF, RK

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

NOT TO SCALEA3-305

1 MATERIAL BOARD

No. Description Date
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 38 of 42



PROJECT # : 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

This drawing, as an instrument of service, is and 

shall remain the property of the Architects and shall 

not be reproduced, published or used in any way 

without the permission of the Architect.

N
O

T 
RE

LE
AS

ED
 F

O
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

APPLICANT:

BILL SCHRADER

T 925 638 8782

A5-001

SAMPLE UNITS

121246

TF

MM

BE
RK

EL
EY

 P
LA

ZA

CA
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
BE

RK
EL

EY
, 

CA
 9

47
04

3060 Peachtree Rd. N.W.
Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30305

T 404 365 7600

www.nilesbolton.com

3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

5 SAMPLE UNIT - A1
3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

3 SAMPLE UNIT - MS1
3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

4 SAMPLE UNIT - NS1
3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

2 SAMPLE UNIT - S2

5'-4"1'-4"0' 2'-8"

3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

1 SAMPLE UNIT - B1
3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

6 SAMPLE UNIT - B2
3/16" = 1'-0"A5-001

7 SAMPLE UNIT - C1

No. Description Date
4 USE PERMIT 10/25/21
5 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 12/10/21
6 SAP 12/22/21
9 SAP RESUBMIT. 3/23/22
11 USE PERMIT RESUBMIT. 3/28/22
12 APRIL DRC MEETING 4/11/22
13 JUNE LMRKS. MEETING 5/10/22

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 39 of 42



UP

UPUP

UPUP

UP

UP

UP

HAROLD WAY

KI
TT

R
ED

G
E 

ST
R

EE
T

AL
LS

TO
N

 W
AY

UP

UP

16"

FLAT

UP

UP

16"

16
"

℄ OF PLAZA

10
'-8

"

10'-8"

FLAT

STEPS

STEPS

BIKE RACK LOOPS
UNDER THE OVERHANG

CONCRETE PAVING WITH
ACCENT GRID SCORING

LINEAR SCORED CONCRETE
PAVING TO BLDG. ENTRY

28" HT. RAISED PLANTER
W/ SPECIMEN ACCENT TREE

36" HT. RAISED STORMWATER
TREATMENT PLANTER

24" HT. PREFABRICATED
FIBERGLASS PLANTERS
SET ALONG BLDG. WALL

CONCRETE PAVING WITH
SCORING

STEPS FROM THE COVERED
CORRIDOR

CITY-APPROVED STREET TREES
IN 4' x 8' TREE WELLS

BUILT-IN PLANTERS AT ARCH. COLUMNS
(30" HT., MATCH BLDG. FINISH)

CONCRETE PAVING W/ SCORING

BIKE RACK LOOP
UNDER THE OVERHANG

GARAGE ENTRY

PREFABRICATED BIORETENTION
PLANTERS ALONG BUILDING

BIKE RACK LOOP AT BLDG.
STEPS

STEPS

STEPS

SEATING DINING TABLES

BUILT-IN PLANTERS ENTRY RAMPS
(30" HT., MATCH BLDG. FINISH)

STEP

35' O.C.

DECORATIVE ARCHITECTURAL
SCREENS SET ON BLDG. WALL

PROPOSED STREET TREES
IN 4'x8' TREE WELLS

METAL BENCHES APPLIED
TO CONCRETE SEATWALL

CONVERSATION SEATING
AREAS W/ BENCHES AND
PREFABREICATED PLANTERS

BE
R

KE
LE

Y 
PL

AZ
A

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
R

EE
T

BE
R

KE
LE

Y,
 C

AL
IF

O
R

N
IA

R
W

 S
to

ve
r 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 I

n
c.

La
n

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
h

it
ec

tu
re

Ph
: 9

25
.9

33
.2

58
3

16
20

 N
or

th
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

4
W

al
n

u
t 

C
re

ek
, C

A
 9

45
96

L1

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
EV

EL
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN

REFER TO SHEET L2 FOR ROOF DECK LANDSCAPE
REFER TO SHEET L3 FOR PLANT LIST AND IMAGES

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 40 of 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOL(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM/EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM/EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE    SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S80°47'20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
257.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09°05'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
266.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N80°59'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
276.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE PER ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY MORAN ENGINEERING, FEBRUARY 5, 2021.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NOT SURVEYED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 2   SHATTUCK TRACT NO.2 (16 M 10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 6   SHATTUCK TRACT NO.2 (16 M 10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
180.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERTED CREEK INFLUENCE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-23-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Use Permit Resubmit

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/10/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
03-21-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-18-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signature

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
3017

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Expires 5/31/22



BUILT-IN COUNTER W/
(2) PROPANE GRILLS

ARCHITECTURAL OVERHEAD
SHADE ARBOR

CONVERSATION AREAS

36" HT. BUILT-IN RAISED
STORMWATER TREATMENT
PLANTER ALONG PERIMETER

24" SQ. PAVERS ON PEDESTALS

24" HT. PREFABRICATED
FIBERGLASS PLANTERS

CORNHOLE GAME

24" SQ. PAVERS
ON PEDESTALS

BE
R

KE
LE

Y 
PL

AZ
A

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
R

EE
T

BE
R

KE
LE

Y,
 C

AL
IF

O
R

N
IA

R
W

 S
to

ve
r 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 I

n
c.

La
n

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
h

it
ec

tu
re

Ph
: 9

25
.9

33
.2

58
3

16
20

 N
or

th
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

4
W

al
n

u
t 

C
re

ek
, C

A
 9

45
96

L2

EI
G

H
TH

 F
LO

O
R

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

REFER TO SHEET L3 FOR PLANT LIST AND IMAGES

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 41 of 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-23-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Use Permit Resubmit

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/10/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
03-21-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-18-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signature

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
3017

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Expires 5/31/22



PROPOSED PLANT MATERIAL LIST (ALL BUILDING LEVELS):
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME MATURE SIZE WUCOLS NATIVE     COUNT
TREES:                  SIZE(H'xW')                      WATER USE

STREET TREE (CITY-APPROVED) SEE PLAN 24" BOX MED NO 9

CERCIS OCCIDENTALIS (LOW-BRANCHING) WESTERN REDBUD 18'x18' 36" BOX LOW YES 1

SHRUBS:

*+CALYCANTHUS OCCIDENTALIS SPICE BUSH 8'x5' 5 GA LOW YES 7

+ERIOGONUM ARBORESCENS BUCKWHEAT 4'x4' 5 GA LOW YES 15

*+SALVIA CLEVE. 'WINNIFRED GILLMAN' CALIFORNIA BLUE SAGE 3'x5' 5 GA LOW YES 27

+SYMPHORICARPOS ALBUS COMMON SNOWBERRY 6'x8' 5 GA LOW YES 7

TEUCRIUM 'COMPACTA' DWARF GERMANDER 3'x3' 5 GA LOW NO 8

PERENNIALS / GRASSES:

* +ACHILLEA MILLEFOLIUM COMMON YARROW 1'x2' 1 GA LOW YES 73

ERIGERON GLAUCUS BEACH ASTER 1'x2.5' 1 GA LOW YES 43

*FESTUCA CALIFORNICA CALIFORNIA FESCUE 2'x3' 5 GA LOW YES 8

IRIS DOUGLASIANA PACIFIC COAST IRIS 1.5'x3' 5 GA LOW YES 5

*JUNCUS PATENS CALIFORNIA GRAY RUSH 1.5'x3' 1 GA LOW YES 34

*MUHLENBERGIA RIGENS DEER GRASS 4'x4' 5 GA LOW YES 14

+PENSTEMON HETEROPHYLLUS FOOTHILL PENSTEMON 3'x2' 1 GA LOW YES 43

POLYPODIUM CALIFORNICUM POLYPODY 1.5'x3' 5 GA VERY LOW YES 27

POLLINATOR PLANTS NOTE: 55% OF PLANT PALETTE IS NATIVE POLLINATOR SPECIES (182 OF 333 SPECIMENS)

+  DENOTES PLANT SPECIES RECOMMENDED AS POLLINATOR PLANT IN NORTHERN CALIFORNIA

*   DENOTES PLANT SPECIES SELECTED FROM THE ALAMEDA COUNTY APPENDIX B STORMWATER MEASURES PLANT LIST

BE
R

KE
LE

Y 
PL

AZ
A

20
65

 K
IT

TR
ED

G
E 

ST
R

EE
T

BE
R

KE
LE

Y,
 C

AL
IF

O
R

N
IA

R
W

 S
to

ve
r 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 I

n
c.

La
n

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
h

it
ec

tu
re

Ph
: 9

25
.9

33
.2

58
3

16
20

 N
or

th
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

4
W

al
n

u
t 

C
re

ek
, C

A
 9

45
96

L3

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

PL
AN

T 
LI

ST
, S

IT
E

AM
EN

IT
Y 

IM
AG

ES

PROJECT PRIVATE USABLE LANDSCAPE OPEN SPACE

TOTAL AREA LANDSCAPE AREA
· GROUND LEVEL 4,194 SF 1,177 SF
· ROOF LEVEL 2,742 SF   722 SF
                                                          ---------------------------------------------------------

6,936 SF 1,899 SF

CITY REQUIREMENT THAT LANDSCAPE AREA EQUALS 40% OF USABLE PRIVATE OPEN SPACE
TOTAL AREA OF LANDSCAPE  PROVIDED EQUALS 27.4% OF USABLE PRIVATE OPEN SPACE
 

PREFABRICATED PLANTERS
TOURNESOL 'WILSHIRE' COLLECTION

COLOR: BRONZE

BUILT-IN PLANTERS

BIKE RACKS
COLUMBIA CASCADE LOOP RACK

WITH GALVANIZED FINISH

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  ALL PLANTING SHALL BE WATERED BY FULLY AUTOMATIC,
  WATER-CONSERVING IRRIGATION SYSTEM.
2.  ALL PLANTING AREAS, EXCEPT FOR STORMWATER TREATMENT PLANTERS,
   SHALL RECEIVE A 3" LAYER OF FIRBARK MULCH DRESSING.
3.  STORMWATER TREATMENT PLANTERS SHALL RECEIVE A 2" DEEP
   LAYER OF 1-3/8"Ø DECORATIVE RIVER-WASHED GRAVEL.

METAL BENCHES (W/ CENTER ARMREST)
AT KITTREDGE PLAZA

6 FT. VEGA FROM CANTEBURY DESIGNS

PREFABRICATED BIORETENTION PLANTERS
TOURNESOL SITEWORKS FIBERGLASS

METAL BENCHES ON SEATWALLS

SPECIMEN ACCENT TREE IN RAISED PLANTER
CERCIS OCCIDENTALIS (WESTERN REDBUD)

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 42 of 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-23-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Use Permit Resubmit

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/10/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
03-21-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Design Review Submit

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-18-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signature

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
3017

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Expires 5/31/22



Berkeley Plaza 
2065 Kittredge St., Berkeley, CA 94704 

APPLICATION STATEMENT Revised Date: 5/24/2022

Berkeley Plaza is a proposed eight-story mixed-

use project located at 2065 Kittredge St. The 

design goal was to create a well-articulated and 

sculpted building which creates a unique 

statement in the area and provides much-

needed student housing in the Downtown area. 

The approximately 225,563 sf, eight-story 

project will be 87’0” in height to the top of the 

roof.  The site area is 33,582 sf.  All units will be 

rental.  The project will provide 5% of the base 

project as very low income units, qualifying for 

a 20% density bonus under state law (described 

below). The project consists of 188 dwelling 

units in eight stories with a mix of studios, one 

bedroom, two bedroom, three bedroom, and 

live/work units, ranging in size from 385 sf to 

1,374 sf. There are 43 parking spaces provided 

in an underground parking level.  

The architectural design of Berkeley Plaza is a 

contemporary blend of styles that will fit well 

into the context of the mixed historical 

streetscape surrounding the site. The project is 

designed to complement the scale and 

materiality of the neighboring historic Shattuck 

Hotel and the rest of the neighborhood. The 

design incorporates a traditional brick base with 

Mission style accent detailing and a more 

modern architectural mass above, referencing 

both the historic and the cutting-edge modern 

character of the City of Berkeley. At the ground 

level, the project will feature a pedestrian 

friendly streetscape and a landscaped plaza, 

creating an appealing lower level experience for 

residents and passing neighbors.   

The overall landscape and hardscape design 

minimizes long-term maintenance impacts in an 

effort to create a more Bay-friendly and 

environmentally-responsible project.  The 

ground level amenities and the roof-top deck 

will create excellent occupant locations for 

gathering spots and healthy outdoor living. 

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 1 of 5



The proposed Project is a less-intensive version of the project analyzed in the certified EIR for the 

2211 Harold Way project (aka, the Residences at Berkeley Plaza).  The administrative record for that project 

is available here: 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Board/2211_Harold.aspx 

The Final EIR is located here: 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_PHN/2015-03-

30_Final%20EIR%20and%20RTC_2211%20Harold.pdf.  The Draft EIR for that project can be accessed 

through the following links: 

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_part1_2211%20Harold%20Way.pdf

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_part2_2211%20Harold%20Way.pdf

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_Appendix_part1.pdf

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_Appendix_part2.pdf

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_Appendix_part3.pdf

• https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/Draft%20EIR_Appendix_part4%20.pdf

Part 3 of the Draft EIR is a 205-page historic resources technical report prepared by Architectural 

Resources Group for Rincon and discusses impacts re demolition, design and construction as well as a 

discussion of that project’s compliance with the Secretary of Interior Standards.  Additional historic 

documentation includes a report prepared by Bridget Maley of architecture+planning (available here: 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_ZAB/2012-02-

27_APP_Historic%20Rpt_2211%20Harold.pdf), 

Housing Affordability/Density Bonus Statement 

Berkeley Plaza is proposed as an all-rental project and would comply with the City’s Housing Mitigation Fee 

Ordinance by restricting rental rates according to the California State Density Bonus law. Berkeley Plaza will 

include Very Low Income Units in order to qualify for density bonus units, as well as one 

incentive/concession and waivers (for height, rooftop projections, setbacks, landscape coverage, and open 

space) under the State Density Bonus Law (Government Code section 65915).  The applicant would pay the 

resulting affordable housing impact fees reduced by virtue of the provision of the very low-income units. As 

noted above, the proposed level of affordability is at 5 percent of the base project (164 units) at very low-

income levels. The number of very low income units would be 9 units and these units would be reasonably 

dispersed throughout the building. The affordable units would be of comparable size, and would contain, on 

average, the same number of bedrooms, and have comparable appearance, materials and finish quality as 

the market rate units in the project. These units would also have access to the same common areas and 

amenities as the market rate units. The 20 percent density bonus would allow for up to 33 additional units, 

but only 24 of those bonus units are included in the project for a final total of 188 units. 

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 2 of 5



Waivers and Modifications Requested to Accommodate Density Bonus 

By virtue of the project's qualification for a density bonus, it qualifies for the waiver/reduction of any 

development standard that, if applied, would physically preclude the construction of the project with bonus 

units and the concession/incentive. (Gov. Code sect. 65915(e)(1).) The applicant will provide support to 

confirm that the following waivers/reductions are necessary so as not to physically preclude construction of 

the project as proposed. 

• Waiver to exceed the height limit – Proposed at 87’-0”, where 60 ft/75 ft with use permit is the

limit. The 87’-0” proposed is measured to top of roof and does not include the additional 5 feet

parapet allowed by right. Complying with the standard would require the building to reduce the

number of floors and eliminate residential units. This would physically preclude the construction of

the Project as proposed, including the number of residential units allowed under the State Density

Bonus Law.

• Waiver to construct rooftop projections, such as mechanical appurtenances or architectural

elements which exceed the maximum height limit for the district. Accommodating mechanical

appurtenances without exceeding the maximum height limit requires a reduction in residential area.

This would physically preclude the construction of the Project as proposed, including the number of

residential units allowed under the State Density Bonus Law.

• Waiver for minor encroachments above the sidewalks along Harold Way – encroachment up to

30” for a length of 110 feet and up to 12” for a length of 40 feet. The encroachments allow for

additional residential density to be captured in the Project.  Without this above-ground

encroachment, residential density would be reduced and would physically preclude the construction

of the Project as proposed.  We understand a separate application is required for the encroachment

request to be granted. The development team will pursue these approvals at a later date.

• Waiver to reduce the 15' minimum front setbacks above 75'. The constrained site physically

prohibits the inclusion of this amount of setback. Inclusion of this additional setback would require

reducing the building mass and residential density. Inclusion of this setback would physically

preclude the construction of the Project as proposed, including the number of residential units that

are allowed under the State Density Bonus Law.

• Waiver to increase the 5' maximum front setbacks between 0' to 20'. The increase setback

between 0 and 20’ in height allows for the inclusion of outdoor spaces on both Allston Way and

Kittredge Street that are counted as usable open space and are open to the public.

• Waiver to reduce the minimum landscape coverage of usable open space from 40% of the

provided usable open space to 30% of the provided usable open space. Reducing the minimum

landscape coverage of the usable open space allows for more public plaza and seating areas that

offer an amenity to both the residents of the site and the public.

• Waiver to reduce the required parking spaces for the commercial spaces from 5 required spaces to

0 provided spaces. Reducing the parking requirement for commercial spaces allows for more spaces

dedicated to residential use.

• Concession for reduction in useable open space and the percentage of associated landscaped area.

The Project qualifies for one concession and proposes to use it to reduce the amount of useable

open space from 15,040 SF down to 13,548 SF, a 10% reduction. This concession will result in

identifiable cost savings.

The cost per SF of for construction of the outdoor open space, including providing the necessary 

landscape, furniture and fixtures is estimated to be in the range of $80/SF. Granting this concession 

provides approximately $120,000 of cost savings, allowing for additional density to be captured and 

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 3 of 5



to help provide for affordable housing costs. 

Moreover, given the physical constraints of the site, inclusion of this additional outdoor space in full 

conformity with the City’s requirements would require a reduction in building mass which will result 

in a residential density reduction. Due to the geometry of the site, this additional open space would 

need to be provided as an elevated terrace in place of what is currently proposed as residential 

units.  In other words, were the open space requirement not reduced, it would result in the physical 

preclusion of the project as proposed (with the units added by virtue of the density bonus).  As such, 

this reduction can also be justified as a density bonus waiver of development standards. 

Berkeley Downtown Design Guidelines 

Architectural design and detailing is provided in the architectural package consistent with the downtown 

design guidelines. Items considered: 

• Proposed massing that incorporates elements to break up the façade planes and create visual play

of light and shadow.

• Clear delineations between the ground and upper levels to form a visual base of an appropriate

pedestrian scale.

• Change in material/plane at the top residential level to provide a defined building cap and a visual

termination.

• Architectural features including canopies, recessed entries and accent materials are implemented to

create visual interest at the base of the building.

• Durable materials proposed along the sidewalks.

• Accessible open space available to the public is provided along Kittredge Street and Allston Way to

activate the sidewalks and provide a strong connection to the ground level commercial and

amenities.

• Residential unit layouts and building configuration with open views toward the proposed courtyard

and public streets.

• Service and refuse located along the service alley, hidden from view.

• Storefronts provided at the ground level to maintain transparency and maximize visibility for the

interior.

• Arcades and building overhangs utilized where the building sets back at the ground level to maintain

continuity of the street wall.

• Proposed colors and finishes harmonious with the prevalent earth-tone colors of downtown

Berkeley.

• Publicly accessible street level entries provided on all public streets.

• Parking provided below grade hidden from view to maintain the pedestrian character of downtown.

Additionally, considerations were made for multiple significant design guidelines as identified in reviews of 

previous submissions.  

• Design Guideline #1 for Frontages, Setbacks, and Heights.

The majority of the units along Harold Way have been converted to live/work units with the

commercial component fronting the street and accessible directly from the sidewalks. Larger

windows to provide transparency and activate the sidewalks are now part of the façade design

Along Harold Way.

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 4 of 5



A courtyard fronting Kittredge Street and open to the public provides ample open space for the 

residents and public to enjoy. The courtyard location is chosen carefully to allow natural daylight to 

enter year-round. The main residential lobby, leasing office and ground level amenities are oriented 

toward the courtyard with the main residential entrance accessible directly from the courtyard. 

The ground level amenity fronting Allston Way is now proposed as an open to the public amenity 

with outdoor seating facing Allston. The architectural detailing around the outdoor seating along 

Allston & Harold is now designed to hold the edge of the street and provide street wall continuity. 

A Waiver to increase the 5’ frontage setbacks between 0’ to 20’ above sidewalks is requested at the 

following locations: 

o 6’-1” along Harold Way at the NW corner outside of the commercial space to allow for

seating/landscape. Planters are provided at that location right along the property edge.

o 19’-1” along Alston Way frontage to accommodate outdoor seating outside of the

commercial space.

o 8’-8” along Kittredge at the SE corner near the parking entrance to improve visibility coming

out of the parking deck. The building projects back out to the edge of the property 12’ above

the sidewalks at this location (overhang). Only the ground level is set-back from the property

edge.

• Design Guidelines #1 and #7 for Storefronts and Entrances

Design revisions and program adjustments have been made to address the design requirements for

Public Serving Frontages. Please refer to previous response for more detail.

• Design Guideline #10 for Frontages, Setbacks, and Heights.

The proposed project includes massing projections between levels 3 and 7 for a large percentage of

the footprint fronting public streets. This projection provides a defined project base and a visual

setback between levels 7 & 8 to help break up the building scale. The horizontal delineation

between levels 7 & 8 compliments the scale and massing of the Shattuck Hotel.

An enlarged South elevation (Kittredge) is provided to better illustrate the scale and massing

relationship between the proposed building and the Shattuck Hotel.

• Design Guidelines #6 and #7 for Open Spaces

Ground level open space along Kittredge Street and Allston way is designed to encourage public

access and connectivity between ground level amenities and the sidewalks. The courtyard along

Kittredge is located along the Southern edge of the building to maximize natural daylight.

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 2 
LPC 06-02-22 

Page 5 of 5



L E F T  C O A S T  A R C H I T E C T U R A L  H I S T O R Y

P.O. Box 70415, Richmond, CA. 94807    •    (415) 745-1906    •    caitlin@leftcoastarchitecturalhistory.com

Date: March 23, 2022
To: CA Ventures, c/o Jessica Fiorella
From: Caitlin Hibma, Principal/Architectural Historian

Left Coast Architectural History
Re: 2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation Analysis

This memorandum was completed by Left Coast Architectural History (see CV attached) for the property and 
proposed project at 2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley. The property, which occupies the city block bounded by 
Shattuck Avenue (east), Kittredge Street (south), Harold Way (west), and Allston Way (north), was determined to
be an individual historical resource for the purposes of CEQA (Section 15064.5(a)(2) of the CEQA guidelines) 
and is locally designated as a Berkeley Landmark (#69, 1983). 

The City of Berkeley Planning Department has requested “a complete analysis of all ten applicable standards, as 
well as supplementary analysis demonstrating compliance with the SOI Guidelines for Rehabilitation Standards 
#9 and 10.”1 In response, this memorandum performs said analysis per the CEQA-prescribed Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation (per Code of Federal Regulations, Title 36, Chapter 1, Part 68.3 (b)), and  
the “New Additions to Historic Buildings” section of The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment 
of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, & Reconstructing Historic 
Buildings.2 

Analysis is based primarily on proposed project drawings entitled “Berkeley Plaza, 2065 Kittredge Street, 
Berkeley, CA” authored by Niles Bolton Associates for CA Ventures, 17 March 2022. Background information 
and other project materials were also provided by the project sponsor for reference.

CHARACTER DEFINING FEATURES

Character defining features are the essential physical aspects of a resource that exemplify its historic materials
and determine its  structural  and aesthetic identity.  Character  defining features are the critical  elements of a
property's design that, if removed, would negate the property's ability to convey its historic significance.

1 M. Fatema Crane and Anne Burns, City of Berkeley Planning Department to Bill Schrader, Alamo, CA; Letter “re: 
Application for Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2021-0004 to alter the exterior of a City Landmark building and to
construct a new building on a City Landmarks site located at 2065 Kittredge Street in the CD/MU zoning district;” 2 
February 2022.

2 Kay D. Weeks and Anne E. Grimmer, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service; 1995.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 1 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis      23 March 2022

LAND USE PLANNING

Received

March 24, 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



Per the “Historic Resource Technical Report: 2211 Harold Way, Berkeley, CA” (Architectural Resource Group,
September 2014)3, the character defining features of the subject property are:

Overall massing, configurations, and volumes
  Five story height at Shattuck Avenue façade and portions of Allston Way and Kittredge Street 
 Hip‐roofed towers along Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way
 Varied roof heights
  Symmetrical façade arrangement at Shattuck Avenue
 One‐story 1912 restaurant addition along Allston Way
 One‐story 1926 addition at southwest corner of lot

Mission Revival style and detailing – Shattuck Hotel (1910, 1912 and 1913 portions)
  Red clay tile roofs
 Hip roofed, square towers separating hotel bays
  Smooth stucco/plaster finish on exterior walls, painted in light colored tones
 Arched window and entrance openings along Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way elevations
 Decorative tile work above main hotel entrance on Allston Way
 Deep, open eave overhangs with exposed rafters
 Decorative frieze panels and wall surface ornament
  Rusticated base of 1910 and 1912 portions of hotel along Allston Way

1926 Hink’s Addition
  Large multi‐pane steel windows
  Spanish style, red tile roof parapets with decorative volutes and wrought iron details
  Stucco cladding
 Molded cornice

PROPOSED PROJECT OVERVIEW

The proposed project will retain the original and early portions of the Shattuck Hotel (resource), including the 
original 1910 building, and the 1912 and 1913 additions, which span the Shattuck Avenue frontage and the 
eastern portions of the Allston Way and Kittredge Street frontages. The project will demolish the 1926 addition 
at the southwest corner of the lot, and the 1959 addition at the northwest corner of the lot.

A one-story portion of the 1913 addition (on its west side), which is publicly visible only as a section of wall 
fronting Kittredge Street, will be removed to the point where the resource rises to five stories. A margin of space 
will then be present between the five-story west facade of the resource and the eight-story east facade of the new 
building to be constructed on the western portion of the block. A recessed one-story hyphen will be constructed 
within the margin, set back from the facade of the resource and even with the ground-level facade of the new 
building. It will be styled to match the new construction.

The 1926 and 1959 additions on the western side of the block will be replaced by a new eight-story building 
with a roughly L-shaped plan that will contain 190 residential units, amenity areas, retail space, and a full 
basement for parking & utilities. The building will consist of a three-story podium of fire-resistive construction, 
with five stories of wood construction above. The exterior of the building will have Contemporary styling 
featuring materials such as brick, stucco, and metal accents at the podium level, and stucco and fiber cement 

3 The property/project was previously referred to as 2211 Harold Way, but is now identified by the address 2065 Kittredge
Street. The proposed project has been revised since 2014, but conditions at the property – including character defining 
features – remain the same.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 2 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



panels on the upper stories. Fenestration will consist of vinyl windows in punched openings at the residential 
units and storefront windows associated with the ground level amenities and commercial space. Applied trim 
will also work to unify up to two stories of windows vertically. Facades will be articulated with broad, shallow 
projecting bays of varying widths and placement, all overhanging the podium level and being shorter than the 
true roofline. 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR'S STANDARDS FOR REHABILITATION ANALYSIS

1. A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change to its 
distinctive materials, features, spaces and spatial relationships. 

The property was designed and constructed as a hotel with ground floor retail space. Later additions also served 
hotel and retail uses. The proposed project will retain the portion of the building that historically housed hotel 
and retail functions and those uses will continue. Removal of the one-story western portion of the 1913 addition 
will have no effect on the continued use of the related space as a retail unit. The portion to be demolished was 
occupied by Shattuck Cinemas after 1989 and was not originally or historically used as a cinema. New 
construction on the west side of the block will replace later retail additions. However, retail uses (including 
associations with Hink's department store) will remain well-represented in the retained portion of the building, 
fronting Shattuck Avenue. The new construction will introduce residential use, which was not present at the 
property previously; however, high-density residential use is compatible with hotel use; the only significant 
difference being duration/permanence of occupants' stay. 

The fact that historic uses will be maintained in the portion of the property to be retained and that new uses will 
be compatible with historic uses means that the project complies with Standard 1.

2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or 
alteration of features, spaces and spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

The proposed project will retain the original Shattuck Hotel building, as well as its early (1912, 1913) additions. 
Identified character defining features of the building and the appearance of its primary facade facing Shattuck 
Avenue will not be removed or altered. Portions of the building will also remain intact along Allston Way and 
Kittredge Street.

The removal of the one-story portion of the 1913 addition will occur at the rear of the significant main mass of 
the resource (in a secondary/tertiary location) and only at the first story. Only one character defining feature of 
the resource, stucco cladding, is located there and it is well-represented elsewhere on the property, so its removal
will not be detrimental.

In replacing the 1926 addition, identified character defining features will be lost; such as one-story height; multi‐
pane steel-sash windows; red tiled parapets with decorative volutes and wrought iron details; stucco cladding; 
and molded cornice. At least four of those features – stucco cladding, red clay tile roofline elements, steel sash 
windows, and molded cornices – are represented or closely echoed on the portion of the property to be retained, 
and so will not be entirely lost. Additionally, per Architectural Resources Group's evaluative DPR 523 Forms 
within the Historic Resources Technical Report, the 1926 addition was not identified as architecturally 
significant (under criterion C/3, architecture) and only as significant for associations with patterns of 
neighborhood development (under criterion A/1, events). Thus, the architecture-based character defining features
of the 1926 addition identified by the same report are not particularly expressive of the building's significant 
associations with neighborhood development patterns (a point of significance that will also continue to be 
embodied in the retained portion of the property). Therefore, it follows that loss of the 1926 addition and its 

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 3 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



architectural features would not result in the removal of distinctive elements of the property to a detrimental 
level.

As the significant architectural character and  historic associations of the property will not be wholly removed 
and will continue to be represented in the retained portion of the building, the proposed project complies with 
Standard 2.

3. Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that create a false 
sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, 
will not be undertaken. 

The proposed project would not attempt to add conjectural features or elements to either the existing building or 
the proposed new construction that would create a false sense of the property's historical development. The 
portion of the property to be retained would not be subject to any work that would achieve such ends. New 
construction on the western portion of the block will be Contemporary in style, while making reference to the 
historic fabric of the retained portion of the property; incorporating arch forms, stucco cladding, punched 
window openings, and a sympathetic rhythm of fenestration and structural bays. These will be subtly referenced 
and will pose minimal risk of being interpreted as historic elements and will not create misunderstanding of the 
property's development over time.

Because the proposed project does not introduce elements of false historicism, the project complies with 
Standard 3.

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be retained and 
preserved. 

The Shattuck Hotel was initially constructed in 1910, with additions made in 1912, 1913, 1926, and 1959. The 
1910-1926 additions have been identified as significant for associations with significant events, while only the 
1910-1913 additions have been identified as architecturally significant. Subsequently, the 1926 addition is 
significant for association with events, but not architecture. The 1959 addition was deemed not significant under 
any criteria.

The proposed project will demolish the non-significant 1959 addition, and the 1926 addition that is significant 
for association with events only. Those events consist of a general connection to commercial development 
patterns in Downtown Berkeley between the 1870s and 1930s. Although the 1926 addition will be removed from
the property, the themes and associations with commercial development in Downtown Berkeley will still be 
represented by the ground-floor retail spaces in the retained portion of the building, which was the original 
location of the Hink's department store that eventually expanded into the 1926 addition. Likewise, the removal 
of the one-story portion at the rear of the 1913 addition does not represent full removal of that addition, nor the 
elements of it (like storefronts) that are most expressive of its retail use. It will also not greatly impact any of the 
character defining features that give the 1913 addition architectural significance.

Thus, although the removal of the 1926 addition and rear portion of the 1913 addition would remove elements of
the property that have gained significance in their own right, the property's overall historic significance – both in 
terms of events and architecture – will continue to be represented in the portions of the property to be retained; 
therefore, complying with Standard 4.

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 
characterize a property will be preserved. 

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 4 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



The proposed project will retain the original Shattuck Hotel building, as well as its early (1912, 1913) additions; 
preserving the identified character defining features of the building and the appearance of its primary facade 
facing Shattuck Avenue. Portions of the building will also be preserved along Allston Way and Kittredge Street.
The removal of the one-story portion of the 1913 addition will occur at the rear of the significant main mass of 
the  and only at the first story level. No identified character defining materials, features, finishes, or examples of 
construction techniques or craftsmanship are located on that small portion of the addition or are well-represented
elsewhere on the retained portion of the property.

In replacing the 1926 addition, a few basic character defining features will be lost; such as one-story height; 
multi‐pane steel-sash windows; red tiled parapets with decorative volutes and wrought iron details; stucco 
cladding; and molded cornice. At least four of those features – stucco cladding, red clay tile roof elements, steel 
sash windows, and molded cornices – are represented or closely echoed on the portion of the property to be 
retained, and so will be preserved. Additionally, the 1926 addition was not determined to be architecturally 
significant (see Standard 2); therefore, it follows that even with the removal of the 1926 addition and its 
architectural features, the distinctive elements that characterize the property and convey its historic significance 
will be preserved in the retained portions of the property.

As the significant architectural qualities and  historic associations of the property will be preserved and 
represented in the retained portion of the building, the proposed project complies with Standard 5.

6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration 
requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in design, color, texture and, 
where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary and physical 
evidence.

It is not the intent of the proposed project to address or remedy issues of deteriorated fabric or features on the 
historic portions of the property to be retained. Instead, the project seeks to introduce new construction to the 
western portion of the block. Should any historic features be accidentally damaged in the course of construction 
they will be repaired or replaced with reference to physical and/or documentary evidence.

As the project will not attempt to replicate or replace any existing or missing features, the proposed project 
complies with Standard 6.

7. Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 
Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used. 

No chemical or physical treatments are proposed to be used in relation to the project, as cleaning and/or removal
of existing finishes and materials related to the historic portions and fabric of the property are not part of the 
scope. If, for any reason, such treatments are required, the gentlest means possible will be used. Proposed 
demolition of some portions of the property will be undertaken in such a way as to avoid damage to those 
historic materials to be retained.

Therefore, the project complies with Standard 7.

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be disturbed, 
mitigation measures will be undertaken. 

There are no known archaeological resources at the subject property; however, some ground-disturbing activities
may be associated with the project and if any archaeological resources are uncovered in the course of demolition 
or construction, all work will be halted and action will be taken pursuant to existing mitigation measures.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 5 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



Therefore, the project complies with Standard 8.

9. New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features 
and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work will be differentiated from the old and 
will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the 
integrity of the property and its environment.

The historic Shattuck Hotel and its early (1912, 1913) additions will be retained and preserved, retaining a strong
historic presence along Shattuck Avenue and fully embodying the property's historic significance as a Berkeley 
Landmark. The proposed project will primarily introduce related new construction to the property, which will be 
physically separate from and have no impact upon the retained portions of the property or the historic fabric 
located there. The new construction will be Contemporary in style and use some differing materials (brick and 
metal) and forms (rectilinear massing with podium, shallow projecting bays, and other articulation) to 
differentiate it from the adjacent historic building. Meanwhile, some compatible and historically referential 
materials (stucco and brick) will be used, while subtle and compatible references to the features of the historic 
building may be found in a defined podium or base, arched window trim, a ground-floor arcade, stucco cladding,
punched window openings, and a sympathetic rhythm of fenestration and structural bays. The location of the 
new construction will be at the rear of the historic building in relation to the main commercial corridor and thus 
subservient. In this location and rising only slightly higher than the resource, it will be visually screened from 
views along Shattuck Avenue so that significant aspects of size, scale, proportion, massing, and spatial 
relationship will be mitigated.

The new construction will be aesthetically compatible with the subject building, but differentiated as its own 
Contemporary and subservient entity; therefore, complying with Standard 9.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if 
removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 

New construction of the eight-story building on the western portion of the block will be detached from the 
resource, except for a small egress hyphen between the new construction and the 1913 addition, along Kittredge 
Street. This means that future removal of the new construction would have no impact on the resource's 
significant form, features, or continued integrity. The new construction will necessitate the demolition of existing
portions of the structure, which constitute later additions of varying or no significance; however, per analysis of 
the preceding Standards, the removal of these portions of the property will not constitute the detrimental removal
of essential or character defining forms and will not impair the retained portions of the property or the historic 
significance they embody.

Since the new construction could be removed without harming the historic retained portions of the property, the 
project complies with Standard 10.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR'S GUIDELINES FOR REHABILITATION

The Guidelines for Rehabilitation4 that relate to Standards 9 and 10 are found under the section titled “New 
Additions to Historic Buildings.”  Recommended and not-recommended approaches are provided. The following
describes those approaches and how the proposed project addresses each. (“Addition” is interpreted herein as 

4 Kay D. Weeks and Anne E. Grimmer, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service; The Secretary 
of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, 
Rehabilitating, Restoring, & Reconstructing Historic Buildings; 1995. 112-113.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 6 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



adjacent new construction, as the proposed project does not constitute a true addition to the historic building.) 

• Recommended: Placing functions and services required for new use in non-character defining interior 
spaces rather than constructing a new addition. Not recommended: Expanding the size of the historic 
building by constructing a new addition when the new use could be met by altering non-character 
defining interior spaces.

The goals of the proposed project – to provide 190 units of housing and related amenities – are not 
achievable within the existing structure, especially considering its continued use as a hotel. The new 
construction removes portions of the property that cannot accommodate the new use, yet are not critical 
to the significance and integrity of the resource, and provides a new detached building to serve project 
goals.

• Recommended: Constructing a new addition so that there is the least possible loss of historic materials 
and so that character defining features are not obscured, damaged, or destroyed. Not recommended: 
Attaching a new addition so that the character defining features of the historic building are obscured.

New construction will be located at the rear of the resource, adjacent to a tertiary facade that bears no 
character defining features. Aside from a small hyphen, it will not be physically attached to or abut the 
historic building and, thus, will not obscure, damage, or destroy historic fabric or features. The removal 
of the one-story portion of the 1913 addition will occur in an area that has no character defining features 
that are not represented elsewhere on the retained portion of the building.

• Recommended: Designing a new addition in a manner that makes clear what is historic and what is 
new. Not recommended: Duplicating the exact form, material, style and detailing of the historic building
in a new addition so that the new work appears to be part of the historic building. Or: Imitating a 
historic style or period of architecture in a new addition.

The new construction will clearly be Contemporary in style and will not attempt to mimic any historic 
style. It will respectfully reference a few forms (like arches) and materials (like stucco) found on the 
historic building, but will not duplicate any form, feature, or material to the extent that the age or 
character of the new building are misrepresented.

• Recommended: Considering the design for an attached exterior addition in terms of its relationship to 
the historic building as well as the historic district or neighborhood. Design for the new work may be 
contemporary or may reference design motifs from the historic building. In either case, it should always 
be clearly differentiate from the historic building and compatible in terms of mass, materials, 
relationship of solids to voids, and color. Not recommended: Designing and constructing a new addition 
that results in the diminution or loss of the historic character of the resource, including its design, 
materials, workmanship, location, or setting.

The new construction will respectfully reference design motifs (like arches and stucco cladding) found 
on the historic building, but will apply them in a way that is modern and easily differentiated from 
historic craftsmanship. Massing and articulation will reference the blocky, monumental qualities of the 
historic building, but will be located at its rear, and will be articulated and rendered in a darker color 
(aside from the projecting bays in a brighter color, that reference the height of the resource), so as to 
allow the historic building to remain visually prominent in views from Shattuck Avenue and the new 
construction to recede behind it.

• Recommended: Placing a new addition on a non-character defining elevation and limiting the size and 

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 7 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



scale in relationship to the historic building. Not recommended: Designing a new addition that 
obscures, damages, or destroys character defining features of the historic building.

The new construction will be located to the rear of the resource, adjacent to a tertiary facade that bears 
no character defining features. It also exhibits articulation of facades and rooflines, particularly evident 
the projecting bays, combined with a play of projecting and receding colors, to visually mitigate height 
and bulk and diminish the presence of the new building in views from Shattuck Avenue.

• Recommended: Designing a rooftop addition when required for the new use, that is set back from the 
wall plane and as inconspicuous as possible when viewed from the street. Not recommended: 
Constructing a rooftop addition so that the historic appearance of the building is radically changed.

The proposed new construction does not include any rooftop additions. The new building will be slightly
taller than the historic building; however, the difference is negligible relative to building heights in the 
surrounding area, which range from one to thirteen stories within a one-block radius, with the majority 
in the middle of that range, as the resource and new building would also be. The taller mass is located to 
the rear of the historic building and is, thus, subservient. It also exhibits articulation of facades and 
rooflines, particularly evident the projecting bays, combined with a play of projecting and receding 
colors, to visually mitigate height and bulk and diminish the presence of the new building in views from 
Shattuck Avenue.

CONCLUSION

In summary, the above analysis finds that the proposed project at 2065 Kittredge Avenue complies with the 
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and follows the additional Guidelines to ensure sensitive 
new additions to historic properties. Subsequently, as proposed, the project would not constitute an impact to a 
historic resource per CEQA.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Principal/Architectural Historian
Left Coast Architectural History

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 8 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



L E F T  C O A S T  A R C H I T E C T U R A L  H I S T O R Y

P.O. Box 70415, Pt. Richmond, CA. 94807  •  (415) 745-1906  •  caitl in@leftcoastarchitecturalhistory .com

RESUMÉ   •  CAITLIN PAIGE HIBMA, PRINCIPAL
PROFILE

Architectural Historian with extensive background in research, writing, and project management; has undertaken
a wide range of historic resource evaluations, HABS documentation projects, and tax credit applications; lead
twelve historic resource survey and context statement projects in California; and successfully nominated seven
properties  to  national,  state,  and  local  historic  registers. Serves  the  community as  a  Historic  Preservation
Commissioner  and  Board  Secretary  of  a  local  historical  association.  Meets  the  Secretary  of  the  Interior's
Professional Qualification Standards for Architectural History.

EXPERIENCE

Architectural Historian, Principal                                 June 2010 – Present
Left Coast Architectural History; Point Richmond, California

 Independent architectural historian taking on a variety of  contracts to complete historic resource surveys
and evaluations, tax credit applications, HABS documentation, and other preservation planning projects.
Handles marketing, contracting, client servicing, and all other firm functions.

 Registered as a Pre-Qualified Historic Resources Consultant with the City of San Francisco Planning
Department. 

 Noteworthy projects: Sausalito Historic Context Statement; First St.  John's Methodist Church HABS
documentation; 1929 Bed & Breakfast Inn, Napa Impacts Analysis and advocacy; numerous Historic
Resource Evaluation and Impacts Analysis reports for properties throughout the Bay Area.

Architectural Historian, Senior Project Manager                        March 2007 – June 2010
Page & Turnbull, Inc.; San Francisco, California

 Senior Project Manager for firm's Cultural Resources Studio; responsible for management of own and
others'  project  work,  budgeting  and  invoicing,  studio  staffing  and  project  assignments,  review and
quality control of deliverables, proposal writing and business development. 

 Noteworthy projects: New Monterey Historic Resources Survey & Context Statement, Heritage Napa
Historic Resource Surveys & Context Statements, San Francisco Japantown Better Neighborhood Plan,
One  Kearny Federal  Historic  Preservation  Certification,  Roos  House  National  Register  nomination
(Listed October 2009).

Architectural Historian              January 2006 – March 2007
Carey & Company, Inc.; San Francisco, California

 Performed project  work,  including historic  resource evaluations,  survey and inventory projects,  and
cultural resources components for EIRs.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 9 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



 Noteworthy Projects: San Jose Japantown Historic Survey & Context Statement, San Francisco Public
Utilities Commission Water System Improvement Project EIRs, Colombo Building National Register
Nomination (Listed January 2008).

Historic Preservation Consultant          September 2003 – December 2005
Historic Preservation Northwest; Albany, Oregon

 Performed survey and evaluation of historic properties for Section 106/FCC Programmatic Agreement
applications, and contributed to historic resources surveys and context statements.

 Noteworthy  Projects:  Forest  Grove Historic  Resources  Survey,  Benton County Barns  Survey,  River
Road Historic Resources Survey & Context Statement.

Historic Preservation Consultant  November 2004 – October 2005
Eugene, Oregon

 Completed National Register nominations, State Special Assessment and Federal Historic Preservation
Certification  applications  for  McCracken  Brothers  Motor  Freight  Warehouse,  Eugene,  OR.  (Listed
September 2005) and Marx-Shafers House, Eugene, OR. (Listed August 2006)

EDUCATION

Master of Science in Historic Preservation             September 2004
University of Oregon; Eugene, Oregon
Thesis: The Vernacular Significance of Monterey Colonial Style Architecture

Bachelor of Arts in Art History                      May 2002
Randolph Macon Woman's College (Randolph College); Lynchburg, Virginia
Senior Paper: The Architectural History of  the Randolph Macon Woman's College Campus

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

City of Richmond Historic Preservation Commission, Commissioner.
Point Richmond History Association, Board Secretary
Richmond Museum of History, Member.
Contra Costa County Historical Society, Member.
San Francisco Architectural Heritage, Member.
Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, Member.
California Preservation Foundation, Member
Daggett Historical Society, Member, special projects contributor.
Friends of the Adobes, Member.

2065 Kittredge Street, Berkeley 10 of 10      Left Coast Architectural History
SoI Standards Analysis                 23 March 2022

ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 3 
LPC 06-02-22 



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 1 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 2 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 3 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 4 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 5 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 6 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 7 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 8 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 9 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 10 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 11 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 12 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 13 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 14 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 15 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 16 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 17 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 18 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 19 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 20 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 21 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 22 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 23 of 24



ITEM 8. ATTACHMENT 4 
LPC 06-02-22 
Page 24 of 24



L A N D M A R K S

P R E S E R V A T I O N

C O M M I S S I O N

S t a f f R e p o r t

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

` 
REFERRAL

JUNE 2, 2022

742 Grayson Street 
Demolition Referral: Use Permit #ZP2021-0161 to demolish a complex of 
four industrial buildings originally constructed circa 1937, and an office 
building constructed in 1950. 

I. Application Basics

A. Parties Involved:

• Project Applicant: Rob Zirkle
405 14th Street, Suite 500 
Oakland, CA 

• Evaluator: Page & Turnbull 
170 Maiden Lane 
San Francisco, CA 

• Property Owner: 742 Grayson Owner, LLC., c/o Redco Development
1 Montgomery Street 
San Francisco, CA 

B. Staff Recommendation: Consider the extent to which this property exhibits
historical significance and then take no action to initiate 
further consideration. . 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 2 of 10 
 

 

II. Background 
On September 1, 2021, the applicant submitted a Use Permit application to demolish 
the buildings at 742 Grayson Street, located in West Berkeley, near Aquatic Park. The 
Use Permit proposes to construct a four-story, commercial building with approximately 
213,000 square-feet for research and development and manufacturing uses, and a 
seven-level 325-space parking garage. 
 
The Use Permit application is under review by the Zoning Officer, who will recommend a 
determination for environmental review compliance pursuant to CEQA. At this time, the 
proposal is expected to reach the Design Review Committee in the coming months and 
to complete a hearing before the Zoning Adjustments Board later this year. More 
information can be found on the City’s website, linked below.  

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx 
 
Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 23.326.070(C), any application for a Use 
Permit to demolish a non-residential building or structure which is 40 or more years old 
shall be forwarded to the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) for review prior to 
consideration of the Use Permit for demolition. Given the lack of a current, City-wide 
comprehensive historic resource survey, the referral requirement is understood to 
address the potential for the loss of unidentified significant resources.  

 
In considering the proposed demolition of a structure, the Commission will weigh the 
potential to meet the significance criteria for COB Landmarks and Historic Districts in the 
City’s Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3), which 
are relatively specific and appear to align with the California Register. The Commission 
will also weigh the potential to meet the broader COB Structure of Merit criteria, which 
can include structures that are neither individually architecturally distinctive nor 
associated with significant people or events but may qualify as contributors to identified 
districts, areas, or clusters. The LPC may initiate a designation or take no action based 
on the significance criteria, and may still forward comments regarding potential project 
conditions such as relocation, salvage, and/or photographic documentation to the 
Zoning Adjustments Board for consideration in its action on the application.  
 

III. Historical Resource Status 
  The subject building does not appear on the National Register of Historic Places, 

California Register of Historical Resources, or the State Historic Resources Inventory. 
 
Nearby City Landmarks and Structures of Merit include: the Durkee Famous Foods 
Plant at 740 Heinz Street (1916), and the Miles Cuter Laboratories at 700 Parker Street 
(see Figure 1). Both have been demolished. Existing nearby landmarks include the 
Standard Die & Specialty Company at 2701 Eighth Street (1924), and the H.J. Heinz 
Company at 2900 San Pablo Avenue (1927). 

  

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx


   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 3 of 10 
 
 

 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map showing nearby City Landmarks 

 
 
 

 
  

Use Permit 
Project Site 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 4 of 10 
 

 

Figure 2: Subject Property – Aerial View of Buildings (Historic Resource Evaluation, 2021) 

 
 
Figure 3: Subject Property – Office Building, North Elevation (Historic Resource Evaluation, 2021) 

 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 5 of 10 
 
 

 

Figure 4: Subject Property – East Warehouse, North Elevation (Historic Resource Evaluation, 2021) 

 
 
Figure 5: Subject Property – Central Warehouse and Factory Building, North Elevation (Historic 
Resource Evaluation, 2021) 

 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 6 of 10 
 

 

Figure 6: Subject Property – Factory Building and West Warehouse, West Elevation (Historic 
Resource Evaluation, 2021) 

 
 
 
IV. Property Description 
 
  The historic resource evaluation (HRE) for the subject property was completed by Page 

and Turnbull in June 2021; please see Attachment 1 of this report. The following 
description derives from the information contained in the HRE as well as the City’s land 
use archives and building permit records. 

 
Parcel Description: The subject parcel is on the south side of Grayson Street, between 
the Southern Pacific right of way (west), and Seventh Street (east). The lot is 107,116 
square-feet in area. There is a two-story office building and a one- to three-story 
warehouse and factory complex on the eastern portion of the lot. The west portion of the 
lot is undeveloped. There is a paved vehicle parking and loading area east and south of 
the office building. 

 
Building Descriptions:  

 
Office Building. The office building is located at the northeast corner of the parcel, 
and is rectangular and clad in stucco. The building includes International Style 
components such as an asymmetrical massing and façade, wide horizontal bands 
of windows with protruding rectilinear framing, smooth, flat, stucco-clad surfaces, 
and a long brick planter. There is a single metal pedestrian door at the primary, 
north façade. A flat awning covers the entrance, and is supported by square metal 
post. There are eight rectangular, three-part, metal-frame windows within a slightly 
protruding stucco-clade frame, along the one-story portion of the north façade. A 
low brick planter starts left of the entrance, and wraps around the building to the 
east façade, ending where the windows end on the east side. 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 7 of 10 
 
 

 

 
Warehouse and Factory Complex. The warehouse and factory complex consists of 
four interconnected buildings that form a u-shape, with the opening of the u facing 
southeast.  
 
The east warehouse is rectangular and one-story, with a shallow-pitched gable 
roof. The north elevation includes industrial steel sash windows and wood-frame 
windows, and a roll-up metal door. 
 
The central warehouse is rectangular and two stories, with a shallow-pitched gable 
roof. There are two rows of industrial steel sash windows. 
 
The three-story irregular shaped factory building is at the northwest corner of the 
complex, and features a central, rectangular tower. Wood staircases and wood 
railings on the north façade lead to two pedestrian entrances with unglazed metal 
doors. West of the doors, there are six square panels that are likely boarded or 
painted over windows. There is a similar row of boarded or painted over windows 
on the west facade. On the west façade, there is a faded painted sign on the tower 
that reads “Wesco” and shows a paint roller.  
 
The west warehouse is rectangular and two stories, with a flat roof. There are two 
rows of industrial steel sash windows along the west façade.  
 
The exteriors of the buildings include corrugated sheet metal, with some concrete 
and wood siding.  

 
  Early Site History & Parcel Development: The property was part of a larger 24-acre 

parcel owned by E. M. Hall in 1878. In 1903, the west portion of the property was 
occupied by the distillery and warehouse of the Golden West Company. A 1911 
Sanborn map shows an addition joining the former distillery and warehouse, and it is 
noted that the site had been occupied by Stauffer Chemical Works. Stauffer Chemical 
Company sold the property to West Coast Kalsomine in 1912. 

 
 West Coast Kalsomine constructed a one-story office and store room in 1912. Russell S. 

Penniman was president of the company in the early years, and an important figure in 
industrial chemistry and dynamite production. The company was referred to as “Wesco” 
as early as 1912, but most materials before the 1940s state the name as West Coast 
Kalsomine. The company made white and tined powders that were mixed with water 
before application to create paint.  

 
 A photograph from 1931 shows that sheds lined the rail spur at the southwest corner of 

the parcel, there was a two-story warehouse centered at the north boundary, and a long 
narrow building at the east boundary. The extant factory complex was completed in 
1938. A 1946 aerial photograph shows the current warehouse and factory complex, 
along with a large building west of the warehouse and factory complex, labeled the 
“Crude Material Building” in Sanborn maps, and the warehouse at the southwest corner 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 8 of 10 
 

 

of the property from 1903.  
.  
 The extant, International Style office building was built in 1950.The engineer was J.B. 

Tulloch, and the builder was J.F. Tulloch.  
 
 The 1950 Sanborn Map labels the property as Weso Waterpaints Inc. The Wesco plant 

ceased operation in 1958, and the property was sold to the Pittsburgh Plate Glass 
Company. The Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company used the site for adhesives 
manufacturing and distribution. The Crude Material Building was removed around 1962.  

 
 In 1971 the National Starch & Chemical Corporation purchased the property, and used it 

and the adjacent property (800 Grayson Street) for water based and solid adhesive 
compounding and distribution. They also produced starches, flavorings, and seasonings 
for food processing companies. Buildings at the southwest portion of the property were 
demolished between 1980 and 1993. 
 
In 2008, Henkel Corporation acquired the adhesives and electronic materials operations 
of National Starch, and in 2017 Henkel sold the property to the current owner. 

 
The ownership and occupancy history of the subject building are available in detail in the 
HRE, Attachment 1. 

 
V.  Evaluation of Significance Criteria 
 
 Historic Context1: For the purpose of contextualizing and focusing this discussion of 

potential historical significance, staff concludes that the period of significance for the 
property would have begun with the construction of the subject structures around 1937 
and continued until no longer than 40 years prior to this evaluation, or 1982. The 
minimum 40-year threshold for historical maturity is derived from the demolition referral 
provisions of BMC Section 23.326.070. Owing to the subject building’s design, 
continued use as an industrial structure, and its location in the West Berkeley industrial 
neighborhood, it is associated with the historical theme of industrial development.   

 
Significance Criteria: The subject property is evaluated based on the criteria of the 
National Register of Historic Places, California Register of Historical Resources (CR), 
and the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (LPO/BMC 3.24). The existing buildings are 
more than 50 years old and, therefore, may be considered eligible for listing on the 
National Register of Historic Places or the California Register of Historical Resources. 
Because it is more than 40 years old, BMC Section 23C.08.050 requires that it be 
evaluated for potential local significance prior to issuance of any demolition entitlement. 
 
The evaluation concentrates on possible associations with events (CR-1, BMC Sections 
3.24.110(A)(2) and (B)(2)), persons (CR-2, BMC Section 3.24.110(A)(4)), architectural 
design (CR-3, BMC Sections 3.24.110(A)(1)(a-c) and (B)(2)(a and c)), and 

                                                 
1 National Register Bulletin #15, Item V: How to Evaluate a Property within its Historic Context (2002); National Register 
Bulletin #16A. Section III: How to Complete the National Register Registration – Period of Significance (1997).  

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 9 of 10 
 
 

 

information/education (CR-4, BMC Section 3.24.110(A)(3)). The results of the 
consultant’s and staff’s evaluations are discussed below.     

 
Events – CR Criterion 1/BMC Criterion Historical Value 
The longest-term owner of the property, West Coast Kalsomine Company/Wesco Paints 
constructed the circa 1937-1950 buildings present on the site. West Coast Kalsomine 
Company established its plant at the site in 1912, continuing an existing pattern of 
development and use established by earlier area businesses. West Coast Kalsomine 
Company, Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company, and National Starch & Chemical 
Corporation do not appear to have made significant contributions in the history of 
manufacturing industries. For this reason, the property does not exhibit historical 
significance under the local or state criteria. 

 
Persons – CR Criterion 2/BMC Criterion Cultural Value 
The property is associated with the chemist Russell S. Penniman, who died two years 
after the Grayson Street plan was established. Although Penniman made contributions to 
industrial chemistry and dynamite production, his career is not closely connected to his 
time with West Coast Kalsomine Company, nor to the extant buildings. Similar to the 
findings and conclusions for the previous significance criterion, this property is not 
associated with a historically significance person. 
 
Design – CR Criterion 3/BMC Criteria Architectural Merit  
The office building has International Style elements, and the warehouse and factory 
complex is utilitarian in its design. These structures do not strongly represent an 
architectural style or movement, in spite of the notable features of the office building. 
They do not appear to be the work of master designers or builders. Today, the buildings 
could not be considered outstanding or distinctive examples of their respective styles 
and, therefore, the buildings are not significant for their design. 
  
Information – CR Criterion 4/BMC Criterion Educational Force 
There have been no recent CA Historical Resource Information System investigations 
for the subject parcel or its environs, but previous research concluded that it was not 
likely to yield archeological information or other sub-surface resources related to pre-
history or pre-colonial and tribal cultural resources.   

 
LPO/BMC Criteria for Structure of Merit 
As a potential Structure of Merit (BMC Section 3.24.110.B, Paragraph 2), the extant 
complex does not appear to be worthy of preservation as part of a neighborhood, a 
block, or a street frontage, or a group of buildings which include City Landmarks 
because:  

• The subject buildings are not contemporaries of any nearby City Landmark 
structure, nor are they compatible in size, scale, or design. 

• These buildings are not good examples of architectural design when considered 
individually or in relation to others. 

• The buildings possess no historically significant connections to the 
neighborhood, block, frontage, or a group of resources.   

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 742 GRAYSON STREET 
June 2, 2022 Page 10 of 10 
 

 

 

VI.  Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Commission consider the extent to which the buildings meet 
(or do not meet) the criteria for designation as a City Landmark or Structure of Merit, 
and then Take No Action to initiate this property. 

 
Attachments:  

1. Historic Resource Evaluation for 742 Grayson Street; prepared by Page & Turnbull, dated June 2021 
 

Prepared by: Allison Riemer, Associate Planner, ariemer@cityofberkeley.info, 510-981-7433 
 
 

ITEM 9 
LPC 06-02-22 

mailto:ariemer@cityofberkeley.info


742 GRAYSON STREET, BERKELEY
HISTORIC RESOURCE EVALUATION

BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA
[20201]

PREPARED FOR REDCO DEVELOPMENT
June 30, 2021

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



This page intentionally left blank.

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................... 1 

Methodology ................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Summary of Findings ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

II. EXISTING HISTORIC STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 3 

National Register of Historic Places ............................................................................................................. 3 

California Register of Historical Resources ................................................................................................. 3 

California Historic Resources Information System (CHRIS) ...................................................................... 4 

City of Berkeley Landmarks and Structures of Merit ................................................................................. 4 

III. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Office Building ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Warehouse and Factory Complex .............................................................................................................. 15 

Site Features .................................................................................................................................................. 29 

Surrounding Area ......................................................................................................................................... 29 

IV. HISTORIC CONTEXT..................................................................................................................................... 31 

West Berkeley Industry ................................................................................................................................ 33 

V. SITE HISTORY ................................................................................................................................................ 38 

Site Development ......................................................................................................................................... 38 

VI. EVALUATION ................................................................................................................................................ 52 

National Register of Historic Places ........................................................................................................... 52 

California Register of Historical Resources ............................................................................................... 53 

Evaluation Discussion .................................................................................................................................. 53 

City of Berkeley Landmark and Structure of Merit Evaluation ............................................................... 55 

VII. CONCLUSION .............................................................................................................................................. 58 

VIII. REFERENCES CITED ................................................................................................................................... 60 

 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 1 June 30, 2021 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

This Historic Resource Evaluation (HRE) has been prepared for 742 Grayson Street at the request of 

REDCO Investments in anticipation of future projects at the site. The property includes a warehouse 

and factory complex constructed for use as a paint factory by the West Coast Kalsomine Company in 

about 1937, and an office building completed for the same company in 1950. 742 Grayson Street is 

not currently listed in the National Register of Historic Places, in the California Register of Historical 

Resources, or as a City of Berkeley Landmark or Structure of Merit. The property is located on the 

south side of Grayson Street, to the immediate east of the Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way and 

adjacent to Berkeley Aquatic Park. 

 

 
Figure 1. Location of 742 Grayson Street, Berkeley. Subject parcel outlined in red. 

 Source: Google Earth, 2020, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 2 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 2.Excerpt from assessor’s parcel map of 742 Grayson Street, Berkeley. Subject property shaded red. 

Source: Alameda County Assessor. 

 

 

Methodology 

This Historic Resource Evaluation report examines the current historic status of the property and 

provides an architectural description, historic context, and site history. The report includes an 

evaluation of the property’s eligibility for individual listing in the National Register of Historic Places 

and the California Register of Historical Resources. Page & Turnbull prepared this report using 

research collected at various local repositories, including the UC Berkeley Libraries, including the  

City of Berkeley Permit Service Center; the Alameda County offices of the Assessor and Clerk-

Recorder; the Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association; and Berkeley Public Library. Page & 

Turnbull also conducted research using online repositories such as Digital Sanborn Maps, the David 

Rumsey Map Collection, UC Santa Barbara Library Aerial Photographs FrameFinder, 

Newspapers.com, the Online Archive of California, Calisphere, and the Internet Archive. 

 

Page & Turnbull conducted a site visit on August 17, 2020 to document existing conditions at the 

site. All photographs in this report were taken by Page & Turnbull on August 17, 2020 unless 

otherwise noted.  

 

Summary of Findings 

The existing buildings at 742 Grayson Street were built by the West Coast Kalsomine Company 

between 1937 and 1950 to replace earlier paint factory buildings constructed by the company at the 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 3 June 30, 2021 

 

site. In 1959 the Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company acquired the site for use as a resins and coatings 

manufacturing and distribution center. In 1971, the National Starch & Chemical Corporation (later 

Henkel Corporation) purchased the property for use in manufacturing and distribution of adhesives 

and other starch products. 

 

Extant buildings consist of a warehouse and factory complex completed in a utilitarian industrial 

style beginning in 1937, and an office building, completed in 1950 in a restrained application of the 

International Style.  

 

Page & Turnbull evaluated the property for significance according to the significance criteria of the 

California Register and National Register, and found that it does not appear to be eligible under any 

criteria.  

 

II. EXISTING HISTORIC STATUS  

The following section examines the national, state, and local historical ratings currently assigned to 

742 Grayson Street.  

 

National Register of Historic Places 

The National Register is the nation’s most comprehensive inventory of historical resources. The 

National Register is administered by the National Park Service and includes buildings, structures, 

sites, objects, and districts that possess historic, architectural, engineering, archaeological, or 

cultural significance at the national, state, or local level.  

 

742 Grayson Street is not currently listed on the National Register.  

 

California Register of Historical Resources 

The California Register is an inventory of significant architectural, archaeological, and historical 

resources in the State of California. Resources can be listed in the California Register through a 

number of methods. State Historical Landmarks and National Register-listed properties are 

automatically listed in the California Register. Properties can also be nominated to the California 

Register by local governments, private organizations, or citizens. The evaluative criteria used by the 

California Register for determining eligibility are closely based on those developed by the National 

Park Service for the National Register of Historic Places.  

 

742 Grayson Street is not currently listed on the California Register. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 4 June 30, 2021 

 

California Historic Resources Information System (CHRIS) 

Properties listed or under review by the State of California Office of Historic Preservation are 

assigned a California Historical Resource Status Code (CHRSC) of “1” to “7” to establish their historical 

significance in relation to the National Register, California Register, and local listing. Properties with 

a Status Code of “1” or “2” are either eligible for listing in the California Register or the National 

Register, or are already listed in one or both of the registers. Properties assigned Status Codes of “3” 

or “4” appear to be eligible for listing in either register. Properties assigned a Status Code of “5” have 

typically been determined to be locally significant or to have contextual importance. Properties with 

a Status Code of “6” are not eligible for listing in either register. Finally, a Status Code of “7” means 

that the resource has not been evaluated for the National Register or California Register, or needs 

reevaluation.  

 

742 Grayson Street is not listed in the Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) Directory of Properties in 

the Historic Property Data File for Alameda County, most recently updated March 15, 2011. 

 

City of Berkeley Landmarks and Structures of Merit 

The City of Berkeley maintains a list of properties designated as local Landmarks and Structures of 

Merit under Chapter 3.24 of the Berkeley Municipal Code. Much like the National and California 

Registers, the Municipal Code provides a number of criteria that must be met in order for a property 

to gain Landmark or Structure of Merit designation. Properties may be landmarked if they meet 

standards of architectural, cultural, educational, or historical significance, or if they are already listed 

in the National Register. A property may be designated as a Structure of Merit if it does not rise to 

the level of Landmark status, but has contextual importance and is worthy of preservation as part of 

a neighborhood, block or street frontage, or group of buildings that includes Landmark properties.1 

The City of Berkeley’s list of designated Landmarks and Structures of Merit meets the requirements 

of a local register of historical resources under CEQA. 

 

742 Grayson Street is not currently designated as City of Berkeley Landmark or Structure of Merit. 

 

 

  

 

1 City of Berkeley Municipal Code Landmarks Preservation Ordinance, 3.24.110 Landmarks, historic districts and structures of 

merit--Designation--Criteria for consideration. Accessed online, April 15, 2020, 

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley0324110.html. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 5 June 30, 2021 

 

III. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The industrial property at 742 Grayson Street consists of two main elements: a one- and two-story 

office and one- to three-story warehouse and factory complex with a rectangular tower on the south 

side of Grayson Street between Seventh Street and the Southern Pacific Railroad alignment to the 

west (Figure 3). The buildings are set slightly off the cardinal directions to the west; however, for the 

purposes of this evaluation, the primary façade, facing slightly northwest toward Grayson Street, is 

described as the north façade. 

 

 
Figure 3. Buildings at 742 Grayson Street. Warehouse space indicated by yellow shading, factory space 

indicated by blue shading, office space indicated by green shading.. Base map Google Earth 2020, edited by 

Page & Turnbull. 

 

 

Office Building 

The office building is a one- and two-story stucco clad, rectangular building set at the northeast 

corner of the project parcel. Built in 1950, the building is of a relatively simple utilitarian commercial 

design with International Style references such as its protruding rectilinear window framing, low 

horizontal massing, and long brick planter. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 6 June 30, 2021 

 

OFFICE BUILDING EXTERIOR 

North Façade 

The primary, north façade of the office building at 742 Grayson Street is one story in height at its left 

(east) side with a narrow second story over a recessed portion at the right (west) side above the 

primary entrance (Figure 4). The primary entrance consists of a single metal pedestrian door 

framed by wide metal-frame sidelites and transoms. The exterior wall to the right (west) of the 

entrance is clad with a painted corrugated metal panel. A flat awning, extending from the head of 

the adjacent window to shade the entrance, is supported by a single, square metal post. Four 

concrete steps access the entrance. The north façade of the second story, over the recessed 

entrance, is clad with stucco and has no openings or other features. To the left (east) of the 

entrance, the one-story portion of the office building’s north façade features a bank of eight 

rectangular, tripartite metal-frame windows set within a slightly protruding stucco-clad frame. 

Alternating windows have an operable lower hopper sash and awning upper sash. A low brick 

planter runs the length of the north façade to the east of the entrance, wrapping around to the east 

façade. 

 

 

Figure 4. North facade of office building, view southwest. 

 

 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 7 June 30, 2021 

 

East Façade  

The east façade is one story in height across its full length, and features a bank of 14 rectangular, 

tripartite metal-frame windows set within a slightly protruding stucco-clad frame (Figure 5). Some 

windows have an operable lower hopper sash and awning upper sash. A low brick planter runs the 

length of the east façade. 

 

The east façade of the deeply set back second-story portion of the building includes, from left 

(south) to right (north), a set of three typical tripartite windows at its south side, a pedestrian 

entrance with an unglazed metal door, and a set of nine typical tripartite windows at its north side. 

 

 

Figure 5. East Facade of office building, view northwest. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 8 June 30, 2021 

 

South Façade  

The south façade of the office building includes a two-story portion at its left (west) side, which is a 

featureless stucco-clad plane aside from modern safety lighting and utility connections (Figure 6). 

The one-story portion of the façade is set back from the two-story portion and includes, from left 

(west) to right (east), a pedestrian entrance secured by a metal gate; a set of two tripartite, typical 

windows; a secondary, unglazed pedestrian entrance with a shallow rectangular awning; and a bank 

of five typical tripartite windows. One narrow, tripartite, rectangular window is located in the east 

façade of the protruding western portion of the building, at right angles to the gated entrance.  

 

 
Figure 6. Office building, south and east facades, view northwest. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 9 June 30, 2021 

 

West Façade 

The west façade of the office building is set close to the east façade of the warehouse and factory 

complex (Figure 7). A secondary entrance located near the north end of the west façade is accessed 

by three concrete steps with a metal railing, and has a wood pedestrian door with a rectangular 

metal window and a shallow rectangular awning. Openings at the first story to the south of this 

entrance include, from left (north) to right (south), a set of two tripartite rectangular windows, a 

wood pedestrian door with a rectangular metal-frame window and shallow flat awning, and two 

narrow tripartite rectangular windows with opaque glass.  

 

 

 
Figure 7. Office building, west facade, view north. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 10 June 30, 2021 

 

OFFICE BUILDING INTERIOR 

The interior of the office building consists of a large first-floor space and a smaller second-floor 

space. Nearly all first-floor interior partitions and finishes were removed prior to the site visit. The 

one-story, eastern portion of the office building is currently one large room with an exposed 

concrete slab floor, square wood posts, exposed wood joists, and wood wall framing partially 

covered by sheetrock panels (Figure 8). A brick fireplace with a metal surround and brick chimney 

remains at the east side of the north interior wall. A concrete walk-in safe is located along the 

southern portion of the west wall (Figure 9). Two bathrooms are located at the southwest corner of 

the first story.  

 

The rear exit, located in the west part of the south interior wall, consists of a single wood pedestrian 

door with a small rectangular window, surrounded by corrugated glass sidelites and tripartite 

transom (Figure 10). This door accesses a vestibule between the interior and exterior exit doors. 

Additional pedestrian exits are located on the south and west sides of the first floor, and on the east 

side of the second floor (providing roof access). 

 

A wood staircase with wood railing at the northwest corner of the building accesses the second 

floor. The second floor is divided into two main spaces, one at the north side of the second floor and 

one at the south, on either side of a wood-framed utility shaft that appears to correspond to the 

location of the first-floor safe (Figure 12 through Figure 14). A second wood staircase with wood 

railing accesses the second floor between the southern “room” and utility shaft, and the first floor 

between the bathrooms and the safe, near the southwest corner of the building. 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 11 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 8. Office building, first floor interior, view northeast. 

 

 
Figure 9. Office building, first floor interior, view southwest. Concrete safe in center background. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 12 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 10. Office building rear entrance and vestibule, view south. 

 

 
Figure 11. Staircase at northwest corner of office building, first floor, view west. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 13 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 12. North space of office building second floor, view northeast. 

 

 
Figure 13. South space of office building second floor, view south. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 14 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 14. Second floor utility shaft, office building, view west. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 15 June 30, 2021 

 

Warehouse and Factory Complex 

The warehouse and factory complex at 742 Grayson Street is a U-shaped group of four 

interconnected buildings with different footprints and rooflines. The rectangular east warehouse 

building is one story with a shallow-pitched gable roof with gable ends facing north and south. It has 

the largest footprint of the three buildings comprising the complex. An east-west row of five 

skylights at the mid-point of the building illuminates the interior. The rectangular central warehouse 

building is two stories, and has a shallow-pitched gable roof with gable ends facing north and south. 

Its north façade is on the same plane as the adjoining warehouse buildings, but its south façade is 

set back from the adjacent buildings creating the “U” shape of the complex. The factory building is 

located at the northwest corner of the complex, and is an irregularly shaped two- and three-story 

building with a central, rectangular tower. The west warehouse building is a rectangular, high-bay 

building with a flat roof, which extends from the south façade of the factory building. Typical exterior 

cladding on the warehouse and factory buildings is painted corrugated sheet metal, with some 

portions in concrete and wood siding. As the buildings are interconnected at their adjacent facades, 

the facades of all three are discussed below as a complex. 

 

WAREHOUSE AND FACTORY COMPLEX EXTERIOR 

North Façade 

The north façade of the warehouse and factory complex overlooks Grayson Street, and consists of 

one-, two-, and three-story portions. At the left (east) side of the building, the north façade of the 

east warehouse building is one-story in height and clad with corrugated sheet metal (Figure 15). 

Openings in the lower portion of the north façade of the east warehouse building include, from left 

(east) to right (west): a set of three five-by-five lite industrial steel sash windows with operable three-

by-two central sections; a set of four undivided square, obscured glass wood-frame windows set in a 

two-by-two square; and a utility entrance with a roll-up metal door. Above these, a row of 11 four-

by-four and six-by-four lite industrial steel sash windows set near the roofline spans most of width 

of the façade, with one three-by-four lite window of the same type at the west end of the row 

adjacent to the juncture between the east and central warehouse buildings.  

 

The north façade of the central warehouse building has two rows of 10 four-by-four and six-by-four 

industrial steel sash windows (Figure 16). The lower row is aligned with the row of similar windows 

in the adjacent east warehouse building. 

 

The north façade of the factory building has a stepped appearance, matching the two-story height of 

the adjacent warehouse at the juncture between the two buildings, then stepping up to an 

approximately three-story height, and stepping down again slightly (Figure 17). The façade is clad in 

painted concrete and corrugated metal. Two pedestrian entrances with unglazed metal doors, set 

within the west half of the façade, are accessed by wood staircases with wood railings. To the west 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 16 June 30, 2021 

 

and higher than the doors, a row of six square panels appears to be the location of windows that 

have been boarded or painted over. 

 

 
Figure 15. Warehouse and factory complex, east warehouse building, north façade. View south. Image 

source: Google, February 2020. Unobstructed photograph could not be obtained at time of site visit due to 

parked vehicles. 

 

 
Figure 16. Warehouse and factory complex, central warehouse building, north facade. View southeast. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 17 June 30, 2021 

 

 

 
Figure 17. Warehouse and factory complex, factory building, north facade. View south. 

 

 

East Façade 

The east façade of the warehouse and factory complex overlooks the office building and a vehicle 

loading area. Its main pedestrian entrance is located at the north side of the east façade, accessed 

by concrete steps and shaded by a flat, curved awning. A slightly protruding bay with large, 

rectangular, fixed, undivided-lite metal frame windows sits to the north of the entrance (Figure 18). 

Openings to the left (south) of this entrance include a set of three fixed rectangular windows, a 

three-by-three lite industrial window, an unglazed pedestrian entrance, and two utility entrances 

with roll-up metal doors. The utility doors and unglazed pedestrian entrance open to a raised 

concrete loading platform with a wood and painted sheet metal railing that runs the length of the 

east and south facades of the east warehouse building (Figure 19). The concrete loading platform is 

shaded by a flat wood and metal awning that wraps around to the south façade. Six sets of -by-12-

lite industrial steel sash windows are set at the left (south) side of the façade, above the awning. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 18 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 18. Warehouse and factory complex, north portion of east facade (at right of photograph),  

view southeast. 

 
Figure 19. Warehouse and factory complex east facade, southern portion. View southwest. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 19 June 30, 2021 

 

South Façade  

The south façade of the warehouse and factory complex overlooks a railway spur to the south of the 

subject property, and an open loading area that is at the same elevation as the loading platform at 

the east and south facades of the east warehouse building. The south façade of the east warehouse 

building features the continuation of the awning and loading platform from the east façade (Figure 

20). One utility entrance with a roll-up metal door is centered on the façade at the level of the 

loading dock. Fifteen sets of four-by-four and six-by-four lite industrial steel sash windows are set 

above the awning, spanning the width of the façade. The facades facing the interior of the 

warehouse and factory complex’s “U” shape include the west-facing façade of the east warehouse 

building. The west-facing façade of the east warehouse building is of corrugated sheet metal and 

concrete, and features a row of four four-by-four and six-by-four lite industrial steel sash windows 

set near the roofline in the left (north) half of the facade, and one utility entrance with a roll-up 

metal door (Figure 21). 

 

Only a small portion of the three-story, concrete south façade of the factory building is exposed, 

aligned along the same plane as the south façade of the adjoining central warehouse. A narrow 

rectangular concrete tower is set back from the factory building’s south façade (Figure 22). To the 

right (east) of the factory building, the two-story concrete and corrugated sheet metal façade of the 

central warehouse includes, at its first story, one unglazed metal pedestrian entrance and one utility 

entrance with a roll-up metal door. The first and second stories each have a row of seven four-by-

four and six-by-four lite industrial steel sash windows. 

 

The two-story east façade of the west warehouse building faces the interior of the warehouse and 

factory complex’s “U” shape. It is clad with painted horizontal wood siding and has no openings 

(Figure 23).  

 

The two-story south façade of the west warehouse building is clad in painted corrugated sheet metal 

and plywood sheets. At the first story, the façade features, from left (west) to right (east), a utility 

entrance with a roll-up metal door, and a pedestrian entrance with an unglazed metal door. A row of 

five three-by-two lite industrial steel sash windows is set near the roofline of the façade.  

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 20 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 20. East warehouse building, south facade, view east. 

 

 
Figure 21. East warehouse building, west rear facade overlooking center of "U.” View northeast. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 21 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 22. Central warehouse building, south facade, view north. 

 

 
Figure 23. West warehouse building, south façade and east rear facade overlooking center of "U." View 

northwest. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 22 June 30, 2021 

 

West Façade 

The west façade of the warehouse and factory complex overlooks an open area within the project 

parcel, and the Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way outside the parcel to the west. The façade is 

clad with painted corrugated sheet metal, and features two entrances, both in the north portion, 

corresponding to the factory building – a pedestrian entrance with an unglazed metal door, 

accessed via a wood staircase with wood railing, and a utility entrance with a roll-up metal door to 

the right (south) of the pedestrian entrance. The utility entrance is elevated above the site grade, but 

does not open to a loading dock structure. Windows set high within the west façade of the factory 

building include three six-by-three lite industrial steel sash windows with operable awning sections 

at the center of each, set high on the façade. Below these, a row of 13 square panels appears to be 

the location of windows that have been boarded or painted over. The west façade of the west 

warehouse building includes two rows of ten industrial steel sash windows. The upper row includes 

three- and four-by-two lite windows, and the lower row includes three- and four-by-three lite 

windows. The tower is set back from the roofline of the west façade of the factory building and is 

prominently visible. The west façade of the tower bears a faded, painted sign with the word “Wesco” 

and a paint roller, advertising the building’s original owner and occupant, the West Coast Kalsomine 

Company. 

 

 
Figure 24. West facade of warehouse and factory complex. View northeast. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 23 June 30, 2021 

 

Warehouse and Factory Complex Interior 

At its interior, the four parts of the warehouse and factory complex are internally connected by large 

openings at the first floor and, where present, the second floor.  

 

The one-story east portion of the warehouse and factory complex is an open volume with a low-

pitched truss roof supported by rectangular wood posts set in piers in the concrete slab floor 

(Figure 25 through Figure 28). Two utility doors infilled with concrete blocks are located along the 

west wall shared with the central portion of the warehouse and factory complex. An enclosed 

electrical utility room is located at the northeast corner of the main space. Additional rooms are 

partitioned along the east wall of the warehouse, including, from north to south, an office with 

electronic network equipment, an entry foyer with a deep closet, a break room with a sink, a 

bathroom, and a wood-paneled, broadly glazed supervisory office.  

 

 
Figure 25. East warehouse building, interior of main space, view southwest. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 24 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 26. East warehouse building, interior of main space, view northeast. 

 

 
Figure 27. East warehouse building, interior of main space, view east toward enclosures: utility room, foyer, 

restroom, and office. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 25 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 28. Entry foyer of east warehouse buildings, view northeast. 

 

 

The first floor of the central portion of the warehouse is a predominantly open volume supported by 

painted steel I-beams, with an enclosed freight elevator shaft and stairwell to the west of center in 

the building (Figure 29 and Figure 30). A partially glazed enclosure is near the west side of the 

north wall. The second floor of the central portion of the warehouse interior is a predominantly 

open volume with an enclosed freight elevator shaft, stairwell, and laboratory space near the west 

side (Figure 31).  

 

The west portion of the factory interior is a narrow, rectangular, high-bay volume with painted steel 

and concrete equipment platforms at varying heights (Figure 32 and Figure 33). To the south of the 

factory building, the west warehouse building is a storage area with built-in metal and wood shelves 

along the east and west walls (Figure 34).  

 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 26 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 29. Central warehouse building, first floor, view northwest across main space. 

 

 
Figure 30. Central warehouse building, second floor, view southwest across main space. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 27 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 31. Central warehouse building, second floor laboratory, view southwest. 

 

 

 
Figure 32. Factory  building, view southeast from stair platform toward storage area. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 28 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 33. Factory building, view northwest from elevated platform. 

 

 
Figure 34. West warehouse building, view southeast across rear warehouse portion. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 29 June 30, 2021 

 

Site Features 

The office, warehouse, and factory buildings occupy the eastern portion of the subject parcel. A 

paved vehicle parking and loading area is located to the east and south of the office building. A 

currently undeveloped area with gravel, pavement, and low vegetation extends from the west 

façade of the warehouse and factory complex to the western extent of the parcel. Wire security 

fencing surrounds the areas of the parcel where buildings do not extend to its boundaries. 

 

Surrounding Area 

The area surrounding the subject parcel is industrial in character. The Southern Pacific Railroad 

right-of-way borders the west side of the property. Across this right-of-way, the Berkeley Aquatic 

Park and I-80 freeway overlook San Francisco Bay. The Bayer industrial complex is located to the 

north of the subject property across Grayson Street. The multi-building complex includes one brick 

warehouse building that has been at the site since before 1931, though otherwise consists 

predominantly of modern two- to five-story buildings (Figure 35).2 To the east of the subject 

property, the warehouse of the Henkel Corporation is an otherwise unadorned rectangular building 

with a glass and brick entryway featuring a decorative multi-arched roof (Figure 36). A loading dock 

at the southwest corner of the Henkel building extends across the south boundary of the subject 

property’s loading area, adjoining to its loading dock near the southeast corner of the east 

warehouse building. To the south, a row of one- and two-story warehouse and utility buildings 

overlooks a railroad spur track. 

 

 
2 The extant brick buildings on the north side of Grayson Street within the Bayer property appear to remain from the 

Philadelphia Quartz Company silicate of soda plant built in 1917 near 5th and Grayson streets (Oakland Tribune, July 28, 1917) 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 30 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 35. ca. 1917 brick industrial building within Bayer complex on north side of Grayson Street. Source: 

Google Earth, 2020. 

 

 

 
Figure 36. Henkel Corporation building, 800 Grayson Street, view southwest across primary facade and 

entrance. 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 31 June 30, 2021 

 

IV. HISTORIC CONTEXT 

The area that is now the city of Berkeley was originally inhabited by the Huichin sub-group of the 

Ohlone tribe of Native Americans, who occupied much of the Bay Area before European incursion. 

Archaeological discoveries in the vicinity of Strawberry Creek indicate centuries of Native American 

presence in what is now the area of the UC Berkeley campus.3 In 1769, Gaspar de Portola became 

aware of the presence of the San Francisco Bay, and European intrusion and settlement of the area 

followed. The Spanish brought Catholic missions and military presidios to California, devastating 

Indigenous populations and appropriating large land holdings for prominent Spanish leaders. In 

1820, the Viceroy of New Spain granted the 48,000-acre Rancho San Antonio, encompassing much of 

today’s Berkeley and Oakland, to Luis Maria Peralta. Peralta divided the ranch between his four sons 

in 1842, leaving most of what is now Berkeley to his son Jose Domingo Peralta. 

 

Less than a decade later, discovery of gold lured a flood of migrants to the state. In 1850, the United 

States annexed California after acquiring the territory from Mexico by the terms of the Treaty of 

Guadalupe-Hidalgo. Statehood eventually brought about the demise of the ranchos, and in 1852, 

Francis Kittredge Shattuck, his brother-in-law George Blake, and two partners, William Hillegass and 

James Leonard, filed claims to a square mile of land in the central section of what is now Berkeley.4  

 

In 1866, the name “Berkeley” was officially adopted by the Trustees of the College for the residential 

academic community that they hoped would grow up around the newly established College of 

California, what became today’s University of California, Berkeley. At the time, the area surrounding 

the campus consisted primarily of undeveloped grassland and farms.  

 

Development in the young town of Berkeley proceeded very slowly prior to the establishment of 

regular rail service to and from Oakland and San Francisco. In 1873, several local investors formed 

the Berkeley Land and Town Improvement Association to spur development. This group organized 

land sales, built stores and wharves, and lobbied for a direct ferry connection to San Francisco. In 

1874, the Berkeley Ferry and Railroad Company initiated regular service between San Francisco and 

Ocean View (now West Berkeley). That year, a horse-drawn transit line began operating along 

Telegraph Avenue between what is now downtown Berkeley and Oakland.5 In 1878, the Town of 

Berkeley incorporated, encompassing both the bayside manufacturing settlement of Ocean View 

and the small, University-focused inland village of Berkeley.6 In its early years, Shattuck Avenue 

served as the main north-south transportation corridor in downtown Berkeley, and University 

Avenue served as the east-west horsecar route, connecting the shoreline community of Ocean View 

with downtown and the campus. 

 
3 University of California, Berkeley 2020 LRDP Draft EIR, Volume 1. 4.4-48. 
4 Susan Dinkelspiel Cerny, Berkeley Landmarks: An Illustrated Guide to Berkeley California’s Architectural Heritage (Berkeley: 

Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, 1994), 64. 
5  Ibid. 
6  Ibid. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 32 June 30, 2021 

 

 

During the early twentieth century, particularly in the years between the 1906 Earthquake and the 

Great Depression, both the University of California and the town of Berkeley grew rapidly. After 

1906, Berkeley became one of the largest cities in California, mostly as the result of an influx of as 

many as 20,000 San Francisco earthquake refugees. The construction of the Key System of 

ferryboats and streetcars made transportation between Oakland, Berkeley, and San Francisco quick 

and affordable and spurred the development of numerous residential tracts in Berkeley and 

Oakland. In turn, this growth brought in more customers and thereby spurred intensive commercial 

development in downtown Berkeley.7 

 

Commercial and civic development continued through the 1920s in downtown Berkeley, with 

construction of several new downtown buildings including the city’s first “skyscraper” – the twelve-

story Chamber of Commerce (now Wells Fargo) building at the northwest corner of Shattuck Avenue 

and Center Street, designed by Walter H. Ratcliff, Jr. in 1925. Moderne styles, exemplified by the Art 

Deco library at the corner of Shattuck Avenue and Kittredge Street, designed in 1930 by James W. 

Plachek, introduced vibrant new stylistic elements into the business district previously dominated by 

Classical and Mediterranean Revival styles.  

 

During the Great Depression, Berkeley's suffering was somewhat minimized by the presence of the 

University, which continued to provide employment for many citizens, although working class 

neighborhoods in West Berkeley experienced more economic strain. 

 

World War II brought a tremendous population boom to the entire Bay Area, and Berkeley was no 

exception. Wartime housing projects to accommodate military personnel were constructed in 

Berkeley, and facilities at the University itself were commandeered for military use. Civilian numbers 

also grew as people relocated to Berkeley for employment at local shipyards like the Moore Drydock 

on the Oakland Estuary and the Kaiser shipyards in Richmond. Transportation lines and other 

infrastructure in Berkeley expanded to make these workers' commutes easier.  

 

After the war, Berkeley experienced the same out-migration as many other large cities in the 

country, as families moved to the suburbs to take advantage of G.I. home loans and the increased 

ease of commuting by automobile. This led to a shift in demographics in Berkeley, where larger 

working-class populations developed. G.I. benefits also resulted in soaring enrollment at the 

University of California, which meant that students flooded available housing around the campus. 

The large houses previously subdivided to accommodate war workers were well-suited to housing 

numerous students. The blocks surrounding the project area were, in the early 1950s, occupied by 

commercial, institutional, and civic organizations much like today. 

 

 
7  Ibid. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 33 June 30, 2021 

 

In the decades following World War II, Berkeley’s reputation as a liberal stronghold grew, particularly 

expressed by its Democratic-leaning academic community and African American and working-class 

populations. Civil Rights became an important topic, leading to struggles over fair housing and 

segregation of schools. The Vietnam War also affected the city tremendously, as it was heavily 

populated by young, working-class people and students who were eligible for the draft, spurring 

protests and demonstrations. Berkeley has remained a politically and culturally outspoken 

community that largely accepts and promotes progressive thinking. The University of California 

remains the centerpiece of the city, which is otherwise inhabited by a wide range of social, 

economic, and ethnic demographics.8 

 

West Berkeley Industry 

Since the mid-nineteenth century, west Berkeley – known in its early years as Ocean View - has been 

developed to support shipping and industry oriented toward water transit on San Francisco Bay and 

rail transit. Its earliest industries included the Pioneer Starch and Grist Mill, established in 1855 by 

John Everding and A.A. Rammelsburg, which took advantage of the East Bay’s agricultural producers 

and access to the Bay, as did Z.B Heywood’s lumberyard established shortly thereafter.9  The Ocean 

View Schoolhouse was built near San Pablo Avenue and Virginia Street in 1856 to serve the small 

population of working and agricultural families in the young town.10 A wharf built in 1866 near 

Delaware and Bristol streets served shipping needs. The street grid of west Berkeley was established 

in 1873 by the Berkeley Land and Town Improvement Association, and construction of the Northern 

Railway (later Southern Pacific Railroad) line alongside the Bay in 1877 attracted business to the area 

in the following decades.11 Spurs and sidings from the line running along Third Street served 

individual business properties. The towns of Berkeley and Ocean View incorporated as one in 1878, 

though the different characters of the areas persist to the present day. Following the 1906 

earthquake and the fires that ensued in San Francisco, many manufacturing businesses relocated 

from San Francisco to west Berkeley. In these early decades of the twentieth century, booster 

organizations such as the Berkeley Manufacturer’s Association and Berkeley Chamber of Commerce 

promoted industrial growth around the city’s new municipal wharf, built in 1909, and rail lines. By 

1919 there were 113 manufacturing plants in West Berkeley, 193 by 1928, and, due to the boom in 

manufacturing during World War II, 261 in the city by 1948.12  

 

West Berkeley’s early 20th-century manufacturing buildings were typically brick or concrete with 

large industrial steel sash windows, many with sawtooth roofs for additional light. Wartime factories 

 
8 City of Berkeley Landmark Application for the Preservation of All Souls Church, Parish Hall and Courtyard, 2220 Cedar Street, 

Berkeley, CA, on file at Berkeley Architectural Heritage. 
9 Charles Wollenberg:, Berkeley: A City in History (Berkeley: University of California Press, 2002), n.p. 
10 Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, Discovering West Berkeley: A Self-Guided Tour (n.d), 2. 
11 Michael R. Corbett, Historical and Architectural Evaluation: The Macaulay Foundry, 811 Carleton Street (Berkeley: Prepared for 

John Allen and Ken David and the City of Berkeley Planning and Development Department, Sept 21, 2015), 28-29. 
12 Corbett, The Macaulay Foundry, 30. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 34 June 30, 2021 

 

favored corrugated metal and concrete block as construction materials, with some examples of 

Berkeley-specific diamond-grid windows in concrete industrial buildings.13 Berkeley’s postwar 

industrial properties include concrete block buildings, prefabricated metal and concrete slab 

warehouses, as well as stucco-clad, wood-frame offices and showrooms.14 

 

Significant examples of industrial architecture in the vicinity of the subject property include three 

City of Berkeley landmarks constructed between 1913 and 1927. Built in 1913 and designed by C.H. 

Miller, the Kawneer Building at 2547 8th Street is a long, one-story brick manufacturing building 

capped by a 20-bank sawtooth roof with clerestory windows (Figure 37). The Berkeley Architectural 

Heritage Association (BAHA) refers to the building as a “visually prominent fixture of industrial West 

Berkeley.”15 The 1924 Standard Die & Specialty Company building at 2701 Eighth Street, constructed 

by the Austin Company of California, is a one- and two-story building characterized by patterned 

brick facades and large multi-lite industrial windows (Figure 38). The building has been rehabilitated 

for food-service use.16 The 1927 H.J. Heinz Company Factory building at 2900 San Pablo Avenue, 

designed by Albert Kahn, is a prominent landmark at the northwest corner of San Pablo and Ashby 

Avenues. It is characterized by extensive Spanish Colonial and Mediterranean style elements, 

unusual in its level of detail for an industrial property (Figure 39).17 Other important examples of 

West Berkeley’s industrial architecture, such as the 1916 Durkee Famous Foods Plant at 740 Heinz 

Street and Building 12 of the Cutter Laboratories, built in 1914, have been demolished in recent 

years.  

 

 
13 BAHA, Discovering West Berkeley, 7. 
14 Ibid. 
15 BAHA, “Berkeley Landmarks: Kawneer Manufacturing Co.,” http://berkeleyheritage.com/berkeley_landmarks/kawneer.html. 
16 BAHA, “Berkeley Landmarks Designated in 2005,” http://berkeleyheritage.com/berkeley_landmarks/2005_landmarks.html. 
17 BAHA, “Berkeley Landmarks; H.J. Heinz Co. Factory,” http://berkeleyheritage.com/berkeley_landmarks/heinz.html. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 35 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 37. 1913 Kawneer Building at 2547 8th Street. Source: Google Earth, 2020. 

 

 
Figure 38. 1924 Standard Die & Specialty Company building, 2701 Eighth Street. Source: Google Earth, 2020. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 36 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 39. 1927 H.J. Heinz Company building, 2900 San Pablo Avenue. Source: Google Earth, 2020. 

 

 

WPA construction of Berkeley Aquatic Park between 1935 and 1937, including the lagoon to the 

immediate west of the subject property, as well as the Eastshore Highway completed in the late 

1930s to provide access to the San Francisco – Oakland Bay Bridge, changed the immediate 

surroundings of West Berkeley’s waterfront.18 Aerial photos from between 1931 and 1965 show the 

industrial development of the blocks around the subject property, as well as the nearby aquatic park 

and Eastshore Freeway, between these years (Figure 40 through Figure 42). 

 

In the postwar years, West Berkeley’s density of industrial activity gradually declined, with other 

commercial services, art studios, and residences moving into the area amongst the remaining 

industrial operations. 

 

 
18 BAHA, Discovering West Berkeley., 7 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 37 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 40. Excerpt from 1931 aerial photograph, subject parcel shaded red. Fairchild Aerial Surveys, Flight C-

1820, Frame 47. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

 

 
Figure 41. Excerpt from 1946 aerial photograph, subject parcel shaded red. Jack Ammann Photogrammetric 

Engineers, Flight C-GS-CP, Frame 6-12. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries,  

edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 38 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 42. Excerpt from 1965 aerial photograph, subject parcel shaded red. Cartwright Aerial Surveys, Flight 

CAS-65-130, Frame 15-113. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries,  

edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

V. SITE HISTORY 

Site Development 

In 1878, prior to subdivision into individual industrial lots, the subject property was part of a larger, 

24-acre parcel owned by E.M. Hall (Figure 43).19 By 1903, the western portion of the parcel was 

occupied by a distillery, boiler house, tanks, and warehouse of the Golden West Company, noted on 

the Sanborn Map Company sheet as a distillery of “alcohol from molasses, etc.” (Figure 44).20 A rail 

spur curved around the northwest edge of the property from the north-south railway right-of-way to 

Grayson Street. 

 

In 1911, the property was noted on the Sanborn Fire Insurance map as “Formerly Stauffer Chemical 

Works,” which had been out of operation since February of that year (Figure 45).21 The building 

included the same warehouse and former distillery buildings as the 1903 map, with an intermediary 

addition joining the two buildings, and additional tanks. 

 

 
19 Thompson & West, Official and Historical Atlas Map of Alameda County, California, Sheet 14, 1878.. David Rumsey Historical 

Map Collection. 
20 Sanborn Map Company, Insurance Maps of Oakland, California, Volume 3, Sheet 310. 
21 Sanborn Map Company, Insurance Maps of Berkeley, California, Volume 2, Sheet 165. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 39 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 43. Excerpt from 1878 Thompson & West’s Official Atlas Map of Alameda County, California, Sheet 14. 

Approximate location of subject property shaded red. Source: David Rumsey Historical Map Collection, 

edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 
Figure 44. Excerpt from 1903 Sanborn Map Company map for Oakland, Volume 3, Sheet 310. Red dashed 

outline shows current parcel boundary. Source: HIG Fire Insurance Maps Online, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 40 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 45. Excerpt from 1911 Sanborn Map Company map for Berkeley, Volume 2, Sheet 165. Red dashed 

outline shows current parcel boundary. Source: HIG Fire Insurance Maps Online, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

 

The subject property was sold as part of the “Grayson Tract” to the West Coast Kalsomine company 

by the Stauffer Chemical Company in September 1912.22 Discussion of site development beginning 

with this company’s ownership of the subject property is presented in the following section. 

 

CONSTRUCTION CHRONOLOGY 

The following table provides a timeline of known construction and building alterations of the current 

property at 742 Grayson Street, based on the records maintained by the City of Berkeley Permit 

Service Center. Plumbing, electrical, gas, and mechanical permits have not been included. 

 

Permit  Date Owner Builder/ 

Contractor 

Description 

5736 8/15/1916 West Coast 

Kalsomine 

Owner $500 alteration to warehouse. 

56993 3/17/1945 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Guy Tyler $241 alteration to [dwelling??] 

57119 4/10/1945 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Beacut & 

Federighi 

$300 alteration to Group F, Type V 

machine shop building.. 

 
22 “Deeds Recorded September 19,” Berkeley Daily Gazette, September 20, 1912. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 41 June 30, 2021 

 

Permit  Date Owner Builder/ 

Contractor 

Description 

59075 4/22/1946 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Curtota Co., 

Hugh Taylor 

$500 alteration to water paint 

storage building. 

59332 6/19/1946 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Wm. Hamilton 

(engineer), 

Fabri-Steel Co. 

Permit to alter a Group G, Type V, 2-

story building "Install working 

platform approximately 20'0" x 

50'0" to be constructed of steel 

framing and plates." ($2700) 

59968 10/24/1946 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

[?] Roofing Co. $300 alteration 

66613 5/17/1949 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

J.B. Tulloch 

(engineer), 

John F. Tulloch 

(builder) 

"Construct new concrete 

foundation for existing office 

building and move old building onto 

new foundation and floor slab to be 

used as a temporary office and later 

for storage. [?] reconnect all 

services to building in new location. 

Completed June 1950. 

63847 10/14/1949 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Fidelity $750 alteration to business 

building. 

67191 3/17/1950 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

J.F. Tulloch , 

Hugh Taylor  

Construction of Group F, Type V 2-

story, 27 room office building with 

reinforced concrete foundation, 

stucco exterior, flat composition 

roof. Completed by October 1950 at 

a cost of $65,000. 

76340 10/31/1954 Wesco Water 

Paints, Inc. 

Fidelity Roof 

Company 

"Reroofing - spud off and 3/15# felt 

and gravel"  
8/8/1960 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

 
Industrial Sanitation Inspection 

Form: "No manufacturing done yet. 

Just sales offices - expect to 

manufacture sometime within the 

next year." 

93209 9/20/1961 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

American Neon 

(W.B. Clausen, 

engineer) 

"Erect free standing letters on roof, 

drawings attached" Cost $10,000, 

completed by September 1963, 

Pittsburgh Plate Glass plant. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 42 June 30, 2021 

 

Permit  Date Owner Builder/ 

Contractor 

Description 

96116 10/1/1962 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

Bay Cities 

Excavators, Inc. 

"Demolish and haul to the Berkeley 

Dumps, leaving a clean site." 

(vacant "Group I, Type IV building, 

$450.00)  
10/26/1964 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

Rudy Pavlina Application for change of use of 

wood-frame building from previous 

storage use to "storage and 

contractor's workshop," including 

"replacing sash, rewiring, carpenter 

repairs, and general cleanup." 

102393 1/5/1965 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

 
"Provide toilet facilities, rewire 

building, provide fire equipment, 

repair building where needed. This 

would include repairing [?], new 

steps at entrance, new door, and 

general cleanup." At "Contractor 

workshop and storage" occupied by 

Rudy Pavlina.  
2/16/1966 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

 
Application for change of use from 

"paint warehouse" [change "to" not 

listed]  
2/23/1966 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

 
Change of occupancy description: 

Room 1, Brush processing; Room 2, 

adhesive manufacturing; Rear 

Building, lacquer room; Storage 

tanks 

111020 2/20/1968 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

Elliott & Elliott 

Co. 

"Install tar and gravel roofing on 

lower section" of 1.5 story business 

building ($1340) 

111115 3/1/1968 Pittsburgh 

Plate Glass 

Co. 

D.W. Nicholson 

Corp. 

"Existing paint storage warehouse 

to be repartitioned for adhesive 

manufacturing plant" ($75,000) 

B07257

8505 

7/24/1978 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Caldwell-

Roland Roofing 

Co., Inc 

"ash. glaze. roof to office" 

($1466.00) 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 43 June 30, 2021 

 

Permit  Date Owner Builder/ 

Contractor 

Description 

B09147

91417 

7/20/1979 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Frederiksen 

Eng. W. 

[Designer] / 

Owen Haskell 

Inc. 

[Contractor] 

"Civil - structural plus underground 

piping" ($360,000) 

B11157

92959 

11/15/1979 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

U.S. Building 

and Mod Co. 

"Office partition raised to ceiling - 

remodel 3 showers -  remove 1 

partition - extend existing [?] 

partitions to ceiling." ($7,500) 

B01258

04554 

1/25/1980 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Caldwell-

Roland Roofing 

Co., Inc 

"Install asphalt glaze roofing 

system" 

326856

758 

3/26/1985 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Fidelity Roof 

Company 

"Repairs & reroofing, contract value 

$73,877" 

107889

952 

1/7/1988 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Central Bay 

Roofing 

"Tear off roofing - install new 4 ply 

built-up-roofing" (Cost $16,505) 

267395 3/26/1998 National 

Starch & 

Chemical 

Corp. 

Elliott Russ Inc. "Reroof on new roof" at heavy 

industrial building. 

 

Maps, aerial photographs, and newspaper announcements supplement an understanding of the 

development of the subject property under the ownership of the West Coast Kalsomine Company 

and subsequent owners.  

 

Shortly after the West Coast Kalsomine Company purchased the property, the Berkeley Daily Gazette 

printed a short article announcing the pending opening of a new paint factory:  

 

The West Coast Kalsomine Company, which has been operating a manufacturing plant 

for the making of kalsomine, cold water paint and kindred products, at Nobel station, 

has just purchased the Stauffer Chemical Company’s property at the foot of Grayson 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 44 June 30, 2021 

 

Street in Berkeley, and will erect a large and up-to-date plant for the manufacture of 

these products.23 

 

In October 1912, the West Coast Kalsomine Company received a permit to construct a “one-story 

office and store room” at a cost of $1,000.24 Though no permits appear to be retained in the City of 

Berkeley Permit Service Center collections for the original construction of the property, early 

photographs of the complex taken from public roads and rail rights-of-way bordering the property 

show a collection of several one- to four-story wood frame buildings in various stages of completion 

at the site (Figure 46 and Figure 47). In 922, the “color plant” building at the property was destroyed 

by fire.25  

 

The earliest aerial depiction of buildings associated with the West Coast Kalsomine Company’s 

operation at this location is a 1931 photograph in which the warehouse and former distillery 

buildings, as well as the curved rail spur depicted on the 1903 and 1911 Sanborn maps, remained 

near the southwestern extent of the current parcel (Figure 48). A row of sheds lined the north side 

of the rail spur. Additional buildings appear to have included a large two-story warehouse centered 

at the north boundary of the parcel and a long, narrow rectangular building at the east boundary. 

 

The company expanded at the site in 1937, in a plant construction effort to provide new buildings 

and machinery for its 25 workers that would “rise around present 30-year-old structures and will be 

erected simultaneously with razing of quarters grown inadequate for increasing business.”26 In 1938, 

the company devoted $91,000 to construction of a new factory building.27 

 

By the time a 1946 aerial photograph was captured, the current warehouse and factory complex had 

been completed and most other buildings on site were demolished (Figure 49). A large building, 

now no longer extant, stood to the west of the current warehouse and factory complex. One 

building remained which was depicted on the earliest, 1903 map of the property: the warehouse 

building at the southwest corner of the property.  

 

  

 
23 “Paint Factory to Relocate Here,” Berkeley Daily Gazette, September 28, 1912. Nobel Station was located on the Bay shore of 

El Cerrito. 
24 “Permits for Last Week,” Berkeley Daily Gazette, October 15, 1912. 
25 “$28,000 Fire in West Berkeley,” Oakland Tribune, January 9, 1922. 
26 “200,000 Plant Due for Berkeley Area,” Oakland Tribune, December 22, 1937. 
27 “Berkeley Tax Needs are Told,” Oakland Tribune, January 2, 1939. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 45 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 46. Circa 1917 view of the West Coast Kalsomine Company plant at the subject property, view 

southeast from Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way. No buildings from this period remain.  

Source: WorthPoint.com, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

 
Figure 47. Circa 1917 view of the West Coast Kalsomine Company plant at the subject property, view 

southwest from Grayson Street. No buildings from this period remain. Excerpted from New or Greatly 

Enlarged Industrial Establishments of Oakland and East Bay Cities, by the Oakland Chamber of Commerce.  

Source: Oakland Public Library, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 46 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 48. Excerpt from 1931 aerial photograph, subject parcel outlined in red. Fairchild Aerial Surveys, Flight 

C-1820, Frame 47. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries, edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

The current office building at the northeast corner of the subject property was built in 1950, at an 

estimated cost of $65,000.28 The 1950 Sanborn Map Company map of the subject property depicts a 

similar configuration of buildings to that depicted in the 1946 aerial photograph, with the addition of 

the office (Figure 50). A second-story portion of the west warehouse building, noted as overhanging 

the concrete platform, is not extant today, nor is a one-story hyphen connecting the factory building 

with the Crude Material Building to the west. The concrete loading dock, ramp, and platform that 

currently exist at the south and east sides of the warehouse and factory complex were present at 

that time. Non-extant buildings depicted on this map include a “Crude Material Building” to the west 

of the existing warehouse and factory complex, the pre-1903 warehouse near the southwest corner 

of the property, and a small storeroom to the north of the warehouse. Documentation of the use of 

the tower structure was not found during research, though its placement indicates a likely use in 

elevating raw materials to facilitate incorporation into the manufacturing process. In addition to the 

factory building, uses of the existing buildings of the complex that are noted on the 1950 Sanborn 

map include warehouse use of most of the east and central warehouse buildings and the west 

warehouse building, a packing room at the southeast corner of the central warehouse, a label room 

at the west side of the east warehouse, and an office and laboratory at the northeast side of the east 

warehouse. 

 

 
28 “Berkeley Building to Cost $65,000,” Oakland Tribune, March 27, 1950. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 47 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 49. Excerpt from 1946 aerial photograph, subject parcel outlined red. Jack Ammann Photogrammetric 

Engineers, Flight C-GS-CP, Frame 6-12. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries,  

edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

 
Figure 50. Excerpt from 1950 Sanborn Map Company map for Berkeley, Volume 2, Sheet 165. Red dashed 

outline shows current parcel boundary. Source: HIG Fire Insurance Maps Online, edited by Page & Turnbull 

 

 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 48 June 30, 2021 

 

A 1965 aerial photograph depicts nearly the same configuration of buildings, though the “Crude 

Material Building” to the west of the warehouse and factory complex appears to have been removed 

by this time. This may correspond to a 1962 permit issued to the Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company, 

who owned and occupied the building at this time, to demolish a building at the property. 

 

The pre-1903 warehouse and shed at the southwest side of the property appear to have been 

demolished between 1980 and 1993.29 

 

 
Figure 51. Excerpt from 1965 aerial photograph, subject parcel shaded red. Cartwright Aerial Surveys, Flight 

CAS-65-130, Frame 15-113. Collection of University of California, Santa Barbara Libraries, 

edited by Page & Turnbull. 

 

OFFICE BUILDING: INTERNATIONAL STYLE 

Rooted in the Modern Movement that emerged out of Europe in the 1910s and 1920s, the 

International Style marked a major aesthetic shift in architecture that emphasized functionalism, 

rationalism, technological innovation, and a rejection of historic precedents. The style is 

characterized by clear expression of structural forms, smooth wall surfaces, rectilinear shapes, the 

lack of ornament, and extensive use of glazing made possible by advances in glass and building 

technology. The International Style spread in the post-World War II years representing a new, clean, 

modern, and forward-looking approach that could be adopted in any part of the world. The most 

 
29 Western Aerial Photos, Flight GS-VEZR, Frame 1-27, 1980, Collection of University of Santa Barbara Libraries; Google Earth 

aerial satellite imagery. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 49 June 30, 2021 

 

notable examples of the International Style in the San Francisco Bay Area are five homes designed 

by Richard Neutra in the late 1930s, and commercial buildings by John S. Bolles in the 1950s.30  

 

The style is characterized by an emphasis on horizontal lines, with bands of ribbon windows, and 

frequent use of corner windows, cubic and rectilinear forms, simple exterior walls of stucco or 

concrete, and asymmetrical facades. The 1950 office at 742 Grayson Street represents a restrained 

interpretation of the style, with features such as the asymmetrical massing and façade, wide 

horizontal bands of windows emphasized by protruding framing, and smooth, flat stucco-clad 

surfaces.  

 

J.B. TULLOCH, ENGINEER AND J.F. TULLOCH, BUILDER 

Permit records for the 1950 office building at the subject property cite the engineer and builder of 

the building as J.B. Tulloch and J.F. Tulloch, respectively.31 A 1952 Architect and Engineer article 

reporting activities of the East Bay Structural Engineers Society notes the appointment of engineer J. 

Blain Tulloch of Tilt-up Construction to an unnamed position in the organization.32 In the same year, 

contractor John F. Tulloch worked with the City of Oakland to consolidate the plan checking 

process.33 J.F. Tulloch was an active builder in the East Bay, acting in 1938 as President of the 

Building Industry Advisory Board and in 1954 as Director with the Builders Exchange of Oakland.34 

Research did not identify other buildings designed or constructed by J.B. Tulloch or J.F. Tulloch. 

 

OWNERSHIP HISTORY 

West Coast Kalsomine Company / Wesco Paint Company (1912-1958) 

The West Coast Kalsomine Company was established in 1906.35 Prior to relocation of its business 

and manufacturing operations to the subject property in 1912, it had an office in the Hansford 

Building at 268 Market Street in San Francisco (demolished 1956) and a factory and warehouse 

operation in El Cerrito. In its early years, the company was led by President Russell S. Penniman, a 

chemist affiliated with the late 19th-century dynamite industry in the eastern United States, and 

who, in the early 20th century, relocated to Berkeley.36 Although most documentation of the 

company’s Berkeley plant printed before the 1940s use the name West Coast Kalsomine Company, 

 
30 Mary Brown, San Francisco Modern Architecture and Landscape Design 1935-1970: Historic Context Statement (San Francisco: 

Prepared for the San Francisco City and County Planning Department, 2011), 174-177. 
31 1940 United States Census population schedules for Oakland suggest that builder John F. Tulloch and engineer J. Blair 

Tulloch were father and son. 
32 “East Bay Structural Engineers Society,” Architect and Engineer, February 1952, 28. 
33 “Construction Industries Committee Review Oakland Building Trends,” Architect and Engineer, September 1952, 43. 
34 “Building Trade Pact is Signed,” Oakland Tribune, September 24, 1938; “Business in the Bay Area,” Oakland Tribune, March 30, 

1954.  
35 Advertisement, Organized Labor, Volume 32, Number 36, September 5, 1931. 
36 “Obituary – Russell S. Penniman,” The Journal of Industrial and Engineering Chemistry, Volume 6, Number 9, September 1914. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 50 June 30, 2021 

 

the “Wesco” name was used by the company as early as 1912 (Figure 52).37 By the 1920s, the 

company also operated a plant in Los Angeles. 

 

Kalsomine, the product for which the company was named, is a lime-based paint product that, when 

not tinted, is referred to popularly as “whitewash.” Their white and tinted paints were sold as 

powders designed to be mixed with water before application. When a 1922 fire destroyed the “color 

plant” building at the property, the Oakland Tribune told of the multi-colored plumes of smoke 

created by the burning chemicals.38  

 

Wesco’s Berkeley plant ceased operations in 1958, at the time under the ownership of the National 

Gypsum Co.39 The plant’s equipment and fixtures were sold at public auction (Figure 53).40 In 1958, 

the National Gypsum Co. sold the subject property to the Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company. 

 

 
Figure 52. 1912 advertisement for the West Coast Kalsomine Company,  

Oroville Daily Register, August 15, 1912. 

 

 
37 “Architects’ Specification Index,” The Architect and Engineer, May 1912, 7. 
38 “$28,000 Fire in West Berkeley,” Oakland Tribune, January 9, 1922. 
39 Advertisement for sale of remaining paint stock, Oakland Tribune, April 6, 1958. 
40 Advertisement for public auction, Los Angeles Times, June 22, 1958. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 51 June 30, 2021 

 

 
Figure 53. Advertisement for public auction following 1958 closure of Wesco Paints.  

Los Angeles Times, June 22, 1958. 

 

Pittsburgh Plate Class Company (1959-1971) 

The Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company occupied the subject property beginning in 1959, operating its 

district office at 742 Grayson Street between 1959 and 1964.41 The location was used as an 

adhesives manufacturing and distribution plant, advertised as the company’s “Coatings & Resins 

Division.”42  

 

National Starch and Chemical Corporation / Henkel Corporation (1971-2017) 

In October 1971, the National Starch & Chemical Corporation (National Starch & Chemical) 

purchased the subject property from PPG Industries (formerly the Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company). 

In 1974, the National Starch and Chemical Corp. constructed the neighboring building to the east of 

the subject property, 800 Grayson Street, to expand their operation.43 As part of their project, they 

applied for a use permit from the City of Berkeley for a “water based and solid adhesive 

compounding and distribution plant.”44 The company continued to operate at both 742 and 800 

Grayson Street until 2017, producing and distributing adhesives as well as food ingredients such as 

starches, flavorings, and seasonings to food processing companies.45 

 

 
41 Advertisements in San Francisco Examiner, May 7, 1959 and May 27, 1960. 
42 Advertisement, Oakland Tribune, March 18, 1964. 
43 Berkeley Daily Gazette, August 16, 1974. 
44 City of Berkeley Use Permit No. 7410.  
45 Advertisement, San Francisco Examiner, January 1, 1978. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 52 June 30, 2021 

 

In 2008, Henkel Corporation acquired the adhesives and electronic materials operations of National 

Starch & Chemical from Akzo Nobel, who had acquired the company as part of the larger acquisition 

of Imperial Chemical Industries (ICI) in that year.46 The subject property was sold by the Henkel 

Corporation to 742 Grayson Owner LLC in December of 2017.  

 

 

VI. EVALUATION 

National Register of Historic Places 

The National Register of Historic Places is the nation’s most comprehensive inventory of historic 

resources. The National Register is administered by the National Park Service and includes buildings, 

structures, sites, objects, and districts that possess historic, architectural, engineering, 

archaeological, or cultural significance at the national, state, or local level. Typically, resources over 

fifty years of age are eligible for listing in the National Register if they meet any one of the four 

criteria of significance and if they sufficiently retain historic integrity. However, resources under fifty 

years of age can be determined eligible if it can be demonstrated that they are of “exceptional 

importance,” or if they are contributors to a potential historic district. National Register criteria are 

defined in depth in National Register Bulletin Number 15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for 

Evaluation. There are four basic criteria under which a structure, site, building, district, or object can 

be considered eligible for listing in the National Register.  These criteria are: 

 

Criterion A (Event): Properties associated with events that have made a significant 

contribution to the broad patterns of our history; 

 

Criterion B (Person): Properties associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; 

 

Criterion C (Design/Construction): Properties that embody the distinctive characteristics of a 

type, period, or method of construction, or that represent the work of a master, or that 

possess high artistic values, or that represent a significant distinguishable entity whose 

components lack individual distinction; and 

 

Criterion D (Information Potential): Properties that have yielded, or may be likely to yield, 

information important in prehistory or history. 

 

A resource can be considered significant on a national, state, or local level to American history, 

architecture, archaeology, engineering, and culture. 

 

 
46 “Henkel Closes Acquisition of National Starch Businesses,” Adhesives & Sealants Industry, April 10, 2008. Electronic resource 

at https://www.adhesivesmag.com/articles/87110-henkel-closes-acquisition-of-national-starch-businesses-1. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 53 June 30, 2021 

 

California Register of Historical Resources 

The California Register of Historical Resources (California Register) is an inventory of significant 

architectural, archaeological, and historical resources in the State of California. Resources can be 

listed in the California Register through a number of methods. State Historical Landmarks and 

National Register-listed properties are automatically listed in the California Register. Properties can 

also be nominated to the California Register by local governments, private organizations, or citizens. 

The evaluative criteria used by the California Register for determining eligibility are closely based on 

those developed by the National Park Service for the National Register of Historic Places.  

 

In order for a property to be eligible for listing in the California Register, it must be found significant 

under one or more of the following criteria.   

 

Criterion 1 (Events): Resources that are associated with events that have made a significant 

contribution to the broad patterns of local or regional history, or the cultural heritage of 

California or the United States. 

 

Criterion 2 (Persons): Resources that are associated with the lives of persons important to 

local, California, or national history. 

 

Criterion 3 (Architecture): Resources that embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, 

period, region, or method of construction, or represent the work of a master, or possess 

high artistic values. 

 

Criterion 4 (Information Potential): Resources or sites that have yielded or have the potential 

to yield information important to the prehistory or history of the local area, California, or the 

nation. 

 

Evaluation Discussion 

The following section provides an evaluation of the property at 742 Grayson Street, Berkeley or 

individual eligibility for the National Register and California Register. 

 

Criterion A/1 (Events) 

The subject property is associated with industrial development, specifically chemical manufacturing, 

in west Berkeley during the first half of the twentieth century. Though used from around the turn of 

the century by the Golden West Company and Stauffer Chemical Company, the longest term owner 

of the property, the West Coast Kalsomine Company / Wesco Paints, constructed the ca. 1937-1950 

buildings currently present at the site. West Berkeley, or Ocean View, has been a center of industrial 

development since the 1860s. The West Coast Kalsomine Company, which established its plant at 

the subject property in 1912, was not an early or influential contributor to the industrial history of 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 54 June 30, 2021 

 

the area; rather, it continued a pattern of development and use established by earlier businesses in 

the vicinity. Furthermore, the West Coast Kalsomine Company, Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company, and 

National Starch & Chemical Corporation do not appear to have made significant contributions in the 

history of manufacturing industries in California or the nation. Therefore, the subject property does 

not appear to be eligible for the National Register under Criterion A, or the California Register under 

Criterion 1. 

 

Criterion B/2 (Persons) 

Research for the current evaluation identified only one potentially noteworthy person associated 

with the companies which owned and used the subject property: chemist and early company 

President, Russell S. Penniman. However, Penniman died in 1914, only two years following the 

establishment of the company’s Grayson Street plant. While Penniman may be considered a 

significant figure in industrial chemistry and the production of dynamite in the United States, his 

active career does not appear to have been closely connected to his brief tenure with the West 

Coast Kalsomine Company, nor associated with the extant buildings which post-date his death. 

Therefore, the subject property does not appear to be eligible for the National Register under 

Criterion B, or the California Register under Criterion 2. 

 

Criterion C/3 (Architecture) 

Two architectural styles are present at the subject property: the 1950 office building possesses some 

International Style elements, and the utilitarian warehouse and factory complex. The office building 

is a relatively simple building with a small number of International Style features. It is neither a 

particularly full expression of the style nor a unique example of its application. The warehouse and 

factory complex is a utilitarian building typical of its period of construction, with wide stretches of 

multi-lite steel sash windows for light, facilities for vehicle loading, and application of concrete 

construction where needed for strength. It does not strongly represent a particular architectural 

style or movement. The tower with painted “Wesco” sign is a visually interesting feature which 

represents a response to the functional need of the factory’s production processes, utilized as a 

canvas for advertising the company to passersby on the nearby rail route and freeway. However, 

neither the tower itself nor the painted sign appear to possess sufficient architectural or aesthetic 

value for significance under this criterion. Neither the office building nor the warehouse and factory 

complex appear to be the work of a master architect or builder. The engineer and builder of the 

office building, J.B. Tulloch and J.F. Tulloch, were active in the East Bay building trades between the 

1930s and 1970s, but do not appear to have made a significant contribution to the built 

environment of East Bay cities or elsewhere. Therefore, the subject property does not appear to be 

eligible for the National Register under Criterion C, or the California Register under Criterion 3. 

 

Criterion D/4 (Information Potential) 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 55 June 30, 2021 

 

The “potential to yield information important to the prehistory or history of California” typically 

relates to archeological resources, rather than built resources. When Criterion D/4 (Information 

Potential) does relate to built resources, it is relevant for cases when the building itself is the 

principal source of important construction-related information. None of the buildings at the subject 

property appear to have the potential to provide important information related to their materials or 

construction type. Therefore, the office building and warehouse and factory complex at the subject 

property do not appear to be eligible for the National Register under Criterion D, or the California 

Register under Criterion 4. The analysis of these buildings was limited to above-ground resources, 

and the identification and evaluation of archaeological resources is beyond the scope of this report. 

 

CHARACTER-DEFINING FEATURES 

For a property to be eligible for national or state designation under criteria related to type, period, 

or method of construction, the essential physical features (or character-defining features) that 

enable the property to convey its historic identity must be evident. These distinctive character-

defining features are the physical traits that commonly recur in property types and/or architectural 

styles. To be eligible, a property must clearly contain enough of those characteristics to be 

considered a true representative of a particular type, period, or method of construction, and these 

features must also retain a sufficient degree of integrity. Characteristics can be expressed in terms 

such as form, proportion, structure, plan, style, or materials. 

 

As neither the office building nor the warehouse and factory complex at 742 Grayson Street appear 

to be eligible for the National Register or California Register under any criterion, character-defining 

features are not identified here. 

 

City of Berkeley Landmark and Structure of Merit Evaluation 

The City of Berkeley maintains a list of properties designated as local Landmarks and Structures of 

Merit under Chapter 3.24 of the Berkeley Municipal Code. Much like the National and California 

Registers, the Municipal Code provides a number of criteria that must be met in order for a property 

to gain Landmark or Structure of Merit designation. Properties may be landmarked if they meet 

standards of architectural, cultural, educational, or historical significance, or if they are already listed 

in the National Register. A property may be designated as a Structure of Merit if it does not rise to 

the level of Landmark status, but has contextual importance and is worthy of preservation as part of 

a neighborhood, block or street frontage, or group of buildings that includes Landmark properties. 

The designation criteria for Landmarks and Structures of Merit are as follows: 

 

A. LANDMARKS AND HISTORIC DISTRICTS.  

General criteria which the commission shall use when considering structures, sites and areas for 

landmark or historic district designation are as follows: 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 56 June 30, 2021 

 

 

1. Architectural merit: 

a. Property that is the first, last, only or most significant architectural property of its type in the 

region; 

b. Properties that are prototypes of or outstanding examples of periods, styles, architectural 

movements or construction, or examples of the more notable works of the best surviving 

work in a region of an architect, designer or master builder; or 

c. Architectural examples worth preserving for the exceptional values they add as part of the 

neighborhood fabric. 

 

2. Cultural value: Structures, sites and areas associated with the movement or evolution of 

religious, cultural, governmental, social and economic developments of the City; 

 

3. Educational value: Structures worth preserving for their usefulness as an educational force; 

 

4. Historic value: Preservation and enhancement of structures, sites and areas that embody and 

express the history of Berkeley/Alameda County/California/United States. History may be 

social, cultural, economic, political, religious or military; 

 

5. Any property which is listed on the National Register described in Section 470A of Title 16 of 

the United States Code. 

 

B. STRUCTURES OF MERIT.  

Criteria which the commission shall use when considering a structure for structure of merit 

designation are as follows: 

 

1. General criteria shall be architectural merit and/or cultural, educational, or historic interest or 

value. If upon assessment of a structure, the commission finds that the structure does not 

currently meet the criteria as set out for a landmark, but it is worthy of preservation as part of 

a neighborhood, a block or a street frontage, or as part of a group of buildings which includes 

landmarks, that structure may be designated a structure of merit. 

 

2. Specific criteria include, but are not limited to one or more of the following: 

a. The age of the structure is contemporary with (1) a designated landmark within its 

neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings, or (2) an historic period or event 

of significance to the City, or to the structure’s neighborhood, block, street frontage, or 

group of buildings. 

b. The structure is compatible in size, scale, style, materials or design with a designated 

landmark structure within its neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 57 June 30, 2021 

 

c. The structure is a good example of architectural design. 

d. The structure has historical significance to the City and/or to the structure’s neighborhood, 

block, street frontage, or group of buildings. (Ord. 5686-NS § 1 (part), 1985: Ord. 4694-NS § 

3.1, 1974) 

 

CITY OF BERKELEY LANDMARK AND STRUCTURE OF MERIT EVALUATION: 742 

GRAYSON STREET 

A. Landmarks & Historic Districts 

1. Architectural Merit: 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a landmark for its 

architectural merit. Neither the office building nor the warehouse and factory complex at the 

property are early, rare, or distinctive examples of their respective building types in the City of 

Berkeley. They do not provide architectural value to the neighborhood fabric of Grayson Street or 

West Berkeley. 

 

2. Cultural Value: 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a landmark for its cultural 

value. Although the subject property was associated with the industrial development of West 

Berkeley, extant buildings were constructed relatively late in this pattern of development and do not 

represent important or unique contributors to the city’s industrial growth. 

 

3. Education Value: 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a landmark for its 

educational value. The subject building does not bear significant historic associations for it to 

contribute meaningfully to educational curricula. 

 

4. Historic Value: 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a landmark for its historic 

value. Although the subject building retains original materials and features, its utilitarian building 

materials, type, and style do not strongly embody or express the history of Berkeley, the state, or 

nation. 

 

Structures of Merit 

1. General Criteria: Architectural Merit and/or Cultural, Educational, or Historic Interest or Value:  

742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a Structure of Merit under general criteria. 

Constructed between 1937 and 1950, the buildings at the subject property share the Grayson Street 

frontages with a heavily altered industrial building from 1917 and a variety of later 20th-century 

industrial buildings. There is not a cohesive street frontage which would warrant designation of the 

subject property as a Structure of Merit.  

 

2. Specific Criteria: 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be eligible as a Structure of Merit under 

specific criteria. The subject building is not located in direct proximity to landmark buildings, and 

does not contribute in style or association to a historic district. It is not a distinctive example of 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 58 June 30, 2021 

 

architectural design, and does not appear to have historical significance to the City of Berkeley or 

the surrounding West Berkeley neighborhood. 

 

INTEGRITY 

In order to qualify for listing in any local, state, or national historic register, a property or landscape 

must possess significance under at least one evaluative criterion as described above and retain 

integrity. Integrity is defined by the California Office of Historic Preservation as “the authenticity of 

an historical resource’s physical identity by the survival of certain characteristics that existing during 

the resource’s period of significance,” or more simply defined as “the ability of a property to convey 

its significance.”47 Seven variables, or aspects, that define integrity are used to evaluate a resource’s 

integrity, based on standards outlined by the National Register Bulletin: How to Apply the National 

Register Criteria for Evaluation: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and 

association. A property must possess most or all of these aspects in order to retain overall integrity. 

If a property does not retain integrity, it can no longer convey its significance and is therefore not 

eligible for listing in local, state, or national registers.  

 

As 742 Grayson Street does not appear to be individually eligible for listing in the National Register 

or California Register under any significance criteria, the historic integrity of the property is not 

analyzed in this report. 

 

VII. CONCLUSION 

The existing buildings at 742 Grayson Street were built by the West Coast Kalsomine Company 

between 1937 and 1950 to replace earlier paint factory buildings constructed by the company at the 

site.  Extant buildings consist of a warehouse and factory complex completed in a utilitarian 

industrial style beginning in 1937, and an office building, completed in 1950 in a restrained 

application of the International Style.  

 

In 1959, the Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company acquired the site for use as a resins and coatings 

manufacturing and distribution center. In 1971, the National Starch & Chemical Corporation (later 

Henkel Corporation) purchased the property for use in manufacturing and distribution of adhesives 

and other starch products. 

 

Page & Turnbull evaluated the property for significance according to the criteria of the National 

Register and California Register. The property does not appear to be directly associated with 

significant historical events or patterns, or significant individuals in local, state, or national history. 

Neither the office nor the warehouse and factory complex are strong examples of particular 

 
47 California Office of Historic Preservation, Technical Assistance Series No. 7: How to Nominate a Resource to the California 

Register of Historical Resources (Sacramento: California Office of State Publishing, 4 September 2001) 11.  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 59 June 30, 2021 

 

architectural styles or movements, and neither represent the work of a master architect or builder.  

Page & Turnbull finds that the property does not appear to be eligible for the National Register or 

California Register under any criteria. The buildings do not appear to meet the criteria for inclusion 

in the City of Berkeley Historic Resources Inventory as Landmarks or Structures of Merit. Therefore, 

the subject property does not appear to meet the requirements to be considered a historical 

resource for the purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 

  

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 60 June 30, 2021 

 

VIII. REFERENCES CITED 

Adhesives & Sealants Industry. “Henkel Closes Acquisition of National Starch Businesses,” April 10, 

2008. Electronic resource at https://www.adhesivesmag.com/articles/87110-henkel-closes-

acquisition-of-national-starch-businesses-1. 

Architect and Engineer. “Construction Industries Committee Review Oakland Building Trends,” 

September 1952. 

_____.  “East Bay Structural Engineers Society,” February 1952. 

_____.  “Architects’ Specification Index,” May 1912. 

Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association (BAHA). Discovering West Berkeley: A Self-Guided Tour 

(brochure, n.d). 

Berkeley Daily Gazette. “Business expansions Get OK from Berkeley Board,” August 16, 1974. 

_____.  “Permits for Last Week,” October 15, 1912. 

_____.  “Paint Factory to Relocate Here,” September 28, 1912 

_____.  “Deeds Recorded September 19,” September 20, 1912. 

Brown, Mary. San Francisco Modern Architecture and Landscape Design 1935-1970: Historic Context 

Statement. San Francisco: Prepared for the San Francisco City and County Planning 

Department, 2011. 

California Office of Historic Preservation. Technical Assistance Bulletin No. 7: How to Nominate a 

Resource to the California Register of Historical Resources. Sacramento: California Office of 

State Publishing, September 4, 2001. 

Cerny, Susan Dinkelspiel. Berkeley Landmarks: An Illustrated Guide to Berkeley California’s Architectural 

Heritage. Berkeley: Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, 1994. 

City of Berkeley. City of Berkeley Municipal Code Landmarks Preservation Ordinance, 3.24.110 

Landmarks, historic districts and structures of merit--Designation--Criteria for consideration. 

Accessed online, April 15, 2020, 

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley03241

10.html. 

_____. Landmark Application for the Preservation of All Souls Church, Parish Hall and Courtyard, 

2220 Cedar Street, Berkeley, CA, on file at Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, 2001. 

Corbett, Michael R. Historical and Architectural Evaluation: The Macaulay Foundry, 811 Carleton Street. 

Berkeley: Prepared for John Allen and Ken David and the City of Berkeley Planning and 

Development Department, Sept 21, 2015. 

The Journal of Industrial and Engineering Chemistry. “Obituary – Russell S. Penniman,” Volume 6, 

Number 9, September 1914. 

Oakland Tribune. Advertisement for Pittsburgh Plate Glass Co., March 18, 1964. 

_____. Advertisement for sale of Wesco paint surplus, April 6, 1958. 

_____.  “Business in the Bay Area,” March 30, 1954. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley0324110.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley0324110.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley0324110.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley03/Berkeley0324/Berkeley0324110.html


Historic Resource Evaluation   742 Grayson Street 

[20201]  Berkeley, California 

 

   

Page & Turnbull 61 June 30, 2021 

 

_____.  “Berkeley Building to Cost $65,000,” March 27, 1950. 

_____.  “Berkeley Tax Needs are Told,” January 2, 1939. 

_____.  “Building Trade Pact is Signed,” September 24, 1938. 

_____.  “200,000 Plant Due for Berkeley Area, December 22, 1937. 

_____.  “$28,000 Fire in West Berkeley,” January 9, 1922. 

_____.  “Industrial News,” July 28, 1917;  

Los Angeles Times. Advertisement for public auction, June 22, 1958. 

Organized Labor. Advertisement for West Coast Kalsomine Company, Volume 32, Number 36, 

September 5, 1931. 

San Francisco Examiner. Employment advertisement for National Starch & Chemical Co., January 1, 

1978. 

_____. Advertisements for Pittsburgh Plate Glass Co., May 7, 1959 and May 27, 1960. 

Sanborn Map Company. Insurance Maps of Berkeley, California, 1950. 

_____. Insurance Maps of Berkeley, California, 1911. 

_____. Insurance Maps of Oakland, California, 1903. 

Thompson & West. Official and Historical Atlas Map of Alameda County, California. Oakland, Thompson 

& West, 1878. David Rumsey Historical Map Collection. 

University of California, Berkeley. 2020 Long Range Development Plan Draft Environmental Impact 

Report, Volume 1, 2004. 

Wollenberg, Charles. Berkeley: A City in History. Berkeley: University of California Press, 2002. 

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



This page intentionally left blank.

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



Imagining change in historic environments through 
design, research, and technology

417 S. HILL STREET, SUITE 211  LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90013  TEL 213.221.1200 
2600 CAPITOL AVENUE, SUITE 120  SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95816  TEL 916-930-9903
170 MAIDEN LANE, 5TH FLOOR  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94108  TEL 415.362.5154

ITEM 9. ATTACHMENT 1 
LPC 06-02-22 



L A N D M A R K S

P R E S E R V A T I O N

C O M M I S S I O N

S t a f f R e p o r t

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

` 
REFERRAL

JUNE 2, 2022

1820-1828 San Pablo Avenue 
Demolition Referral: Use Permit #ZP2021-0186 to demolish a commercial 
building originally constructed circa 1925. 

I. Application Basics

A. Parties Involved:

• Project Applicant: Yang Ming
Gunkel Architecture 
1295 59th Street 
Emeryville, CA 

• Evaluator: Mark Hulbert, Historic Architect 
Preservation Architecture  
446 17th Street #302 
Oakland, CA 

• Property Owner: Toni Ogi-Robbins
35936 Niles Boulevard 
Fremont, CA 

B. Staff Recommendation: Consider the extent to which this property exhibits
historical significance and then take no action to initiate 
further consideration. 

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 2 of 7 
 

 

II. Background 
On October 7, 2021, the applicant submitted a Use Permit application to demolish the 
building at 1820-1828 San Pablo Avenue, located in Northwest Berkeley. The Use 
Permit proposes to construct a four-story, 43,277 square-foot mixed-use building with 44 
dwelling units, and 5,718 square-feet of commercial space. 
 
The Use Permit application is under review by the Zoning Officer, who will recommend a 
determination for environmental review compliance pursuant to CEQA. At this time, the 
proposal is expected to reach the Design Review Committee in the coming months and 
to complete a hearing before the Zoning Adjustments Board later this year. More 
information can be found on the City’s website, linked below.  

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx 
 
Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 23.326.070(C), any application for a Use 
Permit to demolish a non-residential building or structure which is 40 or more years old 
shall be forwarded to the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) for review prior to 
consideration of the Use Permit for demolition. Given the lack of a current, City-wide 
comprehensive historic resource survey, the referral requirement is understood to 
address the potential for the loss of unidentified significant resources.  

 
In considering the proposed demolition of a structure, the Commission will weigh the 
potential to meet the significance criteria for COB Landmarks and Historic Districts in the 
City’s Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3), which 
are relatively specific and appear to align with the California Register. The Commission 
will also weigh the potential to meet the broader COB Structure of Merit criteria, which 
can include structures that are neither individually architecturally distinctive nor 
associated with significant people or events but may qualify as contributors to identified 
districts, areas, or clusters. The LPC may initiate a designation or take no action based 
on the significance criteria, and may still forward comments regarding potential project 
conditions such as relocation, salvage, and/or photographic documentation to the 
Zoning Adjustments Board for consideration in its action on the application.  
 

III. Historical Resource Status 
  The subject building does not appear on the National Register of Historic Places, 

California Register of Historical Resources, or the State Historic Resources Inventory. 
 
Nearby City Landmarks and Structures of Merit include: Toverii Tuppa- Finnish Hall at 
1819 Tenth Street (1908), and the Church of the Good Shepherd at 1001 Hearst 
Avenue (1878) (see Figure 1).  

  

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 

https://permits.cityofberkeley.info/CitizenAccess/Default.aspx


   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map showing nearby City Landmarks 

 
 
 

 
  

Use Permit 
Project Site 

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 4 of 7 
 

 

Figure 3: Subject Property – Existing Photo, East Elevation (Google Maps, 2020) 
 

 
 
 
Figure 4: Subject Property – East Elevation, 1964 (Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, 
Humphrey Slide Collection) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 5 of 7 
 
 

 

IV. Property Description 
 
  The historic resource evaluation (HRE) for the subject property was completed by 

preservation architect Mark Hulburt in February 2021; please see Attachment 1 of this 
report. The following description derives from the information contained in the HRE as 
well as the City’s land use archives and building permit records. 

 
Parcel Description: The subject parcel is on the west side of San Pablo Avenue, 
between Delaware Street (north), and Hearst Avenue (south). The lot is 11,750 square-
feet in area. The existing building covers the entire lot, except at the right portion of the 
rear, where there is a setback of 2.27 feet. 
 
Building Description: The front half of the building, along San Pablo, is two stories, 
while the rear half is one story. The walls are concrete, with a low slope wood frame 
roof. Along San Pablo there are eight bays, each about 12.5 feet in width. There are 
transom windows above the first five bays, starting with the southernmost bay. The 
northern three bays are filled by a wood front that rises to the window sill on the second 
floor. Steel sash windows fill most of the second-floor windows. There are projecting 
concrete sills at the second-floor windows. At the top of the east elevation, a projecting 
cap steps vertically at the outer bays and the two central bays. The exterior is painted 
concrete. 
 
The style is an early twentieth century commercial vernacular design, similar to a brick-
front store, but made of concrete and wood.  
 

  Early Site History & Parcel Development: The property was first mapped in 1876. The 
lot remained vacant until 1925, when the existing building was constructed for the 
owner, Stephen Furch, to use as an automobile painting shop. The architect was J.R. 
Carson, and the builder was Coast Construction Company. 

 
 Furch Paint Shop occupied the first floor from 1925-1927. Wickman Glove Company 

occupied the second floor at 1822 San Pablo from 1928 to 1960.  
 
 Berkeley Food Store occupied the first floor at 1826 San Pablo from 1943 until the 

1980s. Berkeley Food Store was owned by Kenneth and Mary Soe, who acquired the 
property from their relatives Jack and Rosa Soe in 1950. The Soe family purchased the 
property in 1942.  

 
 In 1964, the front glass windows at 1822 San Pablo were covered with shutters, and 

other exterior changes were made for a new bar. The Albatross Bar/Pub occupied 1822 
San Pablo from 1965-2020. A dance studio occupied the upstairs at 1820 San Pablo 
beginning in 1972, and in 1977 a modeling agency and photography studio occupied the 
upstairs at 1820 San Pablo. A record store occupied 1824 San Pablo beginning in 1983; 
plans for signage show the new record store between the grocery store and pub. 

 
 In 1998, a new illuminated metal and glass blade sign, along with lights and letters on 

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 6 of 7 
 

 

the front facade was added for the Albatross Pub.  
 

The ownership and occupancy history of the subject building are available in detail in the 
HRE, Attachment 1. 

 
V.  Evaluation of Significance Criteria 
 
 Historic Context1: For the purpose of contextualizing and focusing this discussion of 

potential historical significance, staff concludes that the period of significance for the 
property would have begun with the construction of the subject building around 1925 
and continued until no longer than 40 years prior to this evaluation, or 1982. The 
minimum 40-year threshold for historical maturity is derived from the demolition referral 
provisions of BMC Section 23.326.070. Owing to the subject building’s design, 
continued use as a commercial and industrial structure, it is associated with the 
historical theme of commercial and industrial development.   

 
Significance Criteria: The subject property is evaluated based on the criteria of the 
National Register of Historic Places, California Register of Historical Resources (CR), 
and the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (LPO/BMC 3.24). The existing building is 
more than 50 years old and, therefore, may be considered eligible for listing on the 
National Register of Historic Places or the California Register of Historical Resources. 
Because it is more than 40 years old, BMC Section 23C.08.050 requires that it be 
evaluated for potential local significance prior to issuance of any demolition entitlement. 
 
The evaluation concentrates on possible associations with events (CR-1, BMC Sections 
3.24.110(A)(2) and (B)(2)), persons (CR-2, BMC Section 3.24.110(A)(4)), architectural 
design (CR-3, BMC Sections 3.24.110(A)(1)(a-c) and (B)(2)(a and c)), and 
information/education (CR-4, BMC Section 3.24.110(A)(3)). The results of the 
consultant’s and staff’s evaluations are discussed below.     

 
Events – CR Criterion 1/BMC Criterion Historical Value 
The property is associated with the historical patterns of commercial/industrial 
development in Berkeley. A study of its construction history, ownership, and occupancy 
records revealed no information linking this site to any events or singular episode of 
primary importance to Berkeley’s history or economic development. For this reason, it 
does not exhibit historical significance under the local or state criteria. 

 
Persons – CR Criterion 2/BMC Criterion Cultural Value 
With respect to significant persons and potential cultural value, the consultant’s research 
confirmed that the persons and enterprises that owned and occupied this property do not 
appear to have made a significant or lasting contribution to history, commercial 
development, or their respective fields. The Albatross Pub was a long-standing 
neighborhood bar, with many regular patrons. Since the bar was more than a mile from 
the U.C. Berkeley campus it was one of the places where people could legally drink prior 

                                                 
1 National Register Bulletin #15, Item V: How to Evaluate a Property within its Historic Context (2002); National Register 
Bulletin #16A. Section III: How to Complete the National Register Registration – Period of Significance (1997).  

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
 

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1820-1828 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
June 2, 2022 Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 

to changes in local law, but it was not the first or only bar on San Pablo Avenue. The bar 
was important to patrons, but it does not exhibit cultural value to the extent that it should 
be landmarked. Similar to the findings and conclusions for the previous significance 
criterion, this property is not associated with a historically significance person. 
 
Design – CR Criterion 3/BMC Criteria Architectural Merit  
The building is a typical two-part commercial building representing the architectural style 
that was common in the early twentieth century, but does not express particular artistic 
value. The extant building does not appear to be the work of master designers or 
builders. The building cannot be considered an outstanding or distinctive design, and 
therefore the building is not significant for its design. 
  
Information – CR Criterion 4/BMC Criterion Educational Force 
There have been no recent CA Historical Resource Information System investigations 
for the subject parcel or its environs, but previous research concluded that it was not 
likely to yield archeological information or other sub-surface resources related to pre-
history or pre-colonial and tribal cultural resources.   

 
LPO/BMC Criteria for Structure of Merit 
As a potential Structure of Merit (BMC Section 3.24.110.B, Paragraph 2), the extant 
structure does not appear to be worthy of preservation as part of a neighborhood, a 
block, or a street frontage, or a group of buildings which include City Landmarks 
because:  

• The subject building is not contemporary of any nearby City Landmark 
structure, nor is it compatible in size, scale, or design. 

• The building is not a good example of architectural design when considered 
individually or in relation to others. 

• The building possesses no historically significant connections to the 
neighborhood, block, frontage, or a group of resources.   

 

VI.  Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Commission consider the extent to which the building meets 
(or does not meet) the criteria for designation as a City Landmark or Structure of Merit, 
and then Take No Action to initiate this property. 

 
Attachments:  

1. Historic Resource Evaluation for 1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue; prepared by Mark Hulbert, dated 
February 2021 

 
Prepared by: Allison Riemer, Associate Planner, ariemer@cityofberkeley.info, 510-981-7433 
 
 

ITEM 10 
LPC 06-02-22 

mailto:ariemer@cityofberkeley.info


446 17th Street #302 Oakland 94612 
510 418 0285 mhulbert@earthlink.net 

February 20, 2021 

1822-1828 San Pablo Ave., Berkeley 
City of Berkeley Historical Evaluation 

Based on the attached historic resource records (State of CA DPR forms, 1822-1828 San Pablo 
Avenue, Feb.20, 2021, 5pp.), the existing building located at 1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue is not 
eligible for designation as a Berkeley Landmark or Structure of Merit on the basis of any cultural 
value, as the subject property and building: 

• Is not associated with the movement or evolution of religious, cultural, governmental, social or
economic developments of the City (LPO Section A.2). Re: the latter – being the only potentially
applicable movement relative to this commercial property – the subject property belongs to a
general pattern of regional development beginning with original subdivision and promotion in the
late-19th century and continuing into a period of development in the first half of the 20th century,
which development pattern fits the locale as it does the entire vicinity and relative to which the
subject parcel and building are without distinction.

• Are not worth preserving for usefulness as an educational force (LPO Section A.3), as there is
no potential educational value associated with the original or subsequent uses and users;

• As the individual property does not embody or express the history of Berkeley/Alameda
County/California/United States (LPO Section A.4).

Additionally, on the basis of architectural merit, the subject building is not eligible to be a City of 
Berkeley Landmarks or Structure of Merits, as: 

• The subject building is not a “first, last, only or most significant architectural property of its type in
the region,” as there are numerous commercial-industrial properties of identifiably greater
significance in the direct vicinity (ex.: the recently landmarked 1923 Borg Building at 2136-2154
San Pablo Ave.) (LPO Section A.1.a).

• The subject building is also not a prototypical or outstanding example of its period or style, as
there are numerous, local examples of related period commercial/industrial development (ex.:
2136-2154 San Pablo). Nor is the subject building an important work of its otherwise minimally-
known architect or builder, J. R. Carson and Coast Construction Co., respectively. (LPO Section
A.1.b).

• The building is not an architectural example worthy of preservation for any “potentially
exceptional values relative to its neighborhood fabric.” (LPO Section A.1.c).

• Nor is the building worthy of potential preservation as part of its neighborhood, block or street
frontage, nor is it directly a part of a group of buildings that includes landmarks. (LPO Section
B.1)

Further, under CoB Structure of Merit criteria: 

• As cited above, the existing building is not worthy of preservation as part of its neighborhood,
block or street frontage, or as part of a group of buildings that includes landmarks (LPO sec.B.1).

• The age of the subject building is not contemporary with an historic period or event of
significance to the City, or to this neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings
(LPO sec.B.2a); neither does the subject building constitute any potential event of importance
relative “to the structure's neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings” (LPO
Section B.2.a[2]).

ITEM 10. ATTACHMENT 1
                    LPC 06-02-22



1822-1828 SAN PABLO AVE., BERKELEY 
COB-HREVAL–022021–P2 

• The subject building is not compatible in size, scale, style, materials or design with a designated
landmark structure within the neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings (LPO
sec.B.2b).

• The existing building has no identifiable historical significance to the City and/or to the structure's
neighborhood, block, street frontage, or group of buildings. While portions of the building housed
several longstanding local businesses, the Berkeley Food Store (1943-c1980) and the Albatross
Pub (1965-2020), the importance of such occupants are sentimental and temporal – as both
establishments are no longer extant – rather than historical (LPO sec.B.2d).

Consequently, the building at 1822-1828 San Pablo Ave. in Berkeley is not eligible as a City of 
Berkeley Landmark or Structure of Merit. 

Signed: 

Mark Hulbert 
Preservation Architect 

ITEM 10. ATTACHMENT 1
                    LPC 06-02-22



 
 

Page  1     of   5    *Resource Name or #:    1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue      
P1. Other Identifier:    None

DPR 523A (9/2013) *Required information

State of California � The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI # 

PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial
NRHP Status Code 

Other Listings 
Review Code  Reviewer  Date 

*P2. Location:  �  Not for Publication     �  Unrestricted 
*a.  County   Alameda and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d.  Attach a Location Map as necessary.) 
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad  Oakland West  Date     1993 Township & Range  -- 
c. Address   1822-1828 San Pablo Ave.    City    Berkeley     Zip   94702      
d. UTM: Zone   ,  mE/ mN 
e. Other Locational Data: Assessor’s Parcel Number 57-2087-5

*P3a. Description:
The subject site measures 100 by 100 ft. with an additional 35 ft. deep by 50 ft. wide leg that extends rearward at its 
northwest corner. The existing building fills the entire lot. Exterior walls are concrete, roofs are low-slope wood frame. 
The building’s front half is 2-stories, its rear half 1-story, so the tops of the building’s concrete side walls incrementally 
step down at the transition. The 35 by 50 foot rearward extension has 1-story walls yet is without a roof. All but the 
front (east) wall directly adjoin neighboring properties though both side walls are largely open to the adjoining lots. 
(cont.) 

*P3b. Resource Attributes:
HP6: 1-3 story 
commercial building  
*P4.ResourcesPresent: � Building    �
Structure � Object � Site � District �
Element of District � Other
P5b. Description of Photo:
fig.1)MH,2021;fig.2)Google 
Earth,2021;fig.3)BAHA,1964     
*P6. Date Constructed/Age and
Source: � Historic  � Prehistoric

� Both 
1925, bldg.permit #19195
*P7. Owner and Address:
Toni Ogi-Robbins 
United World LLC 
ton@unitedworldllc.com 
*P8. Recorded by:
Mark Hulbert
446 17th St. #302
Oakland, CA 94612
P9. Date Recorded:
February 20, 2021

*P10. Survey Type: (Describe)
Intensive 
*P11.  Report Citation:
None
*Attachments: �NONE  �Location Map �Continuation Sheet  �Building, Structure, and Object Record
�Archaeological Record  �District Record  �Linear Feature Record  �Milling Station Record  �Rock Art Record
�Artifact Record  �Photograph Record   � Other (List):

P5a.  Photograph 

Fig.1 – 1822-1828 San Pablo Ave., front (east) 

ITEM 10. ATTACHMENT 1
                     LPC 06-02-22



*Resource Name or #   1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue, Berkeley       *NRHP Status Code                   
Page   2   of  5    
 

 

DPR 523B (9/2013) *Required information 

State of California � The Resources Agency  Primary #                                         
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#                                             

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD  

(This space reserved for official comments.)  

(Sketch Map with north arrow required.)  

B1. Historic Name:    1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue                                                             
B2. Common Name:  --                
B3. Original Use:   Commercial                             B4.  Present Use:  same                     
*B5. Architectural Style:   2-Part Commercial Block*                                                       
 
*B6. Construction History:  
 
The subject property was first mapped in 1876 as lots 10 and 11 of the Berkeley L.T.I. Association’s Tract B. Those 
lots appear to have remained vacant until the existing building was constructed in 1925 based on a Dec. 1924 
building permit (#19195) for the property owner Stephan Furch and for his auto painting shop, which business resided 
in the subject building from 1925-1927. (cont.) 
 

*B7. Moved?   �No   �Yes   �Unknown   Date:                   Original Location:                      
*B8. Related Features: None  
B9a. Architect:  J.R. Carson                               b. Builder:  Coast Construction Co.                         
*B10. Significance:  Theme    --                                   Area    West Berkeley                    
 Period of Significance    --              Property Type    --            Applicable Criteria    --          
 
Per the attached evaluation, the subject, 1925 commercial building has no identifiable historic significance. (cont.) 
 
B11. Additional Resource Attributes:  none                                                    
 
*B12. References: 
 
* Richard Longstreth, The Buildings of Main Street, Alta Mira Press, 2000. 
Alameda County/Oakland directories – 1920-1975 (@loc.org); Sanborn maps – 1929, 1950 (@sfpl.org). 
City of Berkeley permit records, 1924-present. 
BAHA archives: Bldg. permits, 1924-1946; 1964 photo (fig.3) 
 
B13. Remarks: 
 
*B14. Evaluator:  Mark Hulbert Preservation Architect                                                                        

*Date of Evaluation:   February 20, 2021 
 

 

  
 Fig.2 – 1822-1828 San Pablo Ave. 
 

North 
HEARST AVE. 

SA
N 

PA
BL

O
 A

VE
. 

 



age        of         *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder)                             

*Recorded by:                                 *Date                      �  Continuation     
� Update 

 

DPR 523L (9/2013) 

State of California - The Resources Agency  Primary#                         
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #     
       Trinomial  

CONTINUATION SHEET     

Property Name: 1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue, Berkeley 
Page 3 of 5 

Description (continued): 

At the second floor, the rear (west) wall has windows overlooking the roof of the lower half of the building. 
The single story, rear wall also has existing openings, including doors from the building into its uncovered 
extension. 

At the front, the concrete façade is 2-stories high and 8 structural bays in length, each bay evidently 12.5 
feet wide. A range of existing shop fronts fill the 1st floor openings of each bay, though the northern 3 
bays are filled with a single wood front that rises to the second floor window sill. Steel sash window, each 
3 units wide and with divided lites, fill each of the 2nd floor openings except one, which has replacement 
windows. Each second floor opening also has a projecting concrete sill. The top of façade has a 
projecting cap that steps vertically at both outer bays and at the 2 central bays, which cap and steps 
along with the basic projecting sills are the building’s only original architectural features. The painted 
concrete exterior finish is plain. No original or early storefronts remain, though 5 existing rows of transom 
windows above the transom rail appear to be original. 

 
Construction History (continued): 

The 1929 Sanborn map identified an auto repair shop along with 3 stores in the first floor, the rear of 
which was vacant, and a glove factory on the second floor. The 1950 Sanborn recorded a small 
warehouse in the northern bay of the building and a store that filled the remainder of the first floor, while 
the second floor was occupied by leather goods and glove factory. Directories confirm the Wickman 
Glove Co. occupied 1822 San Pablo Ave. from 1928 to 1960; and that the first floor grocery store was the 
Berkeley Food Store, which was first listed in 1943 at 1826 San Pablo and where it was still listed in 1975 
(the last available online historical directory). 
 
The 1924 permit application was for a two-story building to house an auto painting shop owned by 
Stephan Furch, designed by architect J. R. Carson and built by the Coast Construction Company. 
Subsequent permit records (1920s-1960s) include: 
date work owner architect/engineer/builder 
Oct.1925 Int. alts. Furch Paint Shop --/--/C.M. Texdahl 
Dec.1930 Int. alts. Calvin Phillips Co. --/--/owner 
Nov.1938 Reroof Calvin Phillips --/--/-- 
Nov.1942 Store alts. Kenneth Soe --/Francis B. Plant/V.E. Sigge 
Dec.1942 Grocery store Kenneth Soe --/--/V.E. Sigge 
Feb.1946 Reroof Kenneth Soe --/--/-- 
Apr.1946 Roof alts. Kenneth Soe --/--/? 
Nov.1964 Tavern William A. Scanlon  --/--/-- 
 
Based on this recorded information, primary occupants included: 
1925-1927 Auto paint shop (first floor, second floor unknown) 
1928-1960 Glove factory (second floor) 
1943-c1980 Grocery store (first floor) 
1965-2020 The Albatross Bar/Albatross Pub 
 
One early photograph (fig.3) has been located, dated 1964, and which depicts a grocery store in the 
southern end and center of the building, a gallery at the northernmost bay, and the two bays between 
those uses then under construction. Directories confirm that the grocery store was the Berkeley Food 
Store at 1826 San Pablo Avenue. The date of that photo indicates that the spaces then under 
construction were the tavern use added under the 1964 permit, the first directory listing for which was in 
the 1965 directory and under the name The Albatross Bar at the address 1822 San Pablo. (cont.) 

 



age        of         *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder)                             

*Recorded by:                                 *Date                      �  Continuation     
� Update 

 

DPR 523L (9/2013) 

State of California - The Resources Agency  Primary#                         
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #     
       Trinomial  

CONTINUATION SHEET     

Property Name: 1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue, Berkeley 
Page 4 of 5 

Construction History (continued): 

 
Fig.3 – 1822-1828 San Pablo Ave., 1964 (courtesy BAHA – Humphrey Slide Collection) 
 
Significance (continued): 
 
Per the California Register of Historical Resources evaluation criteria:  
 
Criterion 1 – There are no identifiable events of any potential historic importance associated with this 
property or its building. The subject property belongs to a general pattern of regional development 
beginning with its original subdivision in the late-19th century and continuing into a period of development 
in the first half of the 20th century, yet which contextual pattern fits the locale as it does the entire vicinity, 
which experienced, in its time, relatively extensive commercial and industrial development, relative to 
which this parcel and its 1925 building is typical. The original and early commercial retail and light 
industrial uses likewise do not stand out as important in their context. 
  
Criterion 2 – There is no available information from which to identify that any person associated with the 
origins or early history of the subject building are of any historical importance. The one person directly 
associated with the development of the 1822-1828 San Pablo building, Stephan Furch, was an auto 
painter. His business occupied a portion of this building for a brief period. Other general owners and 
tenants followed. The longest owner-occupant was Kenneth Soe (1906-1996) and Mary Soe (1915-?), 
whose family acquired the building in 1942, where they relocated their store (the Berkeley Food Store, 
previously on University Ave.), which reopened at 1826 San Pablo in 1943 and remained in operation 
until c.1980. Kenneth and Mary Soe acquired the property and building from family members Jack and 
Rosa Soe in 1950 and which the Soe family has held up to the present. While the Soes were evidently 
important to their community and family, there is again no evidence that they are historically important 
persons. 
 
Criterion 3 – Given the subject building’s basic design and construction character, it does not embody 
distinctive design characteristics of its type, period or region, and there are no distinctive methods of 
construction. Neither are the identified architect and builder, J. R. Carson and Coast Construction Co., 
respectively, of any identifiable importance, nor does the building embody any artistic values present. 
 



age        of         *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 

*Recorded by:                      *Date   �  Continuation     
� Update

 

DPR 523L (9/2013) 

State of California - The Resources Agency  Primary#      

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #   
 Trinomial 

CONTINUATION SHEET
Property Name: 1822-1828 San Pablo Avenue, Berkeley
Page 5 of 5 

Significance (continued): 

Criterion 4 – Relative to potential historic architectural resources, the subject property has not yielded and 
at this juncture, beyond the contents of this report, does not appear to have any potential to yield 
additional information of any historical importance. 

Conclusion – The subject building at 1822-1828 San Pablo Ave. in Berkeley lacks potential historical 
significance per the California Register criteria.





   

 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
LAND USE PLANNING DIVISION 

 

** INDICATES THAT THE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECEIVED DOCUMENTS (NOTICES OF DECISION, STAFF 
REPORTS, APPLICATION MATERIALS OR CORRESPONDENCE) AS PART OF THE PACKET THAT WAS DELIVERED PRIOR TO 
THIS MEETING. 

 
LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

Date: Thursday, May 5, 2022 
Time: 7:04 PM  
Place:  On-Line (No Physical Location) 
 
Attendees:  51 
 
Staff: Fatema Crane, Senior Planner/LPC Secretary 
  Allison Riemer, Associate Planner/LPC Clerk 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Christopher Adams 
Kathleen Crandall 
Charles Enchill, Chairperson 
Steven Finacom 
Luke Leuschner 
Paul Schwartz 
Alfred Twu  
 
Denise Montgomery – Leave of Absence 

 
 

2. EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
• Commissioner Leuschner disclosed that he discussed the pending City-wide Historic 

Context Statement budget items for City Council with CM Robinson and Chair 
Enchill. 

• Commissioner Adams disclosed that he conferred with Commissioner Montgomery 
and, separately, with Chair Enchill about Item 5. 

• Commissioner Crandall disclosed that she discussed Item 5 with the LPC Secretary. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT on Non-Agenda and Information Items 
 

Speakers:  1 
 
4. AGENDA CHANGES 

A. Consent Calendar 
 
Motion:  Add Items 8 and 10 approve the Action Minutes. 
M/S/C: Adams/Crandall 
Vote: 6-0-1-1 

ITEM 12 
LPC 06-02-22 



Landmarks Preservation Commission DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 
MAY 5, 2022 PAGE 2 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

Yes: Adams, Crandall, Enchill, Leuschner, Schwartz, Twu; No: none: Abstain: Finacom; 
Absent: Montgomery. 

ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
5. 2113 Kittredge Street – California Theatre (#LMIN2022-0001)**

Resume the public hearing on a request to grant designation status to a commercial
property, in accordance with BMC Section 3.24.130.

Speakers:  16

Motion:  Adopt staff recommendation for designation as a City Landmark with the revised
list of Features to be Preserved.
M/S/C: Finacom/Schwartz
Vote: 7-0-0-1
Yes: Adams, Crandall, Enchill, Finacom, Leuschner, Schwartz, Twu; No: none: Abstain:
none; Absent: Montgomery.

6. 8 Greenwood Common – Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2022-0002)**
Hold the public hearing and consider a request to make alterations to a property that
contains a City Landmark building, in accordance with BMC Section 3.24.200.

Speakers:  1

Motion:  Approve per staff recommendation.
M/S/C: Adams/Crandall
Vote: 7-0-0-1
Yes: Adams, Crandall, Enchill, Finacom, Leuschner, Schwartz, Twu; No: none: Abstain:
none; Absent: Montgomery.

7. 2439 Durant Avenue – Demolition Referral (Use Permit #ZP2021-0192)**
Consider the proposal to demolish a commercial building that is more than 40 years old, in
accordance with Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 23.326.070(C).

Took no action.

8. Report to City Council on Commission Activities
Provide comments on the draft Annual Report on Commission Actions for City Council, in
accordance with BMC Section 3.24.090.

9. AD HOC Subcommittees and Liaison Comments
Receive opportunity reports on status of projects for which the LPC has established a
subcommittee or liaison. (Note: Sites will come off the list annually or upon approval of a
Certificate of Occupancy)

Members Established Annual 
Expiration 

ZAB Design Review Committee SF - - 
Rose Garden Inn SAP KC, DM, SF Dec 2021 Nov 2022 
2234 Haste Avenue SAP SF, DM Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
Grants CE, SF Mar 2022 Feb 2023 

ITEM 12 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
Landmarks Preservation Commission DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 
MAY 5, 2022 PAGE 3  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

 Members Established Annual 
Expiration 

Berkeley Rose Garden CA, PS Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
Landmarks Policies & Procedures SF, CE Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
City Projects for Landmarks and Structure of 
Merit Sites  SF, vacant Mar 2022 Feb 2023 

University of California SF, PS Mar 2022 Feb 2023 
 
10. ACTION:  Approval of Action Minutes** 

Draft April 7, 2022 Action Minutes.  
 
Approved on Consent 
 

11. INFORMATION REPORTS 
 
12. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
13. COMMISSIONER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
14. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
15. FUTURE COUNCIL CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. 2328 Channing Way – Information Agenda Item re: Approval of Structural Alteration 
Permit #LMSAP2021-0002, date pending 

B. 2523 Piedmont Avenue – Information Agenda Item re: designation of a residential 
property as a Structure of Merit #LMIN2021-0002, May 10, 2022 

C. 1940 Hearst Avenue – Information Agenda Item re: designation of a residential 
property as a City Landmark #LMIN2021-0003, May 10, 2022 

D. 2580 Bancroft Way – Information Agenda Item re: approval of a Structural 
Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0003, May 10, 2022 

E. Budget Referral for City-wide Historic Context Statement, May 10, 2022 
 

16. POTENTIAL INITIATIONS  
The Commission may establish and maintain an ongoing list of structures, sites and areas 
having a special historical, architectural or aesthetic interest or value. After public hearings, 
the Commission may initiate landmark and historic district designations from the list.  
A. 2362 Bancroft Way-Trinity United Methodist Church (3/1/99) 
B. Berkeley High School, Building C, 1920; W. C. Hayes (LE 9/13/99) 
C. John Galen Howard Power Station, UC Campus (CO 4/3/00) 
D. H.C. Macaulay Foundry, 811 Carleton Street (4/3/00) 
E. UC Storage Station, James Plachek, Architect (4/3/00) 
F. “Kittredge Street Historic District” - 2124 Kittredge Street (Elder House and 

storefront)   
G. 2138 Kittredge Street (Fitzpatrick House and storefront), and 2117 Kittredge Street 

(A.H. Broad House and storefront) (JK 11/5/2001) 
H. 1842-1878 Euclid Avenue (CO 9-14-07) 
I. Berkeley High School Campus Historic District (SW 1/3/08) 
J. 2746 Garber Street (SW 3/5/09) 
K. 1901 Bonita Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
L. 1920 Bonita Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
M. 1940 Channing Way (CO 11/16/10) 

ITEM 12 
LPC 06-02-22 



   
Landmarks Preservation Commission DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 
MAY 5, 2022 PAGE 4  

 

** Indicates that the Landmarks Preservation Commission received documents (notices of decision, staff reports, application materials 
or correspondence) as part of the packet that was delivered prior to this meeting.  

N. 1920 Haste Street (CO 11/16/10) 
O. 2414 Shattuck Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
P. Terminal Place (alley) (CO 11/16/10) 
Q. 2041 University Avenue (CO 11/16/10) 
R. 2482-2498 Telegraph Avenue And 2445-2449 Dwight Way (CO 12/7/11) 
S. 2301-2315 Telegraph Avenue / 2510-2516 Bancroft Way (CO 12/7/11) 
T. 2328-2346 Telegraph Avenue / 2441-2447 Durant Avenue (CO 12/7/11) 
U. 2400-2402 Telegraph Avenue / 2486-2498 Channing Way (CO 12/7/11) 
V. 2410-2422 Telegraph Avenue (CO 12/7/11) 
W. 3049 Adeline Street (CO 3/12/12) 
X. “Manoa Historic District”- 2530    Way, 2524 Dwight Way, 2503 Regent Street, 2509 

Regent Street, 2511 Regent Street, 2515 Regent Street, 2517 Regent Street, 2506 
Dwight Way, 2502 Dwight Way/2501 Telegraph Avenue, 2512–2516 Regent 
Street/2525 Telegraph Avenue (CO 3/12/12) 

Y. 1400 Sixth Street (CO 6/7/13) 
Z. 1409 Scenic Avenue (CO 9/3/15) 
AA. 1301 Shattuck Avenue, Live Oak Park (CO 2/2/17)  
BB. 2750-2770 Marin Avenue, Pacific Lutheran Theological Seminary (LPC 5/4/17) 
CC. 100 Berkeley Square (SF 6/1/17) 
DD. 741 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17)  
EE. 745 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17) 
FF. 749 Cedar Street (CO 7/6/17) 
GG. 2212 Fifth Street (CO 7/6/17; initiation failed 6/6/21) 
HH. 837 Folger Avenue (CO 7/6/17) 
II. 1517 Fourth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
JJ. 808 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
KK. 830 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
LL. 832 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
MM. 836 Gilman Street (CO 7/6/17) 
NN. 1018 Pardee Street (CO 7/6/17) 
OO. 1336 Sixth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
PP. 1345 Sixth Street (CO 7/6/17) 
QQ. 601 Ashby Avenue (PA 2/1/18)  
RR. 1013 Pardee (BO 9/6/18) 
SS. 1940 Haste Street (LPC 10/04/18; upon relocation of historic building) 
TT. 2222 Fifth Street (LPC 12/6/18)  
UU. 1631-33 Walnut Street (LPC 7/2/19) 
VV. 1601 California Street (PA 11/7/19) 
WW. 2235 Channing Way, 2240 and 2300 Durant Avenue, 2372 Ellsworth Street (LPC 

11/5/20)  
XX. 2501, 2510, 2514, 2530 and 2551 San Pablo Avenue (LPC 4/1/21) 

 
17. CURRENT LAND USE PROJECTS (BMC SECTION 23.404.030(C))  

18. ADJOURN 
Motion:  Adjourn. 
M/S/C: Crandall/Adams 
Vote: 7-0-0-1 
Yes: Adams, Crandall, Enchill, Finacom, Leuschner, Schwartz, Twu; No: none: Abstain: 
none; Absent: Montgomery. 

 

ITEM 12 
LPC 06-02-22 


	2022-06-02_LPC_Item 8_Staff Report_linked_Attachments_2065 Kittredge.pdf
	Sheets
	A0-001 - EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
	A0-002 - EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
	A0-003 - EXISTING SITE PHOTOS
	A0-004 - DEMO SITE PLAN EXHIBIT
	A0-005 - PROJECT STATS
	A0-006 - ZONING AND CODE INFO
	A1-111 - PLAN- LEVEL 1
	A1-112 - PLAN- LEVEL 1 ENLARGED
	A1-181 - PLAN- LEVEL 8
	A1-191 - PLAN- ROOF
	A1-201 - NEW SERVICE HALL/ELECTRICAL ROOM PLAN
	A3-101 - BUILDING SECTION
	A3-102 - BUILDING SECTION
	A3-301 - SHADOW STUDIES - JUNE 21
	A3-302 - SHADOW STUDIES -DEC 21
	A3-303 - SHADOW STUDIES -DEC 10
	A3-304 - STREET STRIP ELEVATIONS
	A3-305 - MATERIAL BOARDS
	A5-001 - SAMPLE UNITS

	Page 1

	2022-06-02_LPC Staff Report_with ATT1_demo referrral_1820 San Pablo.pdf
	2021-02-20_LPC_Item 10_ATT1_HRE_1822-1828 San Pablo .pdf
	4B1_Historical Evaluation letter
	4B2_DPR 523 forms
	1822-28 SanPablo-dpr523a.pdf
	1822-28 SanPablo-dpr523b.pdf
	1822-28 San Pablo-dpr523l.pdf



	Blank Page



